
IN THE COURT OF ) 
) 
) 

No. 1 of 1 965. COAL MINES REGULATION 
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' BEFORE HIS HUNOR JUDGE GORAN. 
\ 

.nSSESSORSi .-:···MES8RS.MAHON and BUCK. 

I -~ MONDA~ 1 7th February, 1966. 

..... -......., .. -...... --
IN THE. HATTER OF AN INQUIRY IN PURSUAN~E OF THE COAL HINES 
REGULATION ACT L~TTO AN ACCIDENT vlHICH OCCURRED AT THE 
BULLI COLLIERY ON 9TH NCVEMBER 1965 AND ITS':.·JAIJSES AND 
C1RCUMST~CES. t 

..... - .. ....... --
MR. REYNOLDS: I would like to · make a p lication to interpose 
a witness who is here to-day and who VPUld g~ve evide.r:ce concerning 
the fan, the actual manufacturer of these fa.ns. He ~s Mr. 
was son and he is a man of great experience :i.n dealing vMn fans. 

1-'IR.LEE: Before my friend proceeds, I may state· I did not know 
we were having any technical evidence today ·am my experts are 
not present. Do I understand Mr .Reynold s \vil:T be leading eviEnce 
from this witness about the effect of the fans along the lim s, 
although it may be different, given by Mr.G-M.ffiths? If SJ, 
I think I would be severely handicapped by Mr.Griffiths not being 
present. 

HR.REYNOLDS : He will give evidence of tests· he did and about 
the facts concerning pressure d ifferentials. , · 

HIS HONOR: I think the only way to deal with it would 
f or Mr. ~asson to g ive his evidence ~1d I will reserve 
rights to cross-examine further if he so desires aftel' 
had an opportunity to read the transcript. 

JOHN FREDERICK WASSON 
Sworn and examine d a s under: 

be 
Mr.Leets 
he has 

~ffi . REYNOLDS. Q.Is your full name John Freder1ck wasson?A.Yes. 

Q,You live at 16 Hume High-vray~ Greenac~~, and you are the General 
Hanager of the Hi-Flow Fans D~vis ion of Placer Exploration Limited? 
A. Yes. 

Q.How long have you been a ssociated with the .. manufacture and 
installation of industrial type f a ns'? A. I would S9.Y since the 
war- 20 years. 

Q.The last 20 years? A.Yes, 20 years. 

Q.And. did you start the business of Hi-Flow ·Fans ? A.Yes, I 
created the business. 

Q.Yourself? A· Yes, developed it. 

Q.And have you yoarself designad industrial fans through those 
years? .a.Yes. 

Q.I understand that you have no formal academic qualifications 
bu~ you did a course in engineering 1vhen you 1.,rere a ymmger man, 
\•Thlch you did not complete? A.That is right. 

Q.But you have actually designed. these fans through the year s?A.. Yes. 
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Q. And supervi sed their instaJ.lation?A. ~es. 

Q. Have you through that t ime r ea d and studied the matters 
related to Air-flow pressures and the effect of fans?A. Yes. 

Q. Have you experimen~ed i n that respect?A. Yes. 

Q. Do you have any experimental or research division?A. We 
have, yes. 

Q. Was that established under your supervision and direction? 
A. That is right. 

Q. And was your company taken over by the Placer company in 
recent times?Ae Yes, 8ince September. 

Q. It now forms a division of that very large company?A, :Ss. 

Q. And you y.re still in charge of it?Ao That is oorrect. 

Q. Over a period of about 15 years have you been supplying 
main ventilation fans for the BQH.P. - A.I.S. group of 
collieries?Ao Yes~ that is correct. 

Q. These are the very large fans which control the main 
ventilation system?A. That is correct. 

Q. And not only to those collieries but to other crilieries in 
New South Wales?Ao Ye s s 

Q. Outside New South Wales as well?A. The whole of Aust r alia, 
and overseas. 

Q. vould it be true to say - I do not know, that you ere one of 
the main suppliers of colliery ventilation fans?A. We are one 
of the three main suppliers in Australia of this type of equipment 

Q. We have been discussing here a set of fans in series in that 
part of t he mine at Bulli known as 8 Right? Did you suppmy those? 
A. Yes. 

Q. First of all over what length of time have you bem supplying 
to the A.IeE~B.HnPe collieries auxiliary fans of that general 
type? A. Approximately eight year se 

Q. Were they known and in use prior to that time?A. No, I would 
say not in this particular --

Q. Could they fairly be described a s a comparatively modern 
introduction into the mining industry in this country?A. Yes. 

Q • Could you give His Honor some ID. ea of the gEnerality of their 
use now in mines?A ~ Well, I would say in modern mining these days 
with its very large outputs, I would say that 75 per cent of 
collieries would be ventila t ing with this particular type of 
auxiliary tubing systemo I t has been brought about by the 
modern mining machinery __ ?-eveloping such a large amount of dust 
and gases with l arge · .?:":::~:;;~ . ts from small faces that we have had 
to develop a system tor give us a much more efficient means of 
ventilation and better conditions for working the face. And 
this has been done over - it took us more than 12 months to 
develop this system and it is very satisfactory. 

Q. Do I understand it is inherent in wha t you say that modern 
mining techniques with higher powered machinery create more dust 
in t he mine?A. That is correct. 

Q. And this, apart from anything else, need s more effective 
ventilation?Ao Tha t is correct. 



Q.Have you insofar a s the d~sign of ~hese fans and ~h~s ducting 
is concerned h3 ':1 dealings wlth the Hlnes Dep artment . .,.yes, we 
origD1 ally submitted these fans, the part~cul~r .f~!s, f?r.approval 
to the Hine s Departmen t that they woLlld flt wlthln the Mlnu-g 
Act. We have approval. 

Q.You have approval in ~espect of this? A. Yes . 

Q.Would this rel.ate to the question of inflammable gas and 
whether t he y were s afe in that respect or to what aspect ? A. 
That is correct. 

Q.Is that the main aspect? A.That is the main aspect. 

Q. Have you had the opportunity to observe these fans actually 
beina used from time to time in Bulli Coll iery? A. Yes , we have 
been o undergr ound several times and runt ests on them in 
different sections. 

Q. That is before this inciden t? /h Yes . 

Q.Did you have anything to do with the original installation o f 
them, I do not mean 8 Ri ght , bu t anyvrhere in the mine? A. Yes 
vJe installed them, tested them and made sure t hey "l,ver G vlOrking 
correctly. 

Q. In this case we are dealing 1.vith two fans 1.rhich are said iD be 
in series . Would you just tell us very shor tly wha t if any 
effec t that has to the general efficiency of the system? A. 
In this par): icular case they \vere put in serie s. beca:se we vl8re 
generating much higher resistance in the ducting, such as t o 
keep the flow of a ir up to the face ,we have had to put them in 
series which means they develop a much i1igher pressure , the 
fans themselves . This is a standard engineering practice and we 
have done this and carried it ou.. t, in fact at the Snm.v-y we have 
had fourteen mi l e s of these fans in serie s. It is nothing 
unusual . 'I'he main function is to de velop more pressure to keep 
a constant flow. 

Q. Have you produced a plan which is diagramatic only? A. Yes. 

Q . • ~nd not intended in any way to repr e s en t the actual position 
of the duct ing and the fans on 9th November of l as t year , but is 
intended to indicate the ge ner::tl set up ? A.That i s corrsc t. 

MR . R~YNOLDS : I t hink I have sufficient copies to distribut e rcund 
the Bar t able and three for the Bench. 

HIS HONOR: Do you tender it? 

MR . REYNOLDS: I will tender it now if the r e is no objection 
on the basis it is an exp lanatory device and not int~nded to 
prove the fact of anything . On t hat basis I would think ther e 
is pro t ably no objection. 

(Doc ument marked Exhibit KK and copy handed to vlitne ss) 

MR . REYNOLDS: I venture to sug~e st this will be v er y us e ful 
when we are painting out things later on. 

Q.Perhaps you would be good enough to indicate to the tribunal 
the general features of this plan . We can s ee the portion 
labe lled. 1'Intake air flovr". That of course WOLlld be indicative 
of in t h is instance No . 2 cut through, would it not? A. 'rhat is s o , 
yes . 

Q.The shunt is of course so marked. You show in Blue the flexible 
vent tube which we have at times c alled the bleed tube, but 
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there is nothing significant about where you have the end of it 
in relation to the particular day of 9th November?A. No. 

Q• You have shown by green arrows something of the movement of 
the air you would expect with the fans operating?A. That is true, 
yes. 

·Q· There is a date at the foot of this plan, 9th December, 1965. 
Did you go into the mine that day?A. That is correct. 

Q. And was the general set-up much as is shown in this diagram? 
A. CBnerally, yes. 

Q. Tilere was a brattice stopping in the shunt in A heading?A. 
That is right. 

Q. Tile coal face was much in the same place, as far as you knew, 
as the day of the fatality?A. Yes. 

Q. And the ducting went down to the vicinity of the face?A. Tht 
i .s correct. 

Q. Have you been told that a suggestion has been made in this 
Court of an area of low pressure being created in the inter­
section by the opera tion of those fans?A.That is right. 

Q. And were you asked to apply your mini to the questbn whether 
that was so or not?A. Yes. 

Q. Firstly I would ask you, as a matter of your theoretical 
knowledge and your experienc e , would you expect that to have 
happened?A. No. 

Q. I will ask you why in a moment, but did you on that day measure 
pressures at various points?A. That is right. 

Q.What i nstrument did you use?A. I used our inclined manometer 
which is a copy of the Sydney University manometer, which will 
measure down to one thousandth of an inch of water gauge. 

Q. On this diagram you have mndicated positions at which you took 
readings?A. That is correct. 

Q. And they have been numbered A, B, c, and D?A. lliat is right. 

Q. Would you tell us why you chose those positions?A. Well, it 
was relatively ih the middle of the ducting and it was about as 
long as the rubber hose I had with me at the particular time. 

Q. Thi s is the hose which is attached to the inclined manometer 
so that you can put it at a place and then read it on the gauge? 
A. ':D.1.a t is correct. 

Q. For the purposes of the ascertainment of the facts you wish to 
know·, was it sufficient that you should take them at these places? 
A. Ye s , quite. 

Q. Were the readings as you have marked on the plan?A. 1hat is 
correct. 

HIS HONOR: Q. 11W.G. 11 stands for Water Gauge?A. Yes. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. In all instances there is a difference between 
~ach point and the other of .0072 inches of water gauge?A. That 
ls correct. 

Q •. That does not mean of course tha t that is the reading at that 
polnt, but that that is the difference between one rffiding and 
and another?A. That is correct. 
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Q.And I suppose you took from that that there l~st an even 
di minution in pressure where you 1-rould expect to be equal, 
is that so? A. That is correct, certainly. 

Q.And is it right in Y<;JUr t~eory that j_f you have a column 
of a:ir moving in one d.1rect1on, the further you go away from 
the direction of travel the lowar the pres sure reading will 
be? A· That is correct,relative. 

Q.A.nd if it is a steadily moving column of air, do you 
exuec t in every 20 yards or 30 yards or 40 yards the same 
difference will be recorded? A.That js correct,yes. 

Q.You wanted to find whether, having regard to tre general 
body of the air , there wa s in the vicinity of the intersection 
any reduced pressure which might tend to attract the flow of 
gases or air from other places into that area of reduced pressure? 
A.That i s corr ct,yes. 

Q.How did you go about that problem? A. Well, on position 
A I measured the pr e ssure differ ence between A and B, which was 
.0072 inches, and then I measured the pressure difference between 
A and C which was up towards the shunt, which was again the same, 
and then I put another 10 yards of tube on it to take it into 
t he centre of the shunt and there wa s no diffe r ence between A 
and C and a and D because our instrument cannot read. low enough 
to measure the differ enc e , say, of 10 yards of 9Xtra rubber 
hose s o that actually the pressur e difference was uniform through­
out the whole system. 

Q.So that it goes on to the notes, do you swea r that in your 
opinion it is true that - and I am reading from th e not.:tion 
on the plan - "these differences in airway pre ssure shovr a 
con stant and uniform pressll.re diffe r enc e bebv-een air\vay? inter­
s ec tion and shunt. A localised 101.-1 nrossur e area at the lnter­
sec tion, as proposed, is w~easible~? A.That is corr ec t. 

Q."The high water guage doveloped by two fans in series is 
nec~s ·~ary to ?~erc~me ~he re~is~ ~.nce of the st~el duct, s~ that 
off1c1ent ventllatlon ls ava1laole at the wcrklng face.~ You 
have already given some evid ence abou t that · A.ye~ 

Q.There has been some evidence given her e , a s I understam. it, 
that with the fan in operation a diffe r ence in pressure between 
the out by side of the brat t ic e stopping in the shunt and the 
inby side o f the same st opp ing can be measured? A.Yes. 

Q.What do you say about that ? A. Well, if there is a pre ssure 
difference it is of very minute nature. - very minut e . 

Q. In your opinion w·ould it be of such a nat ura as to cause gases 
t o flow through that brattice screen? A.No. I would say t m 
pr essure differ ance -v.rould not be t3 re a. t enough for the gas to 
move through the brattice. 

Q.At one time it was su~gested in this Inquiry that th8 open 
end of the bleed tube lnto the shunt -vrould., because it to the 
~ayman seems to pre sent an ac~ion of suction, tend to attract, 
lf I may use the word, gases ln the goaf through tbe screen into 
the shunt. Hhat do you say as to that? A. Woll, at the end of the 
sma~l tube we.would have I would say u velocity of, say, 1 000 f eG t 
a mlnute or lt c~uld be possibly less, but say 1000. At 4 
f ee t away this velocity would bo do-vm to in .the order of 200 
f~et a minute, 8 fe e taway it would be down to 25 feot, so that tr.tG 
alr -

Q.Would you tell us the formula thGrer A. The vclocity decays at 
the rato of the squar o of the distance. 
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Q And we are measuring in 
A: Ye s, feet per minute. 
is of a spherical nature. 
like a spher e . I mean, if 
velociti e s --

terms of cubic feet per minute? 
The flow into the face of the tube 

The ai r would move around into 
you mea sured t he streamlined 

Q So t ha t we can understand you would you be good enough to 
r;ughly ske tch wha t you say? (Approaching wi t h piec e of paper) 
Jus t roughly sketch it ~o that we can understand it, wi thc~mt 
saying anything yet. (Wl tness ske tche s). When you de scr1bed 
i t a s coming in in a spherical pa tt ern, you say tha t is illus­
tra t ed by this ske tch pl an?A. Ye s. 

( Plan handed to His Honor) 

Q. You have just indi ca t ed the na ture of the air flow into the 
mouth of the tube?A. Ye s. 

Q. We ar e dealing with t he que stion a s to why i n your op1n1on 
t here would be no drawing of the ga se s from the goaf through the 
scr een in to t he shunt or t he mouth of the tube . Would you go 
on?A. I am saying this: the flow i n to this t ube would not create 
enough pr e ssur e or velocity to move the gas t hrough the brattice. 
It would take t he ea sieBt path to t he tube . It would sweep from 
intake a irway across t he floor and inm t he tube and the v~city 
in t he direction of ·_where the brat tic e is would be much lower 
t han t he velociiy coming down intake a irway, sweeping across the 
floor into t he tube directly, so t he small tube, the ve locities 
f r om t here would not crea te any d·iffe r enc e across the bra t tice 
because it woul d not be of high enough na ture to draw air through 
t he bra ttice on acc ount of t he r e sistanc e thr ough the flow, of 
t he br a ttice . 

Q. ~ha t is if ther e wer e air on t he other side of the brattice 
and equa l l y so if it wa s gas?A. No, it would not crea te enough. 

HIS HONOR : Q. What a bout the side s of the brattice, asslooe it 
wa s not t i gh t?A. I f it i s not a tight stopping this stuff ~ould 
flow under neath and around t he side s. 

Q. And woul d do so?A. Ye s. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. Would i t do it under the influence of the fan 
or na t ur al l y?A. It would do it na t ur ally. 

HI S HONOR ~ Q. Would t he fan accentua t e it?A. Ye s, I would say so. 

MR . REYNOLDS: Q. To wha t extent?A. Not a grea t deal. I would 
say t he na tura l diff er enc e in ventila tion would be of greater 
eff ect than t he fan ef fect. 

Q. Wh at is your view a s to the adequacy of the vent tube to 
ventila t e t he shunt insofar a s it deals vJith t he change of air 
i n tha t shunt?A. If t he shunt wa s a na tura l area which had to be 
ventila t ed according to, say, the Sydney County Counc i l r egula­
tions, the amount of air coming out of tha t tube would be more 
than adequa t e to mee t those r egul a tions. It wa s in t he order 
of 10 a ir change s an hour. 

HI~ HONOR~ Q •. I don't know tha t t ha t r eally answers t he question 
be1ng dealt w1t h her e unless I know t he r el a tionship s be tween 
t he r egul a tions and t he conditions in t he shunt. Wha t is t he 
r ela t i onship?A. I am just putting this up as a sort of eva lua tion 
of this particular area of the shunt inasmuch as if this Court 
room vJa s a shunt and the se wer e the type of ventilation r equire­
ments t ha t we would have to provi de - t en air changes an hour 
out of this r oom or shunt. 

Q. I s this wha t you ar e putting : t · h 12 · h t b . t ? a en 1nc or 1nc u e , wa s 
l - A. Ye s. 
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Q. ;·laced in this particular position in this.shunt would.pro-vide 
ten complete a ir changes an hour , complete alr changes, ln t t:B 
shunt . Is that the proposit.ii o n yo':l are putting? A. Yes but lt l. t 
woul d do this in the quantity of a lr that wou.ld move . WhethEr 
was correctly di stributed is another que stion which we would 
go about doing in other ways . 

Q In other words youare saying you get ten air changes in a 
p;rticular portion of the shunt? A. Yes , there are certain 
a~ens where the ai r does not move into such ~s the corners . 

rviR . REY.NOLDS~Q.rt does not mean a bit of air that -vras th2r e 
would ne cessarily be eliminat8d· ~ that period of one hour? A. 
That is so, ye s . 

Q. But the volume of air that vrent in and out would be equivalent 
t o ten times the cubic cu~acity of that shunt in the hour at 
l east? A. Yes . 

Q. YoLl say "At least"? l'i • Yes . 

HIS BONOR:Q. Putting it another way~ Assume thi s tumtie r 
(Demonstrates) the area - it doesrlt matter t~ shape - it is a 
volume ? A. Yes • 

Q. You put a tube in near the edge? A. Ye~ 
. 

Q. You are getting , coming into the shunt through the tube , ten 
air change s pe r hour? J.• · Yes . 

Q. Of a specific quantity? ~ . Yes . 

Q, That may not affe c t what is happening up here t o anything like 
that extent? A. No, the pattern of the velocities i .s such it 
does not reach into r.he corners c.nd it takes the shortest 
rout o t . 

Q. In othor words it is a localised distribution? a . Yes . 

~1h. · . REYNOLIS:QJs is possible in ventilating an area like that to 
ensur e that every bit of the air is changed '\vithin a certain 
period of time? J'.,. . Not under mining practice - it is nc ·.­
e c onomical and -

Q.His Honor seemed shocked at that . Would you just exp lain? 

HIS ~1 0NOR~ I did not \vant to interrp.p.t but s oiJ:lething fe ll 
fr om thG i•iitnoss, " not under mining practice . It is not occnomicci.l" 

Q. Tha t is the wo rd you used? ~ . Yes . 

HR . REYNOLDS~ I was going to ask why it is not economical. 

HIS HONOl-1 ~ I just vrant to know what is meant . 

MR . REYNOLDS ~ It may cost £1 ,000,000 to ventilate a shunt , 
I don 1 t know. 

Q. C.sm you tell His Hono r what the problen is? A. The problem is 
~ou have to r egula te it, you would havG to run duct \vork right 
1nto the back corner of the shun t and mount it up say a.bout 4 
or 5 feet off the ground and have r egulat ports into it , it ;,vould 
have to bG controlled up a shunt to a certain degree so that you 
have a uniform vGloc i ty of air thr ou.ghout t hG whole shunt . This 
be??me s a bit of an eng :LY1eer ing problem and requires , shall we say , 
a Olt of t echni cal k_nmvl tJdge from t.he und e r ground mining peoPJe . 
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Q. Is it feasible to do it in respect of each place whidh may be 
used for short periods in a mine?A. No. 

Q. Is it only appropriate to a permanent installation?A. Thab is 
m:orrect~ 

ijiS HONOR: Q. I suppose the real answer is you either do not 
crea te these pockets - ? A. Yes. 

Q. - or find some other method of ventilating them than by 
fans?A. That is correct, yes. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. It has been suggest ed that measurements indicate 
a pressure difference on either side of the stopping out by the 
fan in the return airways. Wou~d you expect tha t?A. Outside 
the return airways stopping, yes, there should be some pressure 
difference theree 

Q. Would that have any effect on the induction of gas into the 
intersection?A. I should not think so. No, I would say not. 
We develop a positive pressure blowing from the fans. 

CROSS-E~INATION: 

MR. LEE: Q. Had you made tests for pressure differentials in 
various places before you made this test you have spoken fur? 
A. Yes, we have done this before. · 

Q. You?A. Me personally? 

Q. Yes. A. Yes. 

Q. Under what circumstances, briefly?A. Ventilation survey in 
mining to fit a main ventilation fan in. 

Q. You have done it in respect of mines?A. Yes. 

Q. This is the position: When you took these measurements were 
you advised as to the nature of evidence that had been given in 
this Inquiry on this matter?A. I was told that somebody suggested 
there was a large pressure difference in the shunt. 

Q. When did you make these tests? 9th Novernber?A. 9th December. 

MR. REYNOLDS: I think it may be in your opening. 

MR. LEE: Mr. Longworth said there was only a very slight pressure 
difference. I never said ulargen. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Page 601. 

MR. LEE: Q. The points you took, are you aware they were not 
the points where the pressure differences were measured by 
Mr. Griffiths?A. I \vouldnt t know where he measured. 

Q. Do you know Mr. Griffiths in fact measured the pressure 
difference behind the brattice in the shunt and in front of the 
brattice?A. No, I had not known that. 

Q. Let me assure you he got a different pressure from the front 
to the back of the brattice of .005. A. Very smalle 

Q. In fact you might think the pressure difference at those two 
points might be your own figure of .0072?A~ It could be. 

Q. A bit more than Mr. Griffiths got?A. It could be, yes. 

Q. Would you not agree that that differential would be sufficieni 
to permit a flow of gas?A. Not through the brattice. 
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Q.Not through , but around it? A. It could be a round it,yes. 

MR . LEE ~ I am l ooking at pp . 60l and 602 . Unle ss YcUr Honor 
thinks it should be pursuod 7 the wit~e ss 1 last c:-nswer seems 
a s f a r a s the Inqu i ry need t o know, cha t the r e ls that 
dif f e r enc e . 

Q. y our plan, which we kn ow is not int end e d to be .::_ f a ctual 
r ep r e s en t a tion o f t h~ situa tion - ? Aft Ye s ~ 

t o be 

Q. - shows air in the int ake a ir flow going into the shunt area? A. 
Yes . 

Q.I -vrant you to a ssume the bratt ice in the shunt is 30 f eet back 
f r om the in te rse ction .. You s<~"~ll tha t did you no t? A. Yes, 
I s aw t ha t . 

Q. I \ifant y ou t o assume the intake a ir n a tur ally ent ering the 
shun t is mi n i lJlal? A. Ye s . 

Q. Is it n ot t he posi ti on t hat with the bleed tube the v e nt tube, 
a _ l you c oul d expe ct by 1-ray of ventilation \vould be v entilation 
limi t ed to a r ound the end of the vent tub e? A. Tha t is gen e rally 
cor r ec t , t he mov ement a round the c orner and movomc~ rrt in to till 
base of tho tub e . There wo uld be c orners up the r e whe r e the r e 
would be no air movement at all . 

Q. When y ou say " corn er s" in fact depending who·re you put the 
ven t tube t h or o co ul d be qu it e subst antia l ar eas wh2r e gas c ould 
c ome t hr cmgh and by- pass the v ent tube , if it were moving '; A. 
There c oul d be pocke ts, I woul d say, ye s. 

Q. In or de r t o be sure the s hunt \tlas e ffe ctive ly ventilat e d you 
Hould need, would you not , to c on sid e r , or y ou c ould c onsider 
- i n order t o havo the shunt e f fe ctively ve ntilate d you could 
c ons i d er , a s on e de sira ble a pproa ch, the defle cting of more air 
natur al ly int o the s hunt from the main air str e am? A..Yes, 
that would i mpr ove t h ing s . 

Q.And , v.ri t h your vent tube i n there you woul d have , f.tr st of all, 
mor e air ent e ring? A. Ye s . 

Q. And t hen y ou r ven t tube opor n ting on t hat air and. creating 
be tt e r v en t i l a tion? A• Tha t is c orrect . 

Q. You would bo the first to a gr e e that to r e ly upon a vent tube 
t o ve nti l a t e an a r ea 30 f e et ba ck fr om the main a ir str e an coo.Jd 
not be sa id t J be e f fe ctive ventila tion? A. It vP Uld not be the 
way I woul d do it . It is not wh a t I would call sound enginee ring 
pract i ce . 

Q. Lo t u s t a ke it one s t Gp furtho r~If you knevi or thought that 
behind the brattic e t he r e was pr obably e ither in exist ence , or 
go ing t o come in to existence a..n. acc umula tion o f gas , y ou ·Hould wa nt 
s omethin _, consido r .. lbly mor e ef fe ctive than a van t tube t o de al with 
tho p r ob l em, wouldn't you? A. Yes , I shouM say sa. 

9• Of c ourse the auxil i ary fans vrer e i n tr od uced , w er -~ they not , 
ll1 t he f irst instanc e t o deal essen tially 'vith dust? A. Dust am 
&;as . 

Q.Dust and gas? A. Ye s, vre generato gas at the fac e . 

l~ . At the f a ce, did you , until you c ame upon the situation a s 
outlined in your pla.11 , have any knmifl edg e a t nll of the a rn:Lliary 
fans be ing used to v entilat e ;::.. sb11nt a r e a in this fashion or a 
working place in the f n shion indica ted the r e ? A. It is the first time 
I have s ee n it . 793. J.F.Vlasson, xx. 



Q. You would have thought , from your knowledge of the fan, 
that the way it would be used would be to ventilate at the face? .A. 
That is the general function . 

Q. You would. not h a ve imagined a dual v entilation going on f r om 
the fan, one at the face and one in s omG other working place? A. 
I should not think so . 

Q. Looking a t it now I sug ge st you would ag r ee if you had a 
shunt pr :::Jperly, or a lmost properly v en tilated by natural air , 
the i nt roduction of a vent tube c ould be of considerab le advantage? 
A. rhat is correct . 

Q. But you would not h~ve i magined the auxiliary fan would be used 
to r e ly exclusively upon the vent tube a s a method of ventilation 
in a For king p l a ce? A. .. No, I probably would not have done SJ 

but it is mj_ning practice , miners have the ir ovvn p r a ctic e s in 
the s e t hing s . 

Q. You ha ve not seen this sot-up before till you went to Bulli? A. 
I had not seen that trunking type of thing . 

HR . P.~RKTIJSON: No ques tions . 

MR . CRANE ~ No questi on s . 

MR . SULLIVAN~ No quostions . 

HR . HcN1~LLY~ Q. The d iagram ~ does it s how roughly speaking whe r e 
the bleed tube 1.-Ja s si t l!CTt"'od on 9th De cember? a . Oh well i t &pp oars 
in r elatively but it was down on the floo r and abou t the mi ddle of 
the floor . Really the t~be should come down the wall am be in 
three or four foot along the floor . 

Q, How may extensions were on th e bleed tube ? You may not r e member ? 
A. I could not say , but it was rrund about , I vrould say , abou t 30 
feet long - 3t1- - 35 feet long . 

Q. 35 feet long? A. Some thing like that . 

Q. That is - ? A. From vlhere it went into the duc t ing . 

Q. I t hinlc you will agree that the s hunt there was appr oximate l y 
30 f ee t long? A. Something in that ord er . 

Q.. Yo u knovl No . 2 cut-through , do you? A. Ye s . 

Q. I think that is a bout 21 f eG t vride? i~. Yes , that is so . 

Q. So that the e nd of the bleed tube would be at least 21 .... i n 
fact mor e than 21 f eet f r om the - ?A. 40 feet , T would say. 

Q. tto feet from the end of thG shunt? ,',. ,. That is rigp t . 

Q. That 1.ra s on the day you were the r e ? M. . Yes . 

Q. So I suppose i t is fair to say t he amount of a ir being supp l i ed 
to the outby e nd of the shunt would rot be e. s much under this 
situation a s it would be if the end of the bleed tuba wont right to 
~ha back of the shunt 0 i'.. . The quantity of a ir would be relatively 
the s ame bu t thG distribLltion in the shunt would be d if'f0rcnt . 

Q. I.fl om vlanted. to v Gntilato the back of the· shurlt one l:Jould e xt ond 
the bl ,_G d. tubG clo 3er t o thQ back of tha t shunt? . • That is carr ._ ct, 
yo s . 

Q. Do you know just ho1v muc h a.ir or gas woul d be ~J ullod through the 
blee d. tube under the opo rating cJr.~cJitions,y ou saw on 9 th De c ember ? 
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A.I did not actually measure it but I believe the Mines DepartnBnt 
have been in there and it is about 1200 c.f.m. - cubic feetper 
minute. 

Q.Ther e has been suggested 1500 - -

HR .SULLIVAN~ I vras be ing careless when I did that. I knew the 
fig ure was 1200 but I put 1500 to the witne s s the other day. 

1R . McNALLY~ I am a little confused as to the evidence . The 
calculation vras to be made and -vras not actually nnde . 

HR .SULLIVAN : I put 1200 to Hr.Griffiths and he agreed . I am sorry, 
Your Honor. 

MR . McWLLY~ Q. I think you agree tha t the shunt is ~ 0 feet long and 
approximately 21 f eet across? A. Yes. 

Q • .Approximately eight feet high? A. Yes. 

Q.Is it correct therefore, and this is my calculation, that the 
quantity of air t or vrhatGver it might be in the shunt, would be 
approximately 5000 cutic feet? A. I have not worked it aut but 
I would say somothing like that order - yes, about four and a half 
thousand or something - five thousand. 

Q.5o4o? A. 5040. Right. That is correct. 

Q.So assuming that the capacity of the bleed tube was 1200 cubic 
fe e t per minute it would take approximately four minutes for the 
bleed tube to pump 5000 cubic feet? A. That is right,yes. 

Q.Assuming the bleed tube went to the back of the shunt nE.:ar the 
brattico then c :; uld we a s sume that approximatoly every four minute s 
the a ir on the ground where the end of tho vent tube lay 'l.vould be 
changed? A. Yes, that is correct, the voltune of air vlOUld be such 
but agam distribution is the thing that matters, I think, in 
thj_s matter . 

Q.At least on the floor of the shunt, if the bleed tube 
r est ed on t he floor that air there -vrould be cha.'1ged appr oximately 
ever y four minutes? A.Yes. 

j\ffi,SULLIVAN: That is in front of the bleed tube? 

HR.McNALLY: I differ, Your Honor. 

Q.Not necessarily in front of the bleed tube, it rra y be behind the 
entrance of th3 bleed tube, as demonstrated by the plan. 
A.Yes , with the distribution of volocities around the end. 

rliS HONOR~ Q. Ten feet c. way it may have a minimal effect l is 1ha t 
the posit i on? A.Yes. 

Q~MR . McNALLY: Would the air be chcnged.? A.Yes, i t is changing the 
alr a l l the time, bringing fresh air in and diluting the general 
area in the shunt • 

. Q.Under that_ . .;..Situation, the bleed tube going to the br1ck of trn 
shunt and resting on the floor, would all the air over some per iod 
of time in that shunt, as you inspected it, bo changed by reason 
of the bleed tube? A· Yes 1 I would say Yes. 

Q.over what period of time would you e- stimate it? A. I mean at the 
~op ~here the velocities are less, lower,and where we have sagging 
lt nnght take 15 minutes. 
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Q. No longer?A. Well, I am only just having a rough old gue ss. 

Q. Wha t about the gener a l ar ea ther e - do you say less than 15? 
A. Ye s, it would be changing ever y four minute s, a pproxima t ely. 

Q. Would tha t apply to t en f ee t away from t he end of the bleed 
tube?A. No, I wo uld say not. 

Q. How long?A. You could say 15 minute s - t en minut e s. 

Q. Ten to fift een minute s?A. Ye s - tha t is only velocitie s. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would yo u f ee l so compe t ent about t ha t answer? 
A. No, just a wild gue ss, Your Honor. You do not crea t e pocke ts 
of empty air, I me an t he air falls and fills up the spac e s. 

(Ske tch a ttached to Exhibit 11KK 11 ) 

JOHN PUDDLE 
On for mer oa th: 

(Witne ss r e tir ed) 

MR . PAlli( I NSON: Q. On Friday, one of t he l a st que stions I a sked, 
or I t hink His Horror a sked it, wa s this: 

uQ. From wha t sourc e did you ge t the information on 
which you rely tha t it wa s Mr. Cambourn who had 
made a mistake ? A. Mr. Ryan who wa s the overman in 
charge of t he night shift when he came to the surface 
a t 7 a .m. on Sunday morning spoke to me in the Report 
Room and in gen er a l discussion of the colliery itself 
he said t he machine wa s now se t up where Bill Cambourn 
want ed it s e t up. u 

Wa s tha t Sunday morning?A. No, Monday . 

Q. That wa s on Monday?A. Yes. 

Q. Tha t wa s t he fir s t informa tion you had that t he machine had 
been moved or withdrawn and t ha t the goaf had not been holed into 
in tha t particular a r ea?A. Ye s. 

Q. Is it customary for you t o have an accura te idea when you 
commence a lift as to the distance tha t you expect to have to 
travel befo re you hole into the goaf?A. Ye s. 

Q. Had you any idea of t he distance to be tr ave lled in this 
particular lift befor e you expected t he holing to take plce?A. Ye s. 

Q. Wha t wa s the di s t anc e you exp ect ed to t raverse before the 
holing took pl ace?A. No more t han 150 yards to the holing. 

Q. 150 yards?A. Ye s. 

Q. I do not know whe t he r you misunderstood me: from the 
commencement of t he lift - I am t alking a bout No. 2 cut-through. 
A. I wa s t a lking about No. 13 heading. 

Q. You wer e t aking from t he intersection?A. Ye s. 

Q. When you turn around t he sweeps ther e wha t would be the 
distanc e you would expect to t ravel across the end of the pillar -
wha t ha s become the end of the pillar?A. Approxima t e ly 50 ya rds. 
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Q. To your own knowledge had you any idea how f ar the machine 
had travelled when it comple ted t he shift on tho Friday night, 
I think November 5th?A. No, I l eft t he colliery a t 3 o 1 clock 
and t her e wa s another produetion shift started a t 3 o 1clock , 
before 11 o 1 clock on Friday n i ght. 

Q. Did you a sk Mr. Ryan had he any idea wha t distance the 
machine had travelled?A. No. 
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MR. PliliKINSON: Q. Did Mr. Ryan say anything to you about 
probably missing the goaf and had bypa ssed the goaf?A. I can't 
r ecall it. 

Q. You cannot r ecall it?A. No* 

Q. Is it a fact that the machine was actually on line and would 
e~entually have holed into the goaf on tha t particular lift?A. Ye s. 

Q. and 6ould this holing have occurred. early in the day shift on 
the Monday November 8th?A. It should have. Actually we 
expected it to hole on t he Friday afternoon, but ther e was some 
breakdown and hold ups in machinery and other c auses whic h 
r e sulted in somewhere about half the normal production being 
won on the aft ernoon shift on t he Friday, so after t aking the 
position at the f ace on the Friday night at 11 otclock we would 
have holed early - or would have holed. on Monday morning on 
normal production. 

Q. Had this holing taken place on Monday morning in day shift, 
what eff ect would this have had on any gases which may have built­
up in the goaf area up to that time?A. You would ge t a slight 
flow of whatever was in the a ir behind the holing coming through 
the holing. Wha tever it wa s I would not be able t o say now or 
then, but ther e would be a slight flow of the atmosphere from 
behind the holing would come through, but it would not come 
through very f ar. 

Q. But it would have been dra ining off ga ses if they had built 
up in t he goaf area or even if they had not built up in t he goaf 
area , it would still have been bleeding off some gas, wouldn't it? 
A. It could have been bleeding off some ga s through there , ye s. 

Q. Wo~ldn't this holing have had pretty much the same effect as 
a bleeder heading?A. Once you had done tha t you would have 
formed a heading then, and this is the same thing - the bleeder 
heading was then alr eady completed. 

Q. That is right, because the holing had done this, hadn1 t it? 
A. Tha t is correc t. 

Q. So it was very important to have that particular lift hole 
into the goaf?A. To have the place holed into the goaf , yes, but 
not tha t particular lift - a s long as it wa s holed into t he goaf. 

Q. Let me now put t hi s to you: What would have been the situa tion 
had it been found t ha t ei ther one of the shuttle c ars, there 
was not sufficient l ength of cable to continue wheeling from tha t 
machine a t t he position it wa s in when they completed the shift 
on t he Friday night?A. Ther e would be at lea st two al t erna tive s. 
One would have been to change over to a longer shuttle car cable. 
We had no shuttle car c ables ther e . We turn our cables over 
onc e t hey come down be low 165 yards, I believe it is, so tha t 
if the shuttle car c able had been too short to go down, it W)Uld 
have meant the shuttle car cable would have been shorter than 
the distance we normally use and so the changeover would give us 
t he distance to hole. The other thing tha t could have been 
done would have been to add a little bit more cable out. The 
cable length is de t e rmined by the amount of cable tha t can be 
accommoda ted on t he r eel and if for instanc e you had 140 yards 
of cable on, well, our r ee ls t ake 150 yards so if you had 150 
yards of cable on and you wanted to travel 153 yards, then wha t 
we.have done in the pa st is to position some person a t the anchor 
polnt to look aft er the cable when it is going on to the r eel so 
t ha t the car approache s the anchor point and the r ee l become s 
fully charged and you have somebody ther e to look af t er t he cable 
t hen becau se the cable will not run any more then , and to see 
it goe s on evenly and will not bec ome damaged. 
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q , The other alternative wo~l~ havo beun to withdraw the machine 
and commence a new lift whlcn would have solve d the problem of 
any ca ble having to be changed and having t o follow the procedure 
you havo just outlined? h .• I have alread y st a tod that the ca~le wi ll 
hold app roximat e ly 150 yards and we have found we have travelled 
this di-stance and \Je should have been e.ble to have holE:d without 
chan2'ing . You have put forvrard a supposition and I did not say 
we d.id not have enough cable to hole at any time . 

Q.Well , did you know that the r e ~as enou~h c~ble on tho se part­
icul3r ehuttle car s at that partlcular tlmo?~,~ . I know the r e VTas 
sufficient on the car to take sufficient cable to allow the 
holing . 

Q. But l o t us as sume the cable was short . Couldn't tha t ha~ 
been one of the r ea s ons why the mu. chine 1tlas withdrmN"n and put into 
the n2w lift ? (Obj8ct ,J d to by J1r . HcNally; rejected in that form) 

Q. Well, if the shuttle car c~ble was too short , would it not be a 
simDl 2 mat t er to withdraw the machine to ove rcome that problem .r 
and c ommGnce J. n aw lift? A. You a lv1ays withdraw the machine for a 
ne vi lift .J. t any t ime at all , but the pur pose ha d been the r e t o 
hole the p l ace . 

Q. Coul d thero have been any pr oblem with tho miner cabl e? i· . 
The r o could hav u boon a problem with the miffi r cable but none was 
evGr raised~ for once again the miner cable itself was followed up 
by a r e ticu~ation cable which fe eds into the minor box and the 
actual long c a ble leads from the gate end box of the machine . 
Then by posit ioning the miner box , the gate end box of tho mi nor , 
you caz1 then travol as yo u wish provide d the gato end box i s safely 
sit uated . 

Q. No-....r , Is the p olicy of operation at tl-n Bulli Coll i e ry to employ 
gangs of men on dog-\lratch in various districts? A. Yes . The dog ­
wat ch is made up of both maintenance and preparation and Federat ­
ion side and mechanical side and , a s you say , teams of men put i n 
the tunnels t o carry out their various du tie s . And generally 
t he same men comprise the same t e~a that goe s to the panols each 
succe ssive nigh t . 

Q. And thGre VJa s such a gang as this in employment in this particular 
sec tion on the dog--~v-atch?Jl. e Ye s . 

Q. You say their taslc primarily vlas , apart from general maintenance , 
t o propar o plac6 S for coal production the following morning? A. iuil. 
t o pr epar e the a r e a for pr~ uction , yes . 

Q. And ono of th eir tasks would bo to withdraw the machine from 
a given pl a c e , say in t his instance withdraw the machine from this 
particular l ift , to make it all ready and in readiness for coal 
production at 7 o 1 clock on the 'l'uosday morning? A . ThEJ ir tas~ is to 
pr epare the place according t o thu instructions that aro l ef t t o 
~hem 2nd havo the plnc o in r eadines s for production on tho follow­
lng produc tion shift . 

Q ~ And thoy did precisely this for tho Tue s day morning , this gang 
Wlthdraw that machinG on instruc t ions, didn 1 t they? A. Y6s 

Q. Couldn ' t th i s have boon tho situa tion? that if that place only 
had a fow yard s to go to hole , a ma t ter of four or five c a rs of 
coal . and tho holing took place ' t h on the machine \>J"OUld have ffi d to 
be Wlthdrawn in tho day shift , wouldn ' t it? A. Yes . 

~ · And thatnW~l:l-ld have tal~en.a fairly lengthy tinE to withdraw it 

1 ~ck to thc/_lft , wouldn ' ~ lt? A. The re was no now lift int ended . 
had to c ome back t o thls place that was s o t up with th3 T piec e 
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Q. Well, that would have taken some time, would it not?A. Yes. 

Q. And there would have been a reduction in production on that 
particular shift as a result?A. Ye so 

Q. Is it not possible that that could have been the idea why 
the machine was removed?A~ It was nota 

Q. Have you any idea of who actually issued the instructions 
that this machine should be withdrawn~ (objedted to by }tt . McNally ; 
allowed) A~ I am not quite sure, Mro Parkinson - would you 
mind repeating the question? 

Q. Let me put it this way: Did you at any time give any 
directions that this machine had to be withdrawn?A. At no tirm. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you know who did?Ae On hearsay, a s I said -

Q. On hearsay, do you know who did, and I will treat it purely 
as being hearsay evidence~ Do you know who did?A. As I said 
on Friday, as far as I know the position was this, that the 
place was driven to carry out, to make the holing into the goaf, 
the instructions were specific from me that the place had to 
holee These instructions were passed on to the afternoon shift 
by Fred Wright, on to both Bill Cambourn and to Don Eager, and 
t hen on the Mond~y afternoon when Fred Wright saw Bill Cambourn 
on the surface before going in- Fred Wright had come out at 
3 o 1 clock and Bill Cambourn was going in at 3 o 1 clock -ha spoke 
to him and asked him why the maohine had been withdrawn. He 
said he had been under the impre ssion tha t the centres betweEn 
the extension of No.o 2 cut-- through and the goaf were somewhere 
in the orde~ qf 10 yards and by t he distance he had travelled he 
thought he had missed t he goaf by over-driving in front of it 
and thought they had be tter come back to reduce t he distance 
down the ext ension of No . 2. cut-through so that holing could be 
effected . 

Q. So it wa s your understanding of t he position that Mr. Cambourn 
took the r e sponsibility of bringing the ma.ching out?A. As far as 
I knew at tha t time, yes . 

HIS HONOR: As I say, I will merely trea t t ha t for wha t it is 
worth and you, MrQ McNally~ possibly, or anybody else, may be 
able to put the position by positi~e evidence before me . 

MR. McNALLY: He has not comple ted his answer t o the que stion, 
Your Honor. He has only indicated it wa s the posi tion he 
understood at t ha t stage& 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you know anything different aromt i t now?A. I 
have heard in hearsay since that Mr . Cambourn got in touch with 
Mr . Don Eager and informed him of the position and Mr . EageD 
agreed with Mro Cambourn to have the machine withdrawn to t he 
place , the outby pla~e s 

HIS HONOR: One would have though t it would have been the 
simplest thing in the world to establish who made t he decision. 
Ther e see ms t o be a great mystery about i t ; t ha t is the part 
that rather worries meo If in effect the position is tha t it 
can be clear ed up by evidenc e r a ther than hears~y information 
concerning it 7 ! think it is d e sirable that should be done . 
If.this mat ter had not been raised I would not have seen any­
thlng at all suspicious in it but I must say it appears nobody 
see~s to know who decided on this particular act and it now 
beglns to assume some importanc e . 

MR. McNALLY: The only two men, on my instructions, who could 
have any.idea of it have not given evidenc e about it . Th~ 
~re pos slbly Mro Cambourn and Mr o Eag er~ I understand Mr . Eager 
ls away a t pr e sento They may be able to clear up the matter, 
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or Mr . \vright also . I do rot know whether he is to be c.:.illed . 

MR.PARKINSON ~ I would suggest another person too , Your Honor, 
would be the dog-watch Deputyo 

HIS HONOR~ Q. What do you say about it, Mr . Puddle? A. Well , as far 
as I kn.ow, the direction to withdraw the machine t~ the ne\v 
place w-as in the form of a note ., That was left ln the lamp 
cabin or the report room, addressed to :rvrr . G. Ryan who was the 
night shift overman~ in charge of the night shift . He would get 
this note and would' then pass the knowledge from the note 
on t o Mr.Charlie Walker who was the night shift Deputy in 8 Right, 
who vrould then have c a rried out the ins true t ions set out in the 
note . 

HIS HONOR ~ All I can say at this stage is to repeat tm t I hope 
this matter is cleared up properly in as brief a time as 
possible . I am disturbed to think that in a company when there is 
a change of intention such as this , in this particular area where 
a f e;,-r hours afterwards a. fire occurred , at this stage nobody knows 
who gave the direction and nobody ~t the moment can tell me 
positively . 

MR. REYNOIDS: I do not w1derstand what Your Honor really means by 
that . The witness quit e clearly in the box has said he was not 
there an d h e c annot k..'1ow , but no doubt there are people who can 
be aske d and I gathe r they have teen in the witness box . 

HIS H ONOR ~ Tho ,,,i tness is the Under - manager of the mine, Hr . 
Reynolds, and this fire has now been under investigation fbr o. 
cons i d era.blo time . This was a change of operation E!.-Dd the 
~olitn CJs s himself said he had an impression that the change ;,-ras a 
d ~cision of certain individuals . He now finds out , having already 
g ivon evidence in the box on the matter, that it is sombody 
else . 

HR . R:~YNOLDS ~ vlith respect, I do n ot think that is right . 
He mentioned exact l y the same thing a s he said this morning , and 
it is the r e at p , 769 of the transcript . 

HIS HONOR ~ I understood the witne ss a while ago to say, when Mr . 
HcNally said the -vritne ss had not completed his o.nsv.rer, that c..t one 
stage he t hought this and ano t her sto.ge he has since lear n t again 
s ome thing else . We a re not talking about some ordinary emp loyee 
in a mino , we are talking about a very significant person in 
the mana~ emen t . 

l"iR . REr'NOLDS: Who does Your Honor mean? 

HIS HONOR ~ Hr . Puddle . 

HR . REYNOLDS~ I do not understand the implication of \•That Your 
Honor says . 

HIS HONOR: I ;,-rill be ns frank and brief a s I can. It may be 
that my suspicions are not at all justified and therE:dore I cb 
not want to voice them too strongly , but this is a matter which 
~or some rea s on has achieved a significance vlhich I thought 
lt IA!OU.ld not warrante 

HR . RBYNOLDS ~ Your Honor will remember on Friday I objected t o the 
matter being gone into at all because we considered it had litt l e 
or no r e levance to the problem . Whether Your Honor thinks that 
~ omo body has told lies about the matter, I do not know , but here 
ls an officer who can only dep end on what he is told . It may be 
that in tho indus t ry he has not been given t~ full story and 
he may have to probe further; that may be the situationo He has told 
Your Honor what he was first told and vlhat rn was second told , 
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and it may be desirable that someone asks him clearly all he 
was told about this mattero But once again we ge t into this 
problem because of hear~ay and we ge t complete confusion 
between fact and the r ela tion of facts between other people. 

HIS HONOR: This problem does not arise through hearsay. Here 
we. are trying to find out what happened, who nnde the decision. 
We find the Under-Manager telling us he has been told two 
different thing 8 ~ That is the position in a nutshell. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Ye s & If t he matte~~be inquired into is what 
he was told, tha t is one thing; if the matter to be inquired 
into is wha t the actual fact was, that is anothero My 
suggestion is that there could be a c onfusion be tween those things 
which is hard to unravel ~ That is all I wish to say. 

(Short adjournment ) 

MR. REYNOLDS: Might I make a suggestion before we go any further, 
Your Honor~ My instructions are such that it would seem from 
fragmentary que stions and an swer s Your Honor has got an impression 
which is not accurate and I would invite Your Honor before this 
matter goes furt he r to personally ask the witness questions as 
t o wha t he wa s t old and as to his source of information and 
whBther t he re is any r eal inconsistency in what he was told 
because if the matter gaes on in t he way it has it can I suggest 
pos sibly lead t o an unfair situa t~on. Would Your Honor be 
good enough to intervene ? I do not vJan t to lead. When I 
come to r e-examina t ion it may be too late . Would Your Honor 
accep t my suggestion? 

HIS HON OR: I think it is an excellent suggestion. Thank you. 

Q. You have heard what Mr~ Reynolds just said: Let us start 
off with this; this miner \vas withdrawn at some stage in the 
original drive? if I may call it, it was making?A. Yes. 

Q. It was withdrawn, appar ently , be tween shifts?A. Between 
production shiftsJ yeso 

Q., Do e s tha t mean it was \vithdrawn during the dog-watch?A. Yes. 

Q. What were you told as to the r eason for its withdrawal? 
What were you first told?A., I was told on Monday morning the 
miner had been withdrawn to the new place. I asked why this 
had been done and I was to ld ther e had been a note l eft by 
Mr. Cambourn to have the machine se t up in t he outby place. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. Who told you that?As Mr8 Ryano 

HIS HONOR : Qo Mr. Ryan?Ao Yeso I spoke to Mre Wright who is 
the Assistant Under-Manager and the area tha t he covers in the 
l North District includes 8 right section and I asked him to see 
Mr. Cambourn at 3 o'clock on the afternoon when Mr. Cambourn 
started his normal shift and the day shift was finishing to find 
out why the machine was withdrawn~ 

I spoke to Mr. Wright aft er this and he had seen Mr. 
Cambourn and he told him he had withdrawn the machine because 
he th?ught he had mi s sed holing the placeo This is what I 
had r~ght up until thi s year and I just heard that Mr. Cambourn 
h~d seen Mr., Eager prior to the end of the shift on the Friday 
nlght and before the dog-watch shift had se t the machine up on 
the Monday morning. 

Q. When did you first hear tha t?A ., I believe it was Charlie 

hStewart mentioned it to me in the office, tha t Billy Cambourn 
ad seen Don Eager about this., 



Q. When was that? A.I_think_it was the week before l as t. The ne xt 
thing I heard about 1t - (lnt errupted) 

Q B f e you go any f urt her: I s that tho first time you knew 
t;a~ -~~.Egar had beon consulted in t hi s matter~ all? A. 
Ye s. 

Q. In be tween that time you thought Hr.cambourn had done this en 
his m-.rn initiative? A . Ye s. 

Q. Did you speak tD Hr.cc:unhourn ab out it? h . Not personally,no. 

Q. \vhy was that? A. I was satis f i ed with what I got f rom Hr. 
Wright who had alr eady seen him about t hi s. 

Q In othe r word s you t hought Mr .Wright had done Rll that could 
b~ dono in the way of nsking Hr . cambourn for his r easons? A. Yes . 

Q. You \ve r c about to say the next th ing you h~ard - ? A • ~he r:ext 
th i ng I heard - this was when Mr. McNally ra1s ed t hl s po1nt 1n 
court on last Thursday or last Fr i day and on Friday_aftornoon 
I spoko t o Nr. cambourn a~ the pi t ~nd he ~old m~ th1s -vm s . 
ric;-ht that he had been 1n touch w1th Mr. J:..gar :1r .... d 1:-t had sald 
"All ~ight, we will dr aw the machins bo_ck to t h3 new place you 
have suggos t ed." 

Q.Rave you spoken to Mr .Egar about this? A. I have had no 
chance to speak to Mr. Egar. He has been on holidnys since t re 
resumption of vmrk on the 17th. 

Q.And he is still m.;ay? A. I believe he should be resumi ng to-day 
at Nebo colliery. 

Q. So it may be pos s ib l e fo r us to ge t Mr .Egar should i t become 
nec essary? I do no t know whether it will be re cessary or nt, 
but 'Jn your understand ing of the position , Mr . Cambourn wanted to 
withdraw t he machine and. before he did so consu.lted with Mr.Egar ; 
is that right? .A.Yes. 

Q. Mr .Wright was informe d of t his at some lat~ stage 1 having 
asked Mr. cambourn, and that is the information Mr .vlr1ght received? 
A. No , the information Mr.Wright passed. on to me was that Hr. 
Cmnbourn · had t old him that he Hr . cambourn had withdrawn t rn 
machine be cause he t hou.ght it ~ad mis sed the holing , he hadn't 
mentioned to Mr.Wright -

Q.You say he had not Qent i oned t o Mr.Wright?A.No. 

HIS HON OR: Mr . Cambourn is available, is he? 

!.-!ffi .HcNALLY: Yes , he is on aft ernoon shift on Wednesday . He is 
probab l y available r ight no-vr . 

HIS HONOR: Some inquiries may be made s o that we can clear u.p 
this matter. I see no reason f or anybody asking this witness any 
further questions about t hat now. 

HR. REYNOLDS : I ~'am content. 

MR . McNALLY: Does You.r Honor vrant us to c- rrange for Hr. Cambourn 
to cone to Court? 

HIS HONOR = I think it would be of s ome assi stance because as I 
see . it the real point at issue here is why wa s the miner w ithdrawn4> 
It ls obviously assuming some_ ~ s.i.gni-.fic•<.l.!lce because the evidence 
before me is that t he idea or tho management, if I can speak a bout 
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them generally, was to hole the goa~ as s oon.as poss~ble and yet 
the machine did not hole the goaf dlrectly, lt was Wl thdrawn to 
ano t her position. A suggestion has be en raised here by tt;o se 
counsel cross-examining about it t hat the reason why the mlner 
wa s vlithdraw was that it 1/las r e quired that the company ~anag ement 
sacrificed safety, the principle being that that wo uld. uold th3. 
goaf as soon as possible, to get more coal. As I understam lt 
tha t is the sugge stion before me,ther e for G it is a relevant matter 
for me to enquire into . Mr.Cumbourn may be able to clear up the 
ma t ten I think he at this stage be comes a relevant \v it ness. 

HR. Mc NALLY: We could proba bly arrange for it to -morrow morning. 
We have to catch him, Your Honor. 

HI S HONOF.: If it co uld be done, t hat wollld be convenient. 
Mr.Cambourn does not have to c ome t od~', Proceed, Hr.Park inson. 

HR .PARKISNON: Q• I wollld like to take you t o P• 5 of your s t a te men t • 
I cann ot say what page of the transcrip t it is as I have not 
t he transcript with me, it h as b e come s o large. I -vrill read t1B 
pa ssage wh ich a~1pears about half way d own the S:;at em Gnt on p cw 5. 
I unde rstand now it is page 720, the s e cond last p aragraph: 

''Wo had previously had trouble in 2nd North G Panel vrhere w .3 

had been making pillars of 33 yard centres and 66 yards loQJ 
G pane l was within about 200 yards of the zae of the sarrs geological 
paul as determined the t e rminal point of the headings d.ri v e n in 8 
Ri ght. In G panel it had been di f ficult t o split the pillars and 
r e t a in the roof. It had been d ecided to make p illars 40 yards 
by 66 yard s t o enable s a fer s plitting which would alS) ha"'B the 
advantage of a llowing d irect whoeling." In this particular 2nd 
NO!!th G panel which \-lay were the p illars sp1i t? We re they ~lit 
acrnss or were they s plit end on? A. They we r e s plit accoss with 
33 yard c entre s. 

Q.When the p illars were r e dUEd in G panel ·what effect did it have 
on r oof contr ol? A. Wer e reduced? 

Q.Yes, you say ttit had b e en decided to make pillars" - rathe r 
i ncre a s .:.: d - when the pillars we r e increased in G panel vrhat effect 
did tha t h av e on roof c ontrol? A· We tried s plitting the - I think 
i t is the p illar ma rked 4- between A all B headirg. Yes,No.4 pillar. 
That would be between 4 and No .5 cut-through and we tried sp litt­
ing down through that on e . We couJd rot c ontrol the roof at any 
part of that and that is whyVE did not use the dire ct s plitting at 
all. The r oof condition s hora would not e ven allo\v us t o hole 
t he p laces with the 40 yards of coal on, s o the r oof c onditions 
even with our intention of leaving larger blocks of coal ro that 
when we split it would leave a still large r block of coal to support 
t he intersections and the subsequent roof stre sses, did n o t v~k 
out in fact because the condition s themselve s wer e not s uit a blo. 
They wer e bad conditions. 

Q.This was despite the incr ease in the size of the p illar ? A. 
Yes. 

~.On occasions you endeavoured to split pillars in 8 Rjght, the 
ar ea that we ar e discussing, and you we re successful in the se 
a tt empts also, \~ror e you not? AGYes. 

Q.Wh ich way did you split those particular pillars? A. On the 33 
Yard centre s. -

Q.. Yes, but you split them a cross, didn 1 t you; you did m t s plit them 
end. on ? A.No. 

Q~Then you decided to dispense with splitting and tha t was when you 
dl spensed with the ble eder ~ nding? Ae Oh no - actually , yes , it would 
d.o.we only 11fithdraw one p illar of coal outby of this area , yes . 
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o.Havo you your statement there ?~. No • .. 
Q.I do not kno1,r at what p age this would. appear in the transcript 
bu t it is page 7 in your statement. You said at the bottom of 
that partictllar page nr had been in this s e ction on nwnorous 
oc c c.: sions prior to the accident and the working conditions were 
quite normal and there was no trouble with gas .''' Do you remember 
that portion? A. Yes . 

HR . lvfUHRAY~ It is the third para3raph on p .722 , about the middle . 

HR.PARKINSON: Q. I am reading a little out of cont ext . It is .:t 
par agrap h. I am asking you ';vhether you are fully conversant vri th 
that portion of the st a tement? A. Yes . 

Q.-;toll. say •J! had been in this sec tion on nwnerous occasi ons .• 
Just what sec tion we r e you refe rring t o on that par tic ul a r 
occas ion - was it the No .2 cut- thl ... ough? A. I had been in the 
pane l on the 3rd , I think it \J"as, the l ast time I was in there , 
and that vras in No . 2 cut - through • I was in the panol one week 
before that, once one wc: ok before that, and once one week , the 
previous vreek . I generally get i nto the panel about once a we ek . 

Q.Wha t you ar t? saying is that you found working cond itions wore 
quite n ormal and that there \vas no trouble with ga_s. That is in 

your stat emen t? .A. Normal, consis tont with the a r e a v.re 3.re r e ferring 
t o. 

Q.Of course , you say normal c onditions. On the samo pag e Of tm 
stat enent, about the middle of this page 7, you s tate '' It is 
our practice, aft or splitting a p i:J_lar to extract tm coal in lifts 
along the goaf edge and my intention wa s that , on tho n ext shift 
after holing, the miner would bo moved t o an approp.!.'iate position 
in 1~ heading and tho p illars s plit if roof conditions allowed"?A. 
Yo s . 

Q. If you had found 1>1orking conditions norme~ under the pro sent set­
up and no pr oblems from gas, \vhy \·ras it your int ention to split 
that particular pillar end on? A. The reas on you do th i s is to 
allow succes sive lifts on r etr eating back from the goaf area 
to be of such length that it could bo reasonably expected ~ 
extract one l ift in the one day s o that the machine and the men are 
not expo s ed on the goaf e dge in [l_ lift that stands any longe r than 
is necessary . If you turn around and make thG lift say, in S:iend. 
of 24 yards, 48 yards or 50 yard s, than it would e ntail k oep ing 
the machine in the goaf edge in the ono lift f or at l east 2 days 
and be cause of this it is far ba tter to have tho machine in a n ew 
lift on each day . This is tho rGason for taking, giving the 33 
yard splits , and that was the idea of the wholo panel there . 
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Ma.PAID<INSON~ Q.But then you had experienced trouble in this 
area and in G panel as a result of splitting, had you not? .n..Yes. 

-
- Q. 1lfter you dispensed with the spli tting - first of all . you 

did not split the pillar that I t ake is marked 11 here ? A. 
Marked No.l2? 

Q. I nm referring to No .3 cut-through and the pillar that was 
r emoved thoro? A. In the ar ea marked 11? 

Q. Yes . There was no s plit there? A. No - 33 yards centre ther e . 

Q. There was no split in the area marked 10? A. Yos, all the se 
arc split s, all the way back. If you use the thr ee headings, 
A, B and c a.s the crit eria for looking at this you will 
readily so e al l of t hose pillars have been split. 

Q.(Approaches witness) . Explainto me 1 would you? A. These aro 
sixty six yards centres . (Demonstrates) That one c ome s down 
through the centra there , this one c ome s off that 33 yards, this 
is off ~Y'lothe r 33 yards and t ha t one off is 33 yards. This one is 
55 yards . Instead of the sixty six wide t here we still had 24 
yard s of coal l oft for a lift aft er t he split had gone thr ough. 

HR . HcNALLY~ We cannot see it, Your Honor . 

HIS HON OR: Q. I thinlc the witne ss is saying, e..nd corrPct me if I 
wn wrong, the extensions of these cut-throughs aro in the for m 
of splits in pillars? A. The split of the ar oa we are extracting,y e s. 

Q.Turn it ar ound, l e t Mr . HcNally see what you ar e r eferring to 
and say it again .? What I said was the int ention of split ting 
through hare, mid-way be t ween 2 and 3, is merely carrying c.ut tho 
same practice we had adopted at all places in hare of splitting 
down and taking the coal off that split . 

MR .McNALLY: Q.Is Ho .l a split? A. No.l was tho t ermim l place. 

Q. 2 is a split and 3 is? A. That is right, and 9 is a split. 
13 and the subsequent ones be tween 9 and 13 would have also been 
a split . 

MR .PARKINSON: Q.The situation is it not is your int ention to 
split this pillar - ? A. Yos . 

Q.Was a change in procedure as to what had been done in the past? 

HIS HOJ'JOR: That is the pillar created? 

HR . P All.K INS ON: Ye s • 

HIS HONOR: Bo t woen till ext ensi on of No.2 cut through and tho goaf? 

MR . PARKINS ON: ye s. 

Q. This pillar created by the No .2 cut-through: you sew it was 
the intention to split that pillar end on? A.Yos. 

Q.I put it to you that was some thing of a charge in what you 
had done hitherto in that ar ea? A. In this ar ea ,yes. 

~·WhY, again I ask the question , were you ch~.nging to that part .. 
1cu~ar split down? A. This actualy me thod of splitting do,.rn 
bohlnd and coming across wasn 't tho first t ime it ha s been 
Practised in the colliery and al l other pm els have had t his same 
system done befor e . In Green panol we caTriod this out and the 
re~son is if you form your outby split firs t your machine has hol6d 

805• J . Puddl e ,xx. 



the goaf and then when you bring your machine back in to the 
split between that the goaf itself your machine takes the splits 
down there and is then in a position to start extracting the coal 
without the necessity of having to move the machine around more 
than one - if you had done this alterna tively and driven the 
split first then on comple tion of tha t split you.would have ~o 
go back out to the orte which has already been dr1ven now, dr1ve 
that one through and bring the machine back from there t o the 
preceding lift and then start pillar extraction. 

HIS HONOR: Q. What I do not understand is this: I am r eferring 
to the pillar between 13 and 10. I just said 10 but I meant 
9 - ? A. Yes. 

Q. On the comple tion of holing into 9 you sp+it the pillar 
longitudinally alongside 9; is that right?A. No, you split 
the distance up, it would have been midway be tween 9 and 13. 

Q. You split it down?A. Yes. 

Q. But you lift - ? A. To the right. 

Q. In other words you lift from the goaf side at the No. 9?A. You 
lift to the goaf side. 

Q. Is the purpose of that that you take your machine right up to 
the end of where you hole into the goaf and then drive it round 
and extract from the other way or do you withdraw it, ooming 
right back to t he original heaJing, and then start again from 
the heading side?A. No, from the original one, or you have got 
the first one, you split down here through, you join the holing 
that has gone into the goaf and then using that holing as the 
full extent of your extraction you then r e treat in successive 
lifts parallel with t hi s lift here. 

Q. Do you actually drive the machine, the miner, so to speak? 
A. Yes, you take a right angled lift off from the split. 

Q. In other words you run the machine in r everse direction?A. No, 
the machine is still carrying for 1 ard. As soon as you 
complete one lift of coal you drop the machine back out until 
the face of coal is met again on the next lift outby and then 
you shear that again, still on that particular plan. 

MR. PARKINSON: Q. You did not do this in the area be twe en No. 2 
and No. 1, did you?A. Yes, No. 2 and No. l is the split itself -
the centres there are only 33 yards. 

Q. Isn't ther e a pillar formed there then?A. I am not quite 
following you, I am sorry. 

Q. I am referring now to the area on the colliery plan marked 
number 2 and number 1. We have a pillar formed there. A. Ye s. 

Q. You did not split that pillar end-on?A. No. 

Q. Nor did you split the pillar end-on - the area between No. 1 
~d No. 3?A. As I explained before the idea of splitting in this 
d1rection was to leave sufficient coal for a lift between the 
splits marked 2, 1 3 and 9 to have the lift somewher e round 
a?out 24 t o 30 yarJs of coai and this in effect, had been done 
r1ght back through and also tha t was the idea , for the 66 yards 
centres, so that there would be the split in between, the same 
he~e again, the split down here would have been doing the same 
th1ng as was carried out in there and carried odin there, as you 
mentioned. 

Q. You made an importan t qualification in your staterrent in 
~onn;ction with this particular split that we are discussing now 
idn t you? When you stated tha t the miner would be moved to an 

appr?priate position in A heading and the pillar split if roof 
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Q Roof conditions had beaten you in the past,hadn't they? A: They caused us concern to try and do what I have tried to 
Axplain in the last few days here, yes. We were concerrBd 
~ith roof conditions. 

Q. But roof conditions had beaten you in the past?A. Th~had 
certainly limited output on the inby places - the recovery of 
coal from the inby places. 

Q. What happened to the area marked No. 4, the pillar marked 4? 
A. There were little bits and pieces taken out of that. It 
was ratholed. That is all it was. 

Q. Why were little bits and pieces only taken out? What was the 
reason?A. Because of the roof conditions that were there. 

Q. The roof conditions were bad. Wasn't it as a result of 
bad roof conditions that you arrived at a conclusion that in 
your opinion it would be better to form the pillar, dispense with 
the bleeder and quickly extract the pillar while it was green? 
A. No. 

Q. I thought you have that evidence. 
said it. 

A. No, not the way you 

Q. Just exactly what did you say? A. I said after we dispensed 
with the bleed tunnel for the extraction of 11 and then we were 
going down here, as I have said, and driving 13, hole into the 
goaf, come back into A heading and split between 2 and 3 
parallel with 13 and then we would have our bleeder heading back 
in use again. 

Q. How did you come to dispense - what was the reason you 
dispensed with the bleeder heading?A. As I told you last Friday 
I dispensed with the bleeder because of the roof condition itself. 
Roof conditions in the past had resulted in very poor percentage 
extraction of coal, with poor extraction of coal, we also had 
roof conditions which deteriorated to the extent that the 
drivages were left open before they were used to take lifts off 
the blocks of coal in the pillar and because of this and our 
success as subsequently shown by taking the lifts out of 9 While 
that lift had only been driven over a short time, showed the roof 
conditions were far better controlled by the quicker extraction 
of coal aft er the formation of that area. 

Q. Assuming you struck bad roof conditions in this particular 
area that you intended to split end-on, what would have been 
your action then?A. What were the roof conditions? 

Q. I beg your pardon? A. What were the bad roof conditions? 
You are telling me of bad roof conditions, what are they? 

Q. I am only going on your statement: your statement is that the 
miner would be moved to an appropriate position in A he ading 
and the pillar split if roof conditions allowed. Now, assume 
roof ~onditions did _not allow the split to take place, what would 
you have done then?A. In tha t case one possible alternative tha t 
Qould quite easily be put into use would be to drive a parallel 
place to No. A Heading, slightly inby of A, along extension 
No. 2 cut-through. 

Q. (Approaches witness) Where?A. If I came down here and through 
he~e ~eaving a barri er of coal of sufficient size to support 
thls lntersection and support the int ersect~on I was taking off 
split through there, which is from there, coming down here, and' 
then extract that. 

l~. McNALLY: I wonder if we can use the other plan? 
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(The witness went to the plan on the floor of the 
Court) 

HIS HONOR: Boint out what you have just described to Mr. 
Parkin son. 

MR. PiiliKINSON~ I suggest it might be a good idea if Mr. Puddle 
describes it on the major plan, Your Honor. 

WITNESS: The question is still the same: What would I have 
done if roof conditions in this area prevented my intention of 
coming down here and splitting here. My answer is one possible 
alternative was we could have come down this extension of No. 2 
cut~through sufficiently far to leave coal here to support both 
this intersection and the intersection we were turning away from 
and then drive a place parallel to A heading and off the goaf, 
From this heading another face then could be driven down here 
and holed into the goaf down here again and once again this area 
could be successively lifted back to the split that was in. 

MR. Pf~INSON : Q, Wouldn't it be true to say that the very 
development of that split would immediately weaken the pillar? 
A. It must have some effect, on the roof. 

Q. And it could re-create the very conditions that gave birth 
to the idea of larger pillars?A. Yes. 

Q. You say there would be probably round about 48 yards of coal 
from rib to goaf ?A. Yes. 

Q. In width. You drove a split that would be anything from 
21 to 24 f ee t, wouldn't it?A. Approximately 19 or 21 f ee t, I 
suppose. 

Q. Allowing for the ribs fretting and pillar areas it would be 
very difficult to get out under 24 feet, wouldn 1 t it?A. It 
could go up that far. 

Q. That is another 8 yards from 48 yards. What size pillars 
are you going to drive?A. Just a moment, I think you misunderstand 
me . The centres between 2 and 3 cut-throughs are 55 yards. 
Our placers are driven somewhere round about 7 yards so there 
would be 14 yards o!f the 55, which gives us 41 yards, which 
leaves over 20 yards of coal for the lift. 

Q. So you would have 20 yards by 100 yards pillars. lOO x 20 
yards pillars. A. There would not be quite 100, but approximately 
that. 

Q. Would you say tha t would be conforming to maintaining larger 
pillars?A. Maintaining larger pillars? 

Q. Would not you be inviting the development of bad roof conditions 
by splitting that pillar end-on?A. I did not think so. As I 
said to you before, if you could drive this area and immediately 
upon driving it drop back and extract the coal that wa s l eft 
available for extraction by the split itself, by doing it this 
way we had shown there was a marked improvement in the inby 
pillar that was extracted and I expected the same to eventuate 
in this. 

Q. Would not the split tend to crea te roof stresse s into the 
cen tre?A. Into the c entre of where? 

Q, Into the centre of the pillar, the c entre of the area you 
~re splitting?A. There would be roof stre sses there but whe ther 
lt would come into the centre - I would hardly think so - there 
would be stresses ther e but whether the arch would come back 
into the centre of the f ace , I very much doubt. 
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HIS HONOR: I am at a loss to s ee where this is l eading. . 
Is this a general criticism of t he me t hod of working t he IDlne 
or is it leading to some thing whic h will be of a ssistanc e to 
me in determining t he cause of t he fire? 

MR. PARKINSON: Only this: I did not see any r eference to 
this in Mr. Stone 1 s sta t ement,that t hey intended to split tha t 
pillar and of course t he significanc~ of t he splitting of t hi s 
pillar after t ha t had holed they split, and t hen t hey have a 
bleede;. (Indica t e s on plan) 

HIS HONOR : Are you que stioning t he statement t ha t t ha t wa s t he 
Under-Manager 1 s intention? 

MR . P!-iliKINSON: Ye so 

HIS HONOR : Assume you do question that sta t ement, what is the 
next t hing , the next inference you a sk me t o draw? 

MR . PARKINSON: The whole t hing, as I see it, is tha t t here is 
a sta t ement here from Mr. Puddle and on t he last page , four 
lines from t he bottom, 11 r eplaced by the bleed tube 11 has been 
erased af t er t he statement was made and t he words 11 omi tted 11 

inserted. The inference in my mind is that i t wa s only t emporary, 
and in fac t I t hink Mr. Puddle makes t ha t sta temen t in the 
sta t emen t 7 t ha t this was a development that was taking place to 
re-establlsh t he bleeder heading. 

HIS HONOR: Go on wi t h your que stion . I see what you mean. 

MR. PARKINSON : Q. Was this idea to split in t his way thi s 
par t icular area we ar e r eferring to, was it your ±Ea?A. Ye s, I 
think so. 

Q. Did you di scuss i t with anyone?A. I discussed it with the 
Assi stan t Under-1'1anager, yes, Fred VJr ight, who was in charge 
of t he area . 

Q. Did you discuss it wi th the Manager?A. I t has been mentioned 
to the Manager, yes. 

Q. I t has be en mentioned. Do you r emember discussing i t wi t h 
him?A. Whetger it was discussed - it must have been some kind of 
di scussion, I imagine . I t was t alked about, yes . Ye s, i t 
would be discussed. 

Q. Did you discuss it 1-1i th the deput ies in t hat particular area , 
for instance depu t ies Walker , Stewart and Cambourn?A. No , I 
don 1 t recall . 

Q. Did you discuss it vJi t h Over man Ryan and with Overman Eager ? 
A. No , I don 1 t t hink so. Could have - I won 't swear to t hi s. 

Q. Tha~ means if this pl ace had holed tha t Friday nigh t and 
ac?ordlng to your sta t ement t he shift af t er it holed you were 
golng t o split this pillar, if you had not discussed it with 
th~m then you would not have been splitting t his pillar?A. As I 
sald I had .already discussed it with Mr . Wright. Mr. Wright 
is t~e hSSlstant Under-Manager whose area includes 8 right 
~ectlon and he would have passed on the necessary de t ails , I 
lmagine , on t hi s one . 

MR. McNALLY : I a sk tha t t he last part be struck ou t. I t may 
not be necessary t o strike it out but I object t o it . It is 
not an answer t o any que stion he was asked. 

~ISt HONOR : I suppose t his wi tness is pr e suming it . I will 
ln erpre t it tha t way. 
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MR.PARKINSON~ Q. When did you evolve this idea? A.Wha t i dea? 

Q. The i dea of splitting the pillar end on? A . The id ea to split 
the pillar vvas at the s ame time as we came back to No . 2 cut­
through , t o drive that on o d Ov·rn the r e . Drive tho ext ension 
t o No . 2 thr ough first Cllld thon c ome back nnd s plit in be t1voen . 
I 1·rould. like t :) say that thj_s idea of driving the tunne l or the 
head ing r ound the outby side and t hen c oming back t o the c entre 
a nd sp litting the r e was no inova tion at all . It can quite readily 
be s hown that all othc-; r areas in which we have used vonti lation 
by auxiliary fans in Gro on panel , in Violet p ane l a nd in Yellow 
panel , this same system has been done whe r e t he tunnel has been 
driven dom'l , holed t hrJugh int o the goaf and then tho pillar 
that ha s bGon formed. by that has been subsequently split and the 
c oal tak en out of t his s plit. 

Q. (Approaching Exhibit A) vl011ld yo u se.y that this me thod of 
y ) lJ_rs ir:OLlld have imp r ov e d "\·Jheeling conditions? You refe r 
to 1-rheeling conditions as a · shuttle car vrhee ling coal . You 
split and I take it the idea was to lift off t o the goaf? A. Yes . 

Q.So you had been coming this way , up that way , a r ound the turn 
and ar our..d another tur n ? A. Yes . 

Q. i.l~oul d you s ay that that would have inpro ved yourwheeling 
conditions? A. It would have boen no diff er ent at all fr on the 
pl a ces we h ave driven inby there . 

Q.It is a bit diff l:l rent f rom the pre sent method no1v , ,,rhEr e you 
only take the one turn out and straight off No .2 c ut-through? A. 
No diffsrent at all t o the shuttle car r oad that had t o be 
used vlhen we deve l op ed ·..:H \vhen -vre extracted the yellow por tion 
on. the p lan and also -vrhen v-re extracted the top part of the p illars 
rearked , I think it is 11 . 

Q •. Are you a-.·rar e that min ing enginc-:e ring though t stro!lgly 
favaur s to- day the extraction of pillars without s pl itting if 
pos sible .? .t:... . I am afraid I don ' t qui t e follovr y ou in this. It 
hRs a \Bry \·ride me Ming and I would like to -

Q.Woll, we ·v.rill make it a little na.rro..r er . I look upon this 
(indicating ) a s a pillar tha t has been f orrre d. Would you agree 
wi th t ha t, that t hi s area her o is a pilla r that is being formed? 
A. r_r hat is r i g h t • 

Q. As a r e s ul t of driving this cut - t hr m g h d own? ~.Yes • 

Q. I am asl<ing you now , ar c; you a\lar e that mini ng engineering 
the ory to- day strongly supports the extr ac t ion of tr..at p illcr 
vlit h out any splitting wha t soe v e r? A. No, I don 't k :1 m; that . 

Q. You d o not know? A. Con t rary t ·:) that , I do knov-r that at 
Wongawilli Collj_ .. :r y s ome t i mG ago thoy usod ~;ri th s omo succo ss the 
idea of splitting dov-m v ery cl ose t o t he goaf , l eaving a fe nd er 
on and then r obbing the fender on the r e tr 0at ani this was no t a 
matte r of just g ·:)ing thr ·:J ugh for J. y ard or t\·.D . They wer e going 
through for s :)me sixty or s e venty yards . 

Q. Of course , Wonga\·lilli is another A. I. & S. collie ry,i s it m t? A. 
Yo s. 

Qi-I t ci_~G it that Y·J U r ead mining lite r ature - up1to date , 
curre nt mining lit or at ur e ? a. r road s oma of it . 

Q.And you havo n e v e r sean allY r e f Qrcnce at all tD this question 
of the extract ion of pillars wi t h out sp litting , whorc;ver practicable? 
A. I n our e xpo r ienco up th~r e in th(; ot her areas, iifG havo f om1d 
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this by far the best method of doing it - of going in , of tal(i~ 
the small lifts off and I would. say that to go into that pillar 
now that was formed there and try to extract that pi llar on success­
ive l ifts c oming back from tho goaf edge you would &finitely 
lose- you , .. ,o U. l dn ' t definite ly you couldn ' t s ay that , but from 
all that I have s e en in the p lace you would. in my opinion lose more 
coaJ. in doing that than you would be by splitting the p illar and 
taking oU.t the lif ts in the manne r I have alre ady described. , 
as I wa s going t o do . 

Q. If this p lan is any indic .s. tion you coU.ld not have lost vey 
much more coal than you l o-st in t his situation, could you? A. 
I didn't lose it, the conditions lost it . I was trying t o 
i mp rove it . 

Q. iilld you still do not ag ree that the splitting of this 
pillar may have re - crea ted the condit ions that you en countered 
pre viously in that ..-rea? A. I didn ' t think that v.ray . That was the 
reason for my doing it~ 

Q. But you made provision for it in your st at ement, did you 
not ,that if roof c ond itions allowed it - ?A. nll work in t he 
colliery is carried out if roof c onditions allcw it . 

Q. So you strongly suspected roof condit icn s could beat you? A. 
Well , I didn ' t really knovr at that tirm . What I meant by thatv.ras 
this: At this period we dr opped bnck and were driving thee xtersion 
of No . 2 cut - through and when 1ve came back to split again 'v·le woU.ld 
have been coming back A heading between these areas end 30 feet down 
this cut-through there was a br att ice stopping erected. and I couldn't 
see lvhat wa s happening t o the roof conditions behind that brattice 
stopping , and this is the thing t o which I am referring when I 
say "If r oof c ond itions allo·vred it ." H:-:td roof cond.iticns down 
there de t e riora l. ed to s uch an extent that you could not have got 
in , either s ome alternative means 8f doing it must have been 
devised . 

Q. You have t old TIE you did not discuss this idea i.vith the 
manager specifically , to your knovrledge ~ that you did not dis c uss 
it with the deput ies, that you did not d iscuss i t with the overman . 
I am going to suggest to you that never at ru1y time did you intend 
to spli t that p illar that waY• .r· What do you say to that? A. I 
say to you in all honesty, Mr . Park inson, my intention wa s to 
split that p illar . ~ 

Q' \·~a s this idea conceived befor e tre fire or after t he fire? 
(Objected to by Nr . Reynold s as needlessly offensive and shouJd 
not hav~ been asked) 

HIS HON OR ~ The witness has already sworn that that was hi s 
intention . Are you now putting that he has concoc t ed that an swer? 
Are you r eally putting that , Mr . Parkinson? 

MR . PARKINSON~ Yes , I an1 Your Honor ., 

HIS HONOR~ Q. VJhat do you s cw HS to that? Is your last answer true 
er false ? A . Hy intention to s plit the p illar i s true . 

MR . PARKINSON~ Q. I go now t o the l a st st atement in your 
statemen t., You claim to be s a f e ty cons cious at all t ime s underground? 
A. I try t o be . 

Q. And you would m t at any time compromi s e on safety , as an 
Under-manager , I am submi t t ing to you? A. I at no time 1vould expect 
u man to go anywhe r e or do any t hing that I wo uldn't do , and I have 
a fair res~oct for myself . 

HIS HONOR:Q . That is not an n.t1Siver t o the que stion . You migrt be fl. 
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very brave man , you might be a very cautious man or a foolhardy 
man; I am not suggesting you c;.re any 'J .le of themo \Joul?. yo~ at anY 
time for the sake of prod uctlon , a sk a man to take a rlsk ln work­
ing i~nder the c ond itions that obtai.ned? A· If the risk wo.s such 
that any per son might be hurt at all , no . 

Q. That cny person might be hurt at all; that mee:Uls , doe~ it , 
you would not a sk. any man 'i'T orl{ing under you to take a rlsk that you 
could fore see was possible a s to his safety ; is that right? A· 
Tha t is right , y e s . 

HIS HONOR~ You may take it .from thore if you wish ,Jvir . Parkinson . 

HR . PARKINSON: Q• You stated on p . 8 of your s ta t eiiE ~ ·v,~1ich is t re 
last page , "1 do not attempt to justify the method adopted by me .• 
This is in reference t o the omission or the dispensing with the 
bleeder heading in the cut - through . 11 1 do rot attempt to justify 
the method. adop ted by me . as being the only one which could have 
been adop ted." As Under-manager , vrhat were the alternatives to 
the method you adopted? . i . The alternatives to t re method tht 
could have been done ther e i,vould have been possibly to come back 
QJld say , for insta..'1ce 2 instead of having the shunt down where it 
was , it 1/laS possibly 1ike - may I have the plan? 

Q.Go to the big pla.n , Mr . Puddle . (Witre ss cp prm ches Exhib i t A) 
A.The altel.,natives , coming do1-,rn here and coming across ffi.ro and 
by using a brattice across there and using tre sp i ral tube -

HIS HONOR~ Q. I do not think this can be described for the fu t ure 
simply by bc:: ing r e corded as going from here to there . would you 
describe what t ho se places are? A. Well , instead Of using the 
spiral tube and ventilating merely from the fans over to the 
stopping itself in A heading , it might have been p ossible to have 
put a tube itself running through from a completely stoppe d plac e 
herc3 back over to this other side and instead of having the 
auxiliary fans bringing the air through this spiral tube as it was 
at this time , by substituting tubes that can go back into the 
r ot urn and ove r into the inside of the stopping so that the main 
mine fan itse lf would effect the drawing off of anything that was 
behind the stopping . This is on e possibility and tha t is the one I 
referred to at that time . 

,Q.I suppose the s e cond a.lterna tive YJO IJ.ld have been t o dispense with 
the bratti03 stopping into the shunt' A. In v ie w of what happened in 
the subseq u€nt flames , that l·vould have been a f a r better way of 
keeping that edge clean ? thore is no doubt about that , by d iverting 
the air around tha t . (Witne ss back to box) 

HR . PARKINSON: Q• on the same page of y:::>ur st &t eme nt you said 11 We 
had serious roof problems but v entila tion had been normal ." Despite 
the serious r oof pl"oblems ventilation had been normal . New that 1r1as 

i11 the past tense . Is there any significance in that r:a r t icular 
statemont? A. actually , YJhen the statemGnt was made was a fter the 
inc ident and some thing had happened in the ventilation in trn t 
pe riod . 

Q. You were not suggesting that Hi th the a lSpensing of the blo eder 
heading the vE:mtilat i on in your opj_nion was not normal , were yru? A. . 
No . 

Q. ltlhere you say the ventilation had been normal , t ho bleeder heading 
was in operation, wasn't it? A. Yes . 

Q. And this n orma: - A. Excuse me just a minute . As Is aid before , 
not to get confused on it - vlhen the coal in No . ll was taken out 
~hat 1v-as when the bleGd.er was actually d isponsed vli th and the vm t­
llation in that area 1 we had had no p roblems with it . 
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Q. And thiswas a normal schema was it rot , or this scheme of. 
normality in re l a tion to ventilation had bsen d.ev"ised by Hr. Mulr 
of the Hine s Dep artment and. Mr . Ryan and ha d p roven safe and 
satisfac t ory up t o that period. , had it rot? A. Ther e is VEl' y 
littl8 dif fere nc e between t m s o t up we have in this panel here 
now and the method wo vm r o using in Gr een panel when the system was 
dev ised. by Mr . Muir and Mr . Ryan in .smuch a s t horo was still a 
common r e turn comi.n g bEwk out from Groon p ana l a nd \<TO s till wont up 
and drove tho ho E'..d ing and bacl{ ,1cross into the goaf to for m the 
bl eeder an.d we c ~r.ae back in · again r-md then s plit up and extr act e d 
the coa • 

Q. But isn ' t this the position: Thor o was a fundamen t a l diff er ence, 
there ·v1a s no blood e r heading in your s chorre and ther e was a 
bleeder heading i n Mr .MLlir ' s ~'\....'l.d Mr. Ry an's scheme? A· Ther e ',vas no 
bleeder heading when you are drivin g a bleeder he ading , Hr . PEr k ins on . 
That is what I am trying t o say . 

Q.There is no bleeder heading v1LLen you are drivirg a bleeder 
head ing?A. That i s so . 

Q. And thl: :::e '...va s no on e work ing in tho i nby p itlar , was th er e , 
when you we r ~ driving the bleeder heading? A. he r o was nob ody work­
ing in the inby pill ar when we drove this . 

Q. Whun you drove the ble eder heading wer o you extracting a pillar 
anywhere in tha t part i cular area? h. . Extl" acting and forming the 
bl eeder he ad. ing at the sam e time , do you me an? 

Q.Yes. A. Oh no , ne vor . 

Q.\Joll, there was a fundamental di ff e rence, was th oro not ., if 
ther e wa s a bleeder heading thor o in ono case and there is no 
ble ede r heading in the next ca~o? Thor o must be a fundarn m tal 
diffe r enc e be tween the me thods · A. You have got me a Ji ttle bit 
confused a bou t this . Just wha t ar e a aro you talking abou t ? 

Q,·I EU11 talking abou t this 8 Right Section. I arn talking now 
about t he scheme that was dovis~d by Mr . Muir of the GovernDB nt 
Mina s Depar t men t and Nr . Ryan. It made provision for the driving of 
a bl eeder hea.ding) did it not? A. Yes . 

Q. Your scheme made no provision f or the c'! riving of a bleeder 
heading a s we knevr it unde r Mr . Ryan ' s and Mr . Muir ' s idea? A. 
Ye s, of c ourse itdid . That is what I havo b een saying a~ l along . 
We we r l3 dr iving n bleeder heading UOi.•T• · 

Q. Then you explain to me where the ble eder head ing is at the 
pr e sen t moment in No . 2 cut-through? A. V.Je are driving the bleeder 
heading , 1--ir . Parkins on . As I said , we are driving thG bleedEr 
head ing now. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Is this what you m·e saying? that the number J3 
was tho dr iving of a new bloede r heading? )l. . Yes , we were going 
down ther e , coming acr os s again , and thGn by c oming back L11. again 
to A heading and s plitting c1ovrn , that l of t a. bleeder h ead ing coming 
round the present drivings. 

Q.But you wer o extr acting coal , vre r e you not , bofar G you had a . 
blooder heading? Isrl t tha t s o? ~ . Yes ~ 

Q. Are you sugg·3 sting this as the suggestion novl - be c a use I t hm gh t 
You wer e mg gesting s ome thing else - that this w i1 S the ordinary 
method by which you had been working in the se pr evious cut s, 9, 13 
and 2? A. No e The blGeder h ead ing was in uso up till we came bac k 
f rom 9 and you will find from the ovid ence I go.ve last weak that 
that is where we dispensed with t rn bl eeder ho <=~d ing o As I jus t a sked 
Mr . Parkinson then , vrher o he was r of e rrL1g to , from wha t h e answered 
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me I thought he vJaS still back on the extension of Noe2 head ing • 

MR.REYNOLDS~ It is conceded at & 1 time s in his s tatemont 
and it will bo by mo at the end that v.rhen the pillar marked 11 
was extracte d bofore tho driving of a. bleeder tunnel.? this was a 
departur e from tho system which had b een d oveloped before and 
the rG has ne ve r been a.J1Y i ssue about that and m v or VJill bElt 
Then this cross examiner goes on to say, and debates with the 
witne ss, what ho was .doing when he ~~as dr~vin~,.,Noo2o The dopar~ure 
had bean made long slnce and there ls a blg dlrforence - and thls 
will possibly bo a mat t e r for argument later , - be tween the d.-.1Jlg e r 
that exists -vrhen wo were extracting from Nooll and the danger that 
existed at the timo of the fir e 9 because at the timo of the fir e , 
depend ing on the vi evT one takes of VJha t \<ras bo ing done, a bleeder 
was being drivon and a.lVJays when a bleeder is being driven there 
is a sit ua tion, not precisely identice~ perhap s but akin to this . 

HIS HONOR~ Is this Hhat you aro p utting, tta t -vrhat \vas beirg 
done ho r e was moroly a repetition of what was done at the 
commoncemvnt of these operations by the dr iving of a bleeder 
hGad ing? 

HR .REYNOLDS ~ Precisely soo There is very much c ommon ground, 
and if I may say so with respect; it is being hashed and rehashed 
whon it is not an issueo 

(Luncheon adjournment) 

MR .PARKINSON ~ Q.• In the last paragraph of yours t a t omont on Po8 
you say n in my oxporionce .:111 imp ori~ant function of an und er-manager 
is so to c ontrol operations as t o maintain an equilibrium bot-vmen 
the problems of ventilation and roof controlc Thoro can be 
mutual incons istency be t1:reen the optimum solutions of the tVJo 
pr oblems and a balance must bG strucko In some situations vent­
:iLation may bo the ma jor difficulty and~ vlhere roof conditions 
are good~ some concession in roof control may be able to be made 
in order m ove rc ome ita In 8 Right I believed the opp osite to 
be the c2 se? Wo had. serious roof problems but ventilation had been 
normale I believed that~ in tho interests of safety, ventilation 
could make some c oncession to roof controliJ I th orefcr e formed the 
conclusion that, for Q shor ·c t imo only<) the blo ed.er from the g oaf 
could be omitted.a Thi s appeared to be 'working satisfactorily 
and I be l ieve t hat it would have continued to dos o had it not been 
fo r a build-up of ITas which must have e ithe r been very sudden or 
e scape d detectiono 1 

Dlll tt you agree thero 1-.ras a couipromise on 
ventilation and roof cond itions on that occasion? A. As I said. 
the r e, yes'!) 

HE HONORQ, What was your answer? Ao The sarne as I made in the 
t cHms of the statGmGnt -· there vms a concession made in this . 

l'1R .PARKINSON: QQAnd v-rasn' t this comnromise effected and devised 
in the int e r e sts of coal pr oduction? Aa Coal production~ consi ~tont 
with or together with sa f o tyo 

Q.oi v1ant to takr2 you to pago 2 .. 

HIS HONOR: Q.,Before you leave that, you hoard Hr . Rcynold s sey b e for e 
tho luncheon adjmrnment that in fact 1-.rhat you vloro doing .ho r e was 
to drive a bleeder to tho goaf? A.o Ye s " 

Q. In.fact this was . part of tho rormal working, which had 
nothlng to do with the fir e o That was the substance of what H.r . 
Reynolds put· do you agr ee with t ht? a~ Yes, In my opinion, YE! S, 
Your Honor o 

5 

QeThat being the case, why do you say that you conceded some thing 
hero in ventilation? A.., I ara referring now to tho extraction of the 
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coal a s markod 11 on the plan on the Board. , where the blD ed.cr 
was dispensed with . 

Q. Is this what you are putting: do you mean you made 
in ventilation before the fire which had nothing to 
fir e ? ~.That is my opinion,yes . 

a cone e ss ion 
do with the 

Q. If that is the case why do you go on to say in your last 
sentence " This app eared to be \tJOrking satisfactorily and I believe 
that it would have continued to do so had. it not beonf or 2. build­
up of gas•? A. The r eason I SaY that is that the r e must have men 
a bui+d-up of gas at this point for the ignition to take place at 
a. ll. Tho r e a s on why I say that it had w:>rked satisfactorily was 
that it had \vorked satisfactorily in the provirus position it 
was in and also had workod satisfactorily up until the::· t imo of the 
i gnition on 9th Novembe r . 

Q. If that is your a nswe r, will you agree that when you made this 
sta temon t it read n I therefore formed tho c onclusion that for a 
shor t time only the bleeder from the g oaf could be replaced. by tr.e 
ble ed tube"? il . No , that was not my intention. 

Q. First cf all , whethe r it wr.ts your intention or m t , did you 
say it? A. Yew, I could have said it, I must have said it . 

Q. It is here in this ty p ing? A. Yes . 

Q.When was it changed? A. It was changed. this year . 

Q.:l.fter the inquiry started. and af t e r attentj_m vras drawn to this 
particular question of the l ack of a ble eder in tho g oaf and tre 
institution of a ble ed tube to the shunt; it was af t e r that that 

you made an alt eration to your st a tement , v.ras it '? A. I know of the 
conditions that 1,vere fo und at the t irm of tho fir e a nd also the 
r e sults of the i nv Gstigation before the and. of the year . 

Q.'ijJill you ple ase ansvwr my ~ue sticn? A. I take it the que stiQl is 
why did I change this stat ement ove r . 

Q.Did you change this statement after at t ention had been diroctod 
t o tho lack of a ble ede r f r om tho goaf : ~.nd the institution of a 
bl ood tube to the shunt? A. No, I -

Q.Did you change your statomont be fore attention was d.ra\.<m? Is that 
v-hat you ar \~ t olling me? A. . vJell , I al'1 not quito sure when the time s 

vrer e . I can toll you this: J:;,t the time I asked for the change 
to be made in the stat e ment it \.<ras when I went through it again this 
ye ar . I think it was only last we e k, and I asked. for it to be changed. 

Q.Will you agree with this: The part that you changed. \vas e, par t of 
the statement which implied that you had departed f r om the m rmal 
mothod of ventilation by a bleeder from the goaf and had substituted , 
for a short time you say , a bleed tubo to the shunt? A. Well , 
not actually. What I meant thc; re v1a s -

Q. Ba foro you t ell mo v1hat you meant, is that what your state mont 
implied? Will you a e;ree with that ? 1 ... It does imply t m t . 

~ . Toll me \vhat you me;mt? A. What I me ant was tfuis , that the S1unt 
ltself vrould be ventila ted by tho tube that wm t i n to the shunt but 
t he blGed heading it self was d ispensod with \vhile I was extracting 
thG coal out of the p illar marked 11 and that the actual replacement 
of tho blo ~d.er,with the air i.11.stead. of coming up A heading as it may 
~ormally, Wl thout the screen acr oss there would m w have tn c omo up 
rurther o.s tho gases expand that far as to fi 11 up the vo lumo e..nd bleed 
out through B heading. 
Q. You understand tho s ignificu.nce of this phrase you used , 11 The bleeder 
~rom the goaf could be replaced by the ble ed tube ~? A. Yes ,I rea lised 
lt when I ro a d it through arr3 that ' s why I had it alte red. 
Q. wor :·n 't your words car e fully chosen? A,The y didn 't actually conv e y 
my true me ru1ing whon tho stat~ment yas _mad ? • 
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HIS HONOR : Q. You made t his statement af t er discussions with 
your company!s solicitor?A. No. 

Q. You did not?A. No . 

Q. I am not sugge sting t hat words were put into your mouth by 
Mr. Snelson at all . Please understand that. What I am 
putting to you, and I \vant you to t ell me if this is so is this: 
This was a carefully pr epared statement; is that right?A. Ye s. 

Q. You t hought about wha~·_ you were saying and its implica tion? 
A. Yes . 

Q. You not only said what appeared originally in your statement 2 
you said this till this y ear until after t he inquiry had started 
and had gone for some thr ee we ek s and you al so said you were 
making some concession in ventilation to roof control?A. Yes . 

Q. You sa id both of those t hings. Wa s that or was that not 
t he position? Firs tly, t ha t you were making some concession 
in ventilation, a concession t o roof controlG Was tha t true 
or not true?A. I was true. 

Q. Was it or was it not true t hat you were r eplacing the bleeder 
f rom t he goaf by the bleed tube in the shunt?A. No, that is not 
true. 

MR . PARKIN SON: Q. On p .2 of your sta t ement a t t he commencement 
of t he second paragraph you said, 11 Hro Parkinsonu - and that is 
Vioc Parkinson - 11 the district check inspector c ame on an 
inspection on 9th November 1965. I me t him a t t he pi t top and 
he said that there wa s a complaint about gas in the Western 
Returns . I had been in the Wes t ern Re turns on the day pr eviously, 
tha t is, the 8th November. I had inspected the workings, 
talked to the deputy and the men in the section. No complaint 
had been made to me a bout gas . There wa s a complaint, however, 
about dust and tha t it was ge tting thicker-. I investigated 
this complaint and found tha t t he men were not using the 
equipment properly. 11 Did you know evidence ha s been given 
that employee s had compla ined a t different times and had been 
tran sferred from the ir jobs for sodoing? Do you know that 
evidenc e has been submitted?A. I have heard of this. 

Q. Do you have any knowledge whatsoever of that allega tion or 
those allega tions?A. No. 

Q. Would you agree tha t a compla int of excessively dusty 
conditions is a serious complaint and should be treat ed seriously? 
J.... . Yes . 

Q. What equipment wer e the men not using correctly?A. On the 
occ a sion of t he 8 th t he normal panel se t-up was to use two 
shut tle cars. One shu ttle car wa s down and I am not quite sure 
of the fault but it was not op erating on this day or a few days 
previous to this and a 14 B~Uo loader had been placed behind 
so tha t as the miner produced coal it emp tied the coal from t he 
back of the conveyor on t o the floor and the 14 BGU. loader 
t hen picked the coal up off t he floor and loaded it into the 
shut tle car, the r ea son for this be ing you could keep the machine 
going more consist ently when you have a place to dump the coal 
rather than wait for the shuttle car t o come back~ There wer e 
sprays mounted both on the miner itself to water the coal as it 
is being cut and a lso being transport ed up by t he conveyor 
and ther e are also sprays on t he 14 B.U. loader to water the 
coal as t he coal wa s being loaded. The 14 B.Uo - the sprays 
on t he 14 B.UG were no t be ing used. The floor conditions in 
this panel were slightly wet and s lightly slushy und erfoot and 
the addition of the wa t er from this the men though t would make 
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them even more so, more we tt er and slushi~ and be more 
uncomfort abl e to work in - this is t he r e8son they said they 
did not have t he spr ay s working on th13 14 B.U. The se were the 
spr ay s I asked t hem to oper a te. 

Q. Did you know there is not a grea t a ffinity be tween harmful 
dust in this particula r miner area down h~e and wat er?~. I 
don 1 t knovJ t ha t 

Q. Did you know t ha t onc e t he microh of dust become s a irborne 
the only way t o have it r emoved is by vent i lation and not by 
water?A. I think wha t I had in mind was to pr even t the dus t 
becoming a irborne r a t he r t han WL lawn af t er it became airborne, 
in t he case of load ing t he stuff up~ 

Q. Would you say it would be possible to pr event dust fr om 
becoming a irborne by the me thod t ha t wa s being adopted here, 
for instance, t he continuous miner loading on to the floor and 
it being picked up by the 14 B.U. or 11 B.U.?Ao Any op e r a tion 
of handling coal Y-' ill r e sult in some a irborne dust - I know the 
differ ence between using t he spr ay s and not using the spr ay s wa s 
noticeable 

HIS HONOR : \va s t her e so me r ela tionship be tween dust conditions 
and t he r emedy tru{en to avoid t hem and the fire? Wa s th ere 
some r el a tion between the dust conditions and t he methods used 
to remedy t hem and the fire in to which I am inquiring? 

MR . PARKINSON: No . I an ticipat ed t h2 t que stion but no from 
Your Honor and I did not anticipa t e it in the way you put it to 
me . I an ticipa t ed it in t he way of obj ec tion. The point I 
want to make is t ha t this is in a sta t emen t of evidenc e and there 
i s an implica tion here t ha t our members were not doing the 
corr ec t t hing. I sugg e st in this inquiry t he r e is a graver 
implication than this and I want to submit it now to Mr. Puddle. 

HIS HONOR ~ Submit the graver one ? 

MRe PARKINSON: Qc I am going to sugge st to you in vim-1 of the 
fac t tha t it is only adequat e ventila tion th~ can r emove a 
mic ron of dust tha t has bec ome a irborne , or has become su spended, 
I should say? in t he work place, t ha t t he ventila tion c onditions 
a t Old Bulli Colliery are inadequa t e gen er a lly?A. No. 

Q. Is it not a f act t ha t auxilia ry f ans w·er e introduced into 
Old Bulli Colliery for the purpose of trying to minimise the 
dus t?A. Yes, tha t is quit e true in part. I think this wa s 
gone through befor e but I would lik e to point out tha t with the 
auxiliary fan ventilation a s a ga inst the bra ttic e ventilation 
you can conduct ~ gr ea t er quan t i ty of a ir to the f a ce especi~y 
a s t he face become s ex t ended from your r e turn airways and a lso 
it ha s the advantages of when you increase t he volume of air 
being t aken out of the place 1 a s you say , it must decrea se t he 
dust per cubic foot, wherea s if you have got so much dust, one 
hundred particle s of the dust in one hundr ed cubic f ee t and only 
half a particle of dust in 200 cubic fe e t - also the auxiliary 
~an s themselve s have proved this up there to be a fact. Ther e 
ls a lot more in this, ina smuch a s it l eave s t he rib side exposed, 
wher ea s if you use brattice for on-line ventila tion tha t close s 
off any visual observa tion of the condition of thos e ribs a t all 
s? t ha t the men who are working in the panels have a grea t er 
Vlew ?f w~at is going on. blso 1 with bra ttic e be ing used, 
bra ttlc e ls r ecovered and used agaln. This is a dirty job 
a t be ~t after it has been used and the dust is sticking to the 
brattlce itself. Thirdly, and mainly, you hav e be tt er 
ventilation a t the face. 

Q. Are you aware tha t current dust counts at Bulli Colliery a r e 
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creating some conc ern to authorities?A. I have no contact with 
au thoriti e s. I don 1 t know which authorities you refer to? 

Q. l-i-re you aware of the Dust Re search Committee established t 
by the Joint Coal Board and the New South Wa l e s St a t e Governmen 
of which one of your sup erintendents, Mr. Grierson, is a member? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. Are you aware t ha t tha t particular committ ee is expressing 
some conc ern r ecen tly as to the t endency for grea t er dust 
counts in certain districts, in t his district in which Bulli 
Colliery is included? 

MR. REYNOLDS: I do not know whether Mr. Parkinson thought he 
might ge t an ob j ection to that. I have tried to r emain silent 
but I am afnaid I must obj ect t o tha t questionG 

HIS HONOR: Do you say it is irrel evant t o this Inquiry? 

MR. REYNOLDS: Ye s, whether tha t committ ee expres s ed conc ern 
is irrelevant to this Inquiry. 

HIS HONOR: I suppose I cannot be Bound by it unless I have 
evidence of t he facto 

MR. PARKINSON: Q. You have been a t Bulli Colliery for about 8 
or 9 yea rs?A. Sinc e 1957. 

Q. Nearly nine, isn 1 t it? Almost? Would you say ventilation 
generally at the colliery has de t eriora t ed in tha t period from 
you coming ther e to now?A. No. 

Q. But they have had t o introduc e auxiliary f an s since you came 
to the colliery?A. I don't know whether they had to or not- they 
have been introduced. 

Q. Do you agree tha t auxiliary f ans could be used in pillar 
ex traction?A. Ye s, in a lot of ca ses auxiliary f an s have been 
used in pillar extraction. Also I know of ca s e s wher e the 
auxiliary f an ha s been used for the driving of places and also 
where bra ttice ha s been used in pillar extraction itself. 

Qo With your knowledge of the mine , as Under-Mana ger, it is a 
very wide and ext en sive ar ea it covers?A. It is a very large 
colliery, yes. 

Q. The f act tha t you have five main intake and one main r e turn, 
would not you agree tha t it is an undeniable f act tha t if all 
auxiliary f ans wer e r emoved from Bulli Colliery tomorrow the 
mine would no long er be able to work as a r e sult of tota l 
ven tilating inadequacy? -

HIS HONOR: Q. The question is do you deny it in f act? Tha t is, 
if you r emoved all the auxiliary f ans from Bulli Colliery you 
could not work because of a lack of adequate ventila tion independent 
of those fans? 

That is the r eal question, isn 1 t it? 

MR. PARKINSON: If the fans were removed. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you deny that or do you agree with it? Are 
you able to say one way or the other?A. I think it is quite 
probable tha t pe rhaps quite a f ew of the face workings would 
not keep going but there would be sufficient going around the 
p~ace. There would be more air going into t he colliery now 
Wlthout the auxiliary fans running than ther e wa s nine years 
ago. 
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MR. CRANE: Q. As Under-Mana ger have you instanced any ca ses 
of timber j ammed in shuttle cars?A. Prior t o this incident, no. 

Q. You have had no piec e s of timber r eported to you in any 
of the shuttle cars under your control?A. No. 

Q. In your opinion wha t explana tion can you give for timber 
being found in the car?A. The position of t he pi ec e of wood 
tha t wa s jammed in it, it seems a s though it has been picked up 
off t he flo or itself. 

Q. Thrown up by t he wheels of t he shuttle car?A. It ~uld not 
have to be actually thrown up by t he wheels of the shuttle car, 
it could have been lying on t he roadway itself. The t hing is 
t he shuttle car road is by no means a l evel road, ther e is dirt 
or coa l on t he r oad itself and it is uneven right throughout 
and so a piec e of wood could be sitting on coa l and due to the 
dep t h of t he shuttle car track a t tha t particular point, 
perhaps t hr ough floor breakage or spilla ge or some other r ea son 
tha t could be high enough to become pulled into the position 
it wa s in just by virtue of lying on t he floor. 

Q. So in your opinion it could mve been picked up at the 
commenc ement of t he shift and during one of those trips with the 
payload?A. I could not sa y whe ther it would have been with the 
payload or not. It could have been running empty or filled 
but it ha s definite ly been picked up while t he car ha s been in 
mo tion. 

Q. How many trips would t he car have made on tha t da y in que stion? 
A. I t h i nk it wa s six - five or six comple t e trips. 

Q. In t ha t time , from the commenc ement could you e stimate what 
time t he car would commenc e doing those trips?A. Ye s, the 
commenc ement of t he shift is somewher e round about t en to eight 
so had it been t he second shuttle car - ther e a r e two shuttle 
cars - it would be somewher e be t ween t en to eight and 8 o'clock 
would be t he first trip with the shuttle car. 

Q. Actually ther e would be a good portion of time when t he cars 
would be dead and would not be driven a t a ll?A. Ye s, t ha t is 
eo rrec t. The ac t ual r unning time of t he car would be s omev1her e 
r ound a bout, I woul d say , f ive or six minute s ever y t en or 
el even minute s, - some thing l e ss t han . ... · half the time itself 
would be spent in travel l ing. 

Q. In your opinion do you think you would have t o have a 
protracted period of running to crea t e friction nec e ssar y to 
gener a t e a spark? -

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you know the an swer t o t ha t?A. No, I could no t 
say. I r eally wouldn't know. 

MR . CRANE : Q. You wer e pr e sent a t t he colliery when t he 
pr evious ignition occurred, were you not?h. Ye s. 

Q.. Wa s t ha t an ignition caused by a spark? A. Ye s . 

Q. Tha t was wha t we might call a r eal live spark?A. Ye s. 

Q. ~ understand it wa s a f l ash from a welder?A. Ye s. 

Q. To your knowledge wa s thi s pa rticular f ire c a used by a fla sh? _ 

HIS HONOR: Which fir e? 

MRb • CRANE: Q. This incident we are r ef erring t o. Wa s it caused 
Y a f la sh?A. I could no t t e l l you. 
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Q. You have no knowledge?A. No, no knowledge. 

HIS HONOR: Q. While on the subject of the piece of timber in 
the shuttle car brakes, there is something I wanted to ask: 
What effect on the actual braking would a piece of timber have? 
A. Very little, I would think. 

Q. It would not assist the braking?A. I would not think so. 
There would not be very much either way - you have two 25 horse­
power motors driving these - these are traction motors and the 
force exerted by the piece of wood jammed where it was would have 
little effect. It wo uld have some effect but it would have 
very little effect on the actual turning or non-turning of the 
disc itself. 

ijiS HONOR: I asked for the rea son that one has to rule out 
the possibility of a piece of wood being deliberately placed 
t here by somebody. I was wondering about it. The only person 
who would would be someone who may say "This w·ill increase the 
braking capacity of the shuttle caru. I have settled that. 

MR. MURRAY: Q. On p.719 you said that after the fire had been 
discovered you had seen the mechanical engineer and sent him to 
obtain tools and equipment before you could tap into the 2-inch 
water line in order to connect fire fighting apparatus?A. I'm 
not quite sure if I said tha t. 

Q. I will r ead it to you, if you like, ni sent J. Brown, 
mechanical engineer, to ge t pipe fittings, tools and hoses 
to fight t he fire so that we could tap into the 2-inch water 
line 11 • A. Yes, that is right. 

Q. So the set-up was tha t although water was being reticulated 
into the work place it wa s ~at possible without sp ecial tools, 
fittings and work effort to attach a fire hose inby of 38 phone? 
~. The fire hose we use on our belt - the fire fighting attach­
ments - t here were no attachments for hoses in the panel. 

Q. There wa s nowhere you could a ttach a fire hose inby of 38 
phone without some special work?A. Hoses could be attached -
the fire hose I am referring to was along the belt itself. 
Fire hoses ar e sta tioned every so often along it and these are 
instant snap couplings. 

Q. At this work plac e there was no bel t, wa s there?A. No. 

Q. The nea r est place, we have been told, where there was any 
fire hose was at 38 phone some hundreds of yards outside of the 
loading place, for instance?A. Yes, tha t is right, fire hoses 
were there. 

Q. There was no place inby of 38 phone where you could attach 
a fire hose to the water reticulation then?A. There wa s a place 
to a ttach a hose. You coQld have got one to the face there 
because water was r equired at the face and Barfel hoses, which 
are flexible hoses, form part of the r e ticulation system to the 
face. The se hoses the mselves could be used as fire hoses. 
The hoses used on the fire I take it would be a fire hose. 
That is what I am trying to ge t at. 

HIS HONOR: Q. They are not normal fire hoses?A. No. 

Q. They are like a garden hose?A. Yes, about an inch inside 
diam&lter. 

MR. ~iY: Q. These are the ones used on the miner?A. Yes. 

Q. Putting those aside, Mr. Brown had to in fact go and ge t tools, 
and tap into the 2-inch main before a fire hose could be ngot 
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operationu as they say in the Fire Brigade?A. Yes, the tools in 
t he panel were not accessible, the smoke stopped us getting. to 
the tools but ther e were no fittings or fire hoses as such lll 
the panel. 

Q. Do you see , a s a practical mining man 7 any difficulty in 
having fire hoses and couplings on hand ln a working place such 
a t 8 Right?A. Noo 

Q. You have told us you went into the place on 3rd November? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. I forg e t - correct me if I am wrong - you did carry out a 
t est for ga s on the 3rd, did you?A. I t e sted at the f ace. I 
did not t e st in the shunt. 

Q. The 3rd wa s the l a st time you ~isited 8 Right prior to the 
accident?A. Yes. 

Q. There were a number of people in the ordinary course of their 
work carrying out tests for ga s in this work plac e?A. Ye s. 

Q. Le t us t ake the three shifts prior t o the accident including 
the day shift on which it took place: there would have been 
yourself who visited the pl ace per haps weekly and who usually 
carried out a t e st for ga s?A. Ye s. 

Q. Using - ? A. An oil f lame saf e ty light. 

Q. And, some times, a methanometer?A. No, because as I sa id 
befor e I have not used a methanomet er on t he f ace wha tever in 
8 Right. 

Q. Did you ever t e st for ga s with a me thanome t er in 8 Right?A. No. 

Q. Ther e would be your i mmedia t e deputy on the da y shift, Mr. 
Wr i ght?A. Ye s. 

Q. He c arried an oil flame saf e ty lamp?A. Ye s. 

Q. As wel l a s a me thanometer?A. He only c arried a methanome t er 
in carrying out monthly r e turn inspection r equirements, the 
monthly ga s r eadings in the r e turn s. 

Q. He spent half hi s time each shift in t he actua l 8 Right 
working pl ac e?A. I don 't think it would be quite t ha t long. Mr. 
Wrigh t had 8 Right, r ed panel plus the gen er a l ar ea of 1 North 
panel to look aft er. 

Q. He spent three hours a shift in 8 Right?A. No, the commencing 
underground on t he shift, by t he time they ge t into the pl ace 
would be r ound about t en t o eigh t and, similarly, they finish 
about t en past two. Normally he would have to a lloca t e l abour 
fo r G. U. work outby of this section and then make an i n sp ection 
of 8 Right, an inspection of r ed pan el and any other pa rt of the 
l North he wan t ed to have a look a t t ha t particular day and 
would split it up accordingly and I wo uld think if Mr. Wrigh t 
spent two hours in any one panel tha t would be a bout a ll he would 
spend in any one day. This is an aver age . One day he may spend 
t hree or f our hours. 

Q. He wo uld spend a coupl e of hours in 8 Right on t he aver a ge? 
A. Ye s, somewher e r ound a bout it. 

Q. lmd would certa inly make one t e st for ga s 'in each work plac e ? 
A. He would more t han likely make a t es t for ga s in t he wor k 
fac e , ye s. 
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Q. Each work place though, wouldn't he?A. There is only one work 
place, the other is standing place. 

Q. Certainly Mr. Wright in the ordinary course of the day would 
make at l east one test for ga s in 8 Right panel?A. He would do 
it fairly consistently but of course I'd imagine there must be 
some time s when he would not do it. 

Q. Is t here an Overman on the day shift: or was t he r e on the 
day in question?A. There is no overman ~n the section tha t does 
any inspections, no. 

Q. The next person who would t e st for ga s would be the deputy 
on the shift, Mr. Stewart?A. Ye s. 

Q. Also the miner-driver, the late Mr. Stewart?A. Ye s. 

Q. So that ther e would be on that shift three people who carried 
out routine t ests for ga s each shift, Mr. Wright and the two 
Mr. Stewarts?A. I would not tie down Mr. Wright to this. He 
normally would but I would not say he would test every day. 
Otherwise, tha t is correct. 

Q. On the next shift, the afternoon shift there wa s an under­
manager - or assistant under manager - Mr. Eager?A. Yes. 

Q. He had an oil flame safe ty lamp?A. Yes. 

Q. The over man?A. Yes. 

Q. What is his name?A. Mr. Cochrane - Jim Cochrane. 

Q. He wa s also equipped with an oil f lame saf e ty lamp?A. Yes. 

Q. There was the deputy on tha t shift, Mr. Cambourn?A. Yes. 

Q. And the miner-driver?A. Ye s. 

Q. They would have ordinarily carried out sowe tests for gas? 
A. No, Mr. Eager would not be in this panel every night of the 
week. 

Q. Certainly in the five days prior to the accident Mr. Eager 
and you would have expected to have carried out some tests for 
gas?A. I think so. I thought you wer e referring to a daily 
inspection , or shift inspection. 

Q. I was originally. So, Mr. Eager would check some time during 
the week , the overman would t e st for ga s each shift?A. Mostly, 
yes. 

Q. The deputy would check in the ordinary way described, as would 
the miner driver?A. Yes. 

Q. There is the night shift, or maintenance shift. 
overman in charge?A. Ye s. 

Q. There is no deputy-or under-manager?A. No. 

There is an 

Q. Mr. Ryan is the over man. There is the night shift deputy, 
Mr. Walker?A. Ye s. 

Q. Is there any person who fulfils the function of the miner driver 
as fa r as carrying a lamp is concerned?A. Ye s. 

Q. ~o there would be three people on tha t shift who would 
ordlnarily t e st for gas?A. There would h ave been two -

Q. Sometimes three ?A. Sometime s ther e would be three. 
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Q. In relation to the five days or the week previouslyt there 
may well have been 12 to 14 people who in the course or their 
dutie s, be they staff or workmen, who would have checked for 
ga s in this section?A. Yes. 

Q. And possibly yourself or even Mr. Stone may also have carried 
out tests from lst November up until 9th?A. I carried out one 
t est. I cannot say if Mr. Stone carried out any. 

Q. But Mr. Stone was in the habit of carrying a lamp when he 
went into the mine, wasn't he?A. Mostly, yes. 

Q. Are you able to tell me what is k~own now of the composition 
of ga s which emits from the fissur e s of the goaf in 8 Rigpt­
which continually issues?A. It is a mixture which has been found 
since - (interrupted) 

Q. I r ealise tha te Are you able to say what it consists of? 
A. Not in percentages, no. It is a very strong - it is a mixture 
of C02 and methane but as to percentages I could not t e ll you. 

Q. It is a fixed mixture, isntt it? It is a fixed proportion of 
C02 with a fixed proportion of methane?A. No, I donrt know tha t. 
I could not tell you what the - the only way you rould t ell 
what the mixture is is take a sample and analyse it or have it 
analy sed by a chemist and look at the figur e s and you have the 
mixture for that particular time of testing. The only way to 
find out is to take r epetitious tests at time intervals, et cetera, 
and compare it. 

Q. Is it your view the composition of ga s varies, which emits 
from the goaf in 8 Right?A. I don't know a t the moment, but all 
I can say is that ther e was no CH4 detected by anybody prior to 
the incident. 

HIS HONOR : Q. Is tha t strictly accurate: there wa s no CH4 
detected prior to the incident?A. In the gas emitting from the 
goaf. You may have henrd me say inflammable gas had been 
de t ec t ed in the 8 Right workings during the development. Tha t 
was during the driving of the 3 headings, A, B and C and their 
cut-throughs. As I said, these were isolated cases of very 
small quantities and wer e quite r eadily dispersed. 

Q. They would not be goaf ga ses since ther e wa s no goaf formed? 
A. No . 

MR. MURRJS: Q. We have heard of the so-ca lled 11 simula tiontt of 
the set-up, for want of a better word, which existed at the 
time of the fire. Apart from t e sts carried out in a ssocia tion 
with tha t so-called simulation, wha t tests, or what r e sults of 
tests for methane have occurred in this work place?A. Ther e were 
t ests following the simulation of the set-up as it existed before 
and they showed CH4 could be r eadily detected- ( i nterrupted) 

Q. I am a sking you · '~o put tha t aside: apart from the days of 
the simulated t e sts what other results have been obtained 
by t e sting for methane with the oil flame safe ty lamp or the 
me thanometer in 8 Right?A. Methane has been detected the r e a t 
the goaf edge . 

Q. With?a. With C02. 

Q. With what device?A. With the MeS.A. In some places you 
cou~d.pick it up with the oil flame saf e ty lamp, tha t is in 
cavltles and things like this but we turned the air-flow around 
at this time and had the air flowing around down the goaf, down 
the fall in No. 3 cut-through into 9 heading and c oming back up 
along there. 
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Q. And would it be fair to say that all people from yourself 
down were fairly complacent about the likelihood of finding 
inflammable gas in 8 Right up until the day of the fire?A. We 
had not detected CH4 there. These tests were still being 
carried out all the time, on a routine inspection. 

Q. Of a routine nature: No one r eally, as far as you know, 
expected to find inflammable ga s in 8 Right, did they?A. No, 
I don't think they did expect to find it, but if it had. been 
there it should have been picked up. 

Q. Speaking for yourself, you did not expect to find 
inflammable gas in 8 Right?A. I had not found it before but that 
did not say I would not expect to find it. I really did not 
think it was there but I tested just the same and this is the 
r ea son for testing these things, to see if there was any 
detectable quantity of ga s present. 

Q. As f ar as you know that was the attitude of your subordina tes, 
Mr. Wright didn't really expect to find CH4 in the workings 
ei ther, did he?A. I could not tell you what his thoughts were. 

MR. MURRAY: Perhaps he might tell us. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you tell me you did not t e st around the shunt? 
b.. On the 3rd? 

Q. Yes. 
t e sted. 

A. No, I did not. I did ask whether it had been 

Q. Who did you a sk?.J~. It would be Mr. Stewart, the day shift 
deputy. 

MR. MURRAY: Q. When you say in your evidence you gave instructions, 
having given the orders which resulted in the work described in 
Exhibit JJ, you gave instructions to your subordinates to watch 
out for gas. Do you r ecall that?A. No - in so many words, yes. 
I told Charlie Stewart to keep his eye on it. 

Q. You told Mr. Wright, did you not?A. Well--

Q. You said it?A. Yes, I did. 

Q. And you expected Mr. Wright to t ell Mr. Eager the other staff 
man on the other shift?A. Yes. 

Q. Because they are the people to whom you look for the super­
vision of actual work on the spot?A. Yes. 
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MR .MURRAY: Q.They wore your repr e sentatives in the a ctual working 
placo s? A. Yes . 

~.'rhey sup ervise the work of the Deputie s and tho Deputius 
suporvise the work of the men , is that right? A. I beg yours? 

Q.Tho sta.ff men supervise the work of the depu tie s, ar.J.d the 
deputies supervise the war k of the men? A. Yes . 

Q,. You also s aid in e vid onc~ that you r~g <.lrde~ the d eput :Es as 
be ing in chargo of p roduct1on? A.. Part1 ally 1n charge of 
production , ye s. 

Q.Just t o c ompl e t e it,Mr.Wright for instance had a full range of 
responsibilities covering producti on , saf oty, a s well as the 
supervision of what th e men did? A. Yes , ove r the t op of Mr . Stevrart, 
a s ·deputy. 

Q.Mr . Wright and Mr .Egar were t he people vrho made decisicn s in 
yo ur place about changes in t m system of pr oduction and so on? 
A. What is that? 

Q. ~bout change s in t h3 11lays j_n which coal was to bo won, such as 
tho repositioning of the miner? .A. Yes, the gen eral Jaycn t was 
sot up down there . This is passed on t o tho other subse q uent 
peopl e and tho general plan was adhe red to where practicable. 

Q. But ru1y decisions such as the r epo sitioning of machinery or the 
changing of the wheeling road would be made in your place by 
o ith~r Mr.Wright or Mr.Egar bec aus e th ey were tho men who had 
tho authority? A. Yes , they wou:W. have had authority t o cb this, 
but they didn ' t in fact do it. 

Q. I be g your pardon? A· I said I was the pe r s oh vb o gave this -

Q. I am n ot saying f or a moment anything to detract from \vhat you 
sa i d . I am merely saying that Mr, \~right r1..11d Hr .Egar 1,ver e staff 
men in tho mine with yo ur authority ? A. Ycs , that is right. 

Q.When yo u wer o not ther e ? A. Yo s. 

Q.~ummarising , I suggest t o you that of thG t wolve ~ f ourteen 
people whom we now lm.ow must have Ce_rriod. ou t tests, what I ant 
putting toy ou is that these are the possibilities g Either they, 
none of you, tested at all - this is academic really, in your mind. 
I am not sugge sting that is so? ( No ans\ver) 

HIS HONOR ~ You aro not being asked to agreo that you we r e lying, 
but . to take over my function and agroe that the possibili tio s 
ar e those, on the evidence. What is be ing p ut to you E that you 
aro be ing use d as a s ounding board, do y ou understand? A. Yes. 

Q.Academically s peaking it is be ing put to you that it is possibJe 
that you. and what tlio.o othe r ·witnesses are saying, that t hey t es t ed 
fo r gas , are lying whon whoy say this. You would agree that is 
academic? A.I will .'"lns,.;or f or one pars on only. 

MR . MURRAY: Q.'ltiell, it is possible that you did not test at all? A. 
Well , I did tost. 

Q. The s e c ond possibility is that the t e sts we r e carried out 
incompet ently or in a grossly nogligent ,.;ay and thoroforo had no 
chance of success? ( No answer) 

~ RE~OLDS~ I soe one difficulty he r o . Wo can find easily in a 
quest1on lik6 that , diff iculty ·Hhen the Under - manager admits it is 
~possibility his employees wer o lying. Your Honor will see this. 
l understand the exe rcise but I submit it is hardly fair. 
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MR . MURRAY~ I will withdraw the first two pos sibilitio s . 

HIS HONOR ~ Are you going to ba.se another quo stion on this? 
Oth(; r"\vis e it all probably r e sts with mo . 

HR . MURRAY: Yes , excep t that "\vhen I am addr e ssing lat e r I do not 
want it t o b e said the r e was no evidence about this . All I am 
seeking to do is to have fr om this practical mining man who does 
have s ome position of authori~ and ex perienc e , looking at the 
benefit of vJhat I am putting to him and saying whether ther e is 
anY r eason why it is not pes sible from the p:racti cal point of vio '"' ' 
but a s it is a matt e r ot argumen t up on the evidence I will 
save it till addr e sses later. 

HR . SULl iVAN ~ Q. His Honor askad you s ome questions about when 
this stat emen t o f yours v!as prepared . First o f all it was pro~ 
par ed by the company 1 s solicitor, was it? A. That vr a s that (indic -
a ting ) . 

~.Did you have a numbe r of sessicn s with him? A. Two I think. 

Q.Did you bring a lon g r eports and trn t type of thirg ?A. No . 

Q.Did y ::m h a ve any r eports ar notes or noto books relating to the 
VG.rious a ctivities in 8 Right? A· Well , prior to my s oeing Mr. 
Snelson I was told that I would be seeing him and I tiDu ght I 
had gon e thr ough ev e rything I could think of be for e see ing h im . 

Q. But you did n ot take n ot e books along with you? A. No . 

Q. Wer e othe r people present \vhen you were hav.i.qs your discussions 
with him , at e ither of these s eries of discussl ons? A. The one 
time , no . I think Mr . Ll oyd Pear c e vTQS i.YJ. the room for a f ew 
minute s ths first time . 

Q.Did he-:; take part in thG d:is cussion? J.. No . 

Q. He is an official of the company , is he no t? .H •• Yes, he is the 
Supe r in t endon t . 

Q.Ther e w,J r e two alt e rations in it which you told His Honor have 
be en made r ecen tly, is t ha t right? A. Yes . 

Q. Before thosEJ alt e rations we re mado how long ago \vas it b i:3for ::; 
this comp l eted stat ement was pr oparod? A. I had the stat 6oo nt 
prior t o 24-th Docembe r . What day I go t it on I couldn ' t tol l you . 

Q. How much prior to 24-th Docembor , a weok or -

MR . REYNOLDS: It was marked for i dentification quite oarly on . 

MR .SULLD!At'\J: That wo uld be on ths last dc.y of the sit t i ngs l a s t 
Y oar , wo Lll d it no t ' 

HIS HONOR ~ I am told it \vas marked on 22nd December , 1965. 

HR.SULLIVAN: Q. Appar en tly it \vas handed irto the court on 22nd 
DCJ cember , is t hat right ? ( No answer) 

HIS HONOR ~ You may tako it that tha t is right . 

l'ffi . SULLIVAN~ Q. Did you c omp l e t e it tho d<Jy b efor o? A. I had seon 
Hr . S.nols on the day be foro the 22nd - when I got it back I an not 
sure but it wa s be f or e tho24th. 

Q. A.s 
wore 
Har e:: 

far as this is concerned afte r it camo ba ck from Hr. Sne ls ·:m , 
the re any alte rations made in it again by ycu? A. I t h ink thor o 
a few a lterat i ons madG in th3 ord e r of work i ng , the order 
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in the dr i ving of pla c o s down in t he 8 Right p anel it s<=:l f, 
nd t he othe r alte r a tions w<=:ro the one s t ha t are on t re l ast pag e 

~o-vr , and I br ought those up t h i s year. 

Q .\~crG there any alt e r a tions made in t llo soction dGA.l i ng with 
Hr . Vic tor Par k i non ' s i nspoction of woste r n re t urns? A. I t hink 
thoro wc.. s. On the original one I t hink I said the f :ir s t t ime I 
savl Mr .Snc lson I t ol d him tha t I t ho ught I 01:ly had an oi l flame 
saf e t y l i gh t but I d i d have a mo t han ome t or wlth me , and I changed 
that a bout af t e r wards. 

Q. You als o al t er od, did yo u n ot t ho s ection whi c h rufo rrod t o Mr. 
Parkins on having a me thanometor~ A. No , Hr. Par k i ns on d id ham a 
mG thanometer • 

. • Arc you swearing t ha t Hr. Par kinson had a mt: than ome tcr? ··. Wall, 
I have . a vo r y d istinct i mp r e s sion that ho had a mothanome t er. 

Q. Are you swearing that Mr. Par k i n s on had a mo thm 0me t or, t hat is 
1vhat I am putt ing t o you? A.To tho b e st of my kno;,~rl odge he had a 
mo thanomete r on t his & y . 

Q. You do not men t i on that ho had an oil fl arno s a f e t y lamp in this 
statement. Did he hav e an oil flame s a f e ty lamp ? A. Yes, 
m ~orould have had an oil flame safe ty l amp . 

Q. You do not montion t hat ? A. No , I didn't. 

Q,Aro y ou aware tha t on the 21st, Cow1sel r Gp r os ontirg tho c ompany, 
and I t h inlc you wore pr e s ent, cros s--examined :t-1r. Par k inson · a bout 
this i nspec t ion? 1~. I wa s m t pr esont. 

Q. Very well, I wi ll n ot pr oc eed with that . You a r e prepar ed t o 
swear only t o an i!J:~J r e ssion that Hr.Parkinson had a mothanome ter, 
is that r ight? (No answer) 

MR . REYNOLDS: He said 11T o my kro wl edgo " he had one. 

MR .SULLIV.-lli : Q.Wha t i s the be st of your krowled ge ? A. That he 
had on e . 

·Q. What do you moan by the b o s t of y our mow l e dge ? A. \tJel+, 
he t e ste d wi th a met hanome ter, I thought, in B omd C -he adings. 

Q.1fua t I am putting to you is that yo u thought he t e sted witha 
~othanome ter becaus e he discover e d inflammable gas, and you thou~ht 
1t c oul d not be d i s c ov ered with an oil ·flame so.fety lamp , d id n t 
you? A.I f ound gas in an oil flame sa f e ty lamp on 9th Noverrb e r, 

HIS HONOR: Q.Inflwmnable gas? a.Inf lamrra ble gas. 

HR. SULLDTAN : Q.You d o no t mention trn t in your r eport, t hat you 
f~ LUld it lvit h e. n oil f l ame sa fe ty lamp. You d id in fac t find it 
Wlth a n oil f lame lamp , d id y ou? A. I f ound it w ith a ·methanomoter 
al s o. 

Q. .Ye s, but you f ound it vritn an ail flama s afety lamp ? A. Yes. 

Q.In that st a t ement you did appear t o draw a distinction be tween 
tho mo than omc t e r and t he oil fl ame s a f e ty l amp , did you nt? A. 
No ~ J:t really might appear that way but wha t I would liffi t o say is 
t h1s: When Mr. Par k ins on mad e h:E inspection on thG day o f the 9th 
he was accomp anied by thG loca l che ck inspe ctor, Mr.Ted Taylor 1 

wh~ always has an oil flamo s nf e ty lamp . This is n ormal proceduro 
and t he r eason - ~tre ll, I don 't r e a l ly know why but the oil fl ame 
sa.f ~ ty .lamp is a l ways used by- thG che ck i n s pector or by m:; s o t o 
me 1 t 1s qui t o cloar tha t an. oil fl aJne s a f e ty lamp would havo e ithe r 
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beGn in the possossion of the District che c k inspe ctor or oftte 
local check insp ector when this inspection was made . 

Q • .A:'b. a11y rate the fact romair:s that whether he had a methanometer 
or not ther e was still sufficient gas in the roof ther e , :irr -
~ a111!Ila61o gas , to be detected. w·ithan oil flame safety lamp? A. 
In B heading, y os . 

Q.You have told us on a number of occasions that inflamnlble gas 
had not been detected in 8 Right during the extraction of 
pillars . I think you have told us that at l east 3 timos, is that 
right? A. Yes . 

Q • . As Under-manager you get the reports from the deputie s, do you 
no t? A.Y~ s. 

~.And you counter - sign them? fo• Yes . 

o. Have you any recolle ction of inflammable gas being found in 8 
Right during the time \IThen pillars were being extracted? A. No . 

Q.Did. you hear Mr .Walker' s evidence? A. No. 

Q.5th Octoher,l965 was a time when pillars were being extracted, 
"\•Ta s it not? A. Yes . 

Q.Would you have a look at that report of Hr . Walker 1 s? (Part of 
Exhib it F shown) You have count er-sign e d that, have you not? A. 
Y.e s. 

c,.That shows inflammnble ga s in 8 Right,does it not? A. Yes . 

Q.and. in the goaf a.roa, doesn ' t it? A. Yes . 

CJ.6th October \ITaS a time when pillars wer e being extracted? A. Yes . 

Q. Wou.l d you. have a look at that? (Part of Exhibit F shown) 
That vras a time when pillars \ver a being extracted? A. Yes . 

c~ .l4 th Octobe r - do you want to l ook at it or will you take my 
word f or it? A. I will take your word for it. 

Q.l4th Octob e r wa s a time when p illars were being extracted. 
I nflammabJa gas on the goaf odge , 27th October . That was a time 
vlhen p illars were being extracted, was it not ? ll. . Yes . 

Q.InflaLwab l e gas in miner place? 4th November 1965? A.Y~s . 

Q.Can you tell me why this onu was not countor-signedZNo answer) 

HR . RK:lNOID S ~ Is ther e inflammable gas on 4 th November? 

l1R . SULLIV AJ.\T ~ I am sorry. 

Q. HoweVl3 r, you would see ull these report s, would you m t? .A . Ye s . 

,,.Are you prepared to say novr that the r e was m inf lam..nttb l e gas 
~ot c ct l' d in 8 Right afte r the commcmcemont of p illar ex t raction , 
ln view of those reprts? A. No . 

l,.That means then insofa r as your stateiiD nt d(J) Ends on the 
non~ existence of inf l ammablo grl s in 8 Right , it is a complet e 
mis concep tion, is it not? A. That is true . 

·And as Under-manager, I am going to put to you that vou had 
~nother source of irr ormation as to the p r e sence of mcth~ in 

Right - the monthly returns? A. That's corr ect . 
828. J . Puddle , xx. 



Q.And they showed a d.oubling of the metha.m content, did th~ 
not? A. From el to .2, yes. 

Q.~d you had those reports? A.Yes • 

. c,,rn view of the fact that those reports show inflammable gas 
on the goaf edge where did you think that tho inflammable gas 
vv uld be coming from? A. It ip.ust have been coming from the inby 
workings. 

Q• From the goaf? 
right. 

It was found on the gm f Erlge? A. That is 

~ .It must have been coming from the goaf -wasn't it? A.Yes 

Q.And it was in those circumstances that ycu decided toe xtract 
No.ll before you drove the blo eder ho ading No .13? A. Yes. 

Q.A complete departure from the previous practice? A. Yes. 

Q,And you know m w from those rep er ts til a.t whe ther you took any 
notice of them or not, you had been handed r Gpor ts which showed ths 
79 sence of inflammable gas; is that right? A.Yes. 

Q. I 1-ran t to draw your attention to somo thing with which I a.rn goi!g 
. to put t o you you wer e familiar , and that was the setting 
up of auxiliary fan vsntilation ·1n the Gre en panel around November 
1960, b2cause I think you have mentiore d it a couple of tioo s in 
your e vidonce. Ym we r e Under -manager when tk ::,u:i:iliary fans vrore 
se t up in the Gr een p ru1e l about Novembor,l960? A.Ye s. 

Q. And you wer e intimately concorned, a s Under-manager, with the 
s e tting up of those f&~s, we r e you not? A.Yes. 

Q• You wer e pr e sent at the discussions tJebvoen t h o then manager and 
Hr . Huir, wer e you m t? A. Some of tho discuss ions • 

• Part i cularly t hose -vrhich \ver o c onductGd. in the parti <U lar area 
wher e the fans were s e t up ut the fac e and a t the working place? 
A. Yos, I -vras pr e sent at some of them. 

Q.(Approaching witne ss ~~d showing docmnent) 
ha s a copy of this 1 t he Departmental filo. 
-vro r king , was it not? 1.\ .• Yes. 

' .Do you r cmGmber that ono? A.Yes. 

I think over,ybod.y 
It wa s a t woooading 

Cl . Wit h the in take airway on tho l oft hand sid o f a cirg the g oaf am 
thu r -.J t Llrn airway on thJ right hand side f a cing the goaf, and on 
t hat oc ca &on the wor kings ws r e t aken out to the right of the two ·· 
headings, facing the goaf again, facing inby. Is that right?A.Yos. 

Q. This is the r ep er t of 25th Nov emb er 1960 a.nd I show you Jvir. 
Ryanrs ske tch. It may ba , I do rt)t kmw, but it is a ske tch, 
the departmental number on it being 906e. Do you remember wha t 
happoned ther e? The first extra ction tha t wa s mad e wa s blocking 
off the intake airway a butting th3 goaf, \-ras it n:t? A.Yes. 

Q.With a brattice stopping, and then blocking off tbs r e turn a ir­
\vay in No.2 with a brattico stopping? 4. Yes. 

Q, You r emembe r \vha t happen ed on tha t occa& on , do you m t? A. 
Yes,gas was omitted from the goaf. 

Q.You got infla.mnn ble ga s on the working side of the bra tticG 
st opping, d i d you m t? A.Yes. 
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,n.And you r emember that, and you lmew it when you put this 
bra t ice stopp ing up in thl s heading, did. you nt? A.I did lmow of 
it~ ye So 

Q None thele ss, despite the f act that you knew when that was done 
i~ the Green panel you got a dangerous concentration of inf~mmable 
gas , you did it~ didn 1 t you? A.We did have -we had inflammab~ 
gas on the ed ge of the screm. Whether it was a dangerous 
accumul ation or ID t I . ·earl' t r ecallat the momont, but there was gas 
de tected the r o o 

r; .y0 u kn ew about it at the tioo you pu.t up this bratti. ce st opping? .... 
A· Yes . 

HIS HONJ R ~ (~.This r ep ort r eads 11Up to 2% of inf lammablo gas was 
found i n the vicinity of the brattice st op ~ing e r e cted in No .2 
head i ng . Do you say that that was a cond itlon which it was dosirab~ 
to r epoat from tho point of view of safety? A. No, it is ID t 
des irablo to be there, but 2% of CH1~ .... men a re still allowed t o 
v.rorlr. i n the area. Men are wi thdravm at 2t%o 

~~.Do you km w any particular time when that 2% may become 2t or 3(? 
What is your guarant ee that it is going to remain at 2% or less? A. 
You have no guarantee. 

MR . SULLIV .A!."V ~ r, oJ\nd if you '\ifere not sur e of the per den tage vb en you 
made this s ot-up in the head ing, all you had to do -vras to go back 
to t he Colliery clerk's off ice and turn up this file, is it not? 
A. This is tho first time I have seen this vrritten d cro,~rn- tm first 
I Y~ew of it being in the Colliery fil es was since I have be en 
her G this wook . 

r~ . But you h ave been Under-manager t lwre since 1959 have you not? h... 
Ye s. 

C'4.And you wer e c oncerne d -vlith till placing of auxiliary fans ti1.rough­
out your time a s Under -manager ? h . Yes. 

r. .And you had been p res ent at discussions with Departmntal 
representatives a bout fans? Ao Yes .. some d.iscussi ons • • 

Q. Would it be fair to say t hi si that auxiliary fans had n ever been 
put i n in any panel in that Co liery withm t you havirg something 
to do with it, since 1959? A. Tha t would be corr ect. 

r,. It would be qui to fair to say that, wouldn 1 t it? A. Yes. 

~4.Including t hi s one in Green panel? A. Yeso 

QeAnd also you \ATGre the one man at the Colliery who was c ompletely 
familiary with the departmental r equir omont s as to auxiliary f ans, 
wer e you not? A. Yese I would have thought so, yes. 

Q.And Mr .Stono r elied on you , in putting them in, to carry out 
t ~e Departmental r oquirermnts, did he rP t? A. Yes. 

C.· And in the case of the s e fans har-:; you did not carry out tlu 
Dep~r tmontal r e quirements, did yo u? l., As far as I know the 
pos1tion i s just the same as it was in Green, with .. ono ·. ·exception 1 
that thG goa:f area would be om pillar further away. This i s the 
eff ect of driving the heading itselfe 

Q.A vory important one 7 isn 1 t it? Ao No, I can I t r eally s ee it. 

Q.And _did you regard the fact that you had no a~thoriiy to mc:nnt 
~ans 1n s eries as being an. important requirermnt? A.No, I didn't 
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r~.But you know you had 113Vor b~en a~thorised by the Dopar~mont 
to mrunt auxiliary fans in s erleS d.ldn 1 t you? A. Yes, I dld knO'\v 

we had us ed theme We had usod auxiliary fans in s erie s in driving 
No.l drift wher e we had to drive through a 300 feet upthrav falllt., 

Q.With departmental approval or m t? A. The DepartrrEnt knew about 
this. 

··.when you say they knew about it did vo u write an ask the ir 
permission to use fans in serie s~ A· IL didn't write about it and 
t did.n 1 t know if anybody olso did . 

",Another condition of course that t ho Dep artment laid down was 
that t he r e would. be no doad ends on till intake side of the 
working place, was it not? A~ In the deve lopment, ye s. 

Q.And d i d the same apply to pillars? Ac Well, I can 1 t see 
how you could avoid sp aces or some places you couhl. not v entilat e 
and I think this was the purpose of the solids, to stop this. 

Q ,Now~ you we r e creating a dead Gnd by putti~ up this brattice 
stopp lllg on tho intake side of the working place , 'l...; Gr c you m t? 
A. Ye s. 

~ .Did you not think that wa s contrary to what the Department had 
laid. down a bout t ho use of auxiliary fans? A. No . We have 
ahv&ys ventilated standing places . 

c~ .Wa s it dead end? A.It must be a doad end. 

(,.wer e you v entilating these? A. Yes . This is the approval that 
wo have from the Department in the development of forming p illars, 
that yo u must have standing places at one time or another 
or de ad ends. 

~ . Did you eve r ge t Dep art~ ntal permission or e ve r draw the 
Depar t ment's attention to the f act that you wor e using hls 
pl astic bleeder tube to vontilate the s e st and ing place s? 
A. No . 

~.Did you eve r consult them about who ther it was of any value 
a t all fr om a ventilation p oint of view? A. No . 

Q.D id you ever consult with any expor t on the s ubj oct of the 
drawing on ventilating power of such ble ed tube before putting it 
in? .A. No. 

Q.So you just did not know how effective it was goirg to be, did. 
you? A. It had been e ff ective the previous r lace we had used it 
in. As I said be for e wo used this in the driving of No.9. It 
had been effective ther e and the -

~ .What you moan is that in No . 3 cut-thr ough in A heading, you 
had put up this same s e t-up, is that right? A.Yes. 

~ ·And thorG had. m t boon a fire; is that what you ar o saying t o 
us? Ao No , what I am trying to t Gll :pu is there had b oen no 
bu1ld-up of gases, knr:;"t<Tn or de t ected rl.uring this operation? d 

G. .This sta te:mGnt was proparod ~fter the panel had. boon r o set up 
by the Mines Department, wasn't it? I t was finished. afterwards ? 
A . ~ think it must have boen print ed afte rwards. I c ould m t sey 
qu1te for sure when I sp oke to Mr. Snel son about it, whoth:3 r it-vas 
be for e or Qft er 9th December. · 

c,. It comple t oly ignores what occurr od when tho Depcrtoo nt r e s e t 
llp t h is panol, doos it not? You make no comment on 1hat a t a.ll in 
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this s tat oment , do you? l~o That is why I fool it must have been 
befor e 9th December although I c an 't say to t his for sur e . 

Q \'l ol l, a ssuming it 1.va s before 9th De c ember, that would bo a 
r~ason for your not commenting on the Department r e s e tting ~ 
the panel. What is your comment on what was found on 9 th 
Doc emb0r now? Ao What was found thor o af t er the s e t up was 
that inflammable gas was readily d c t octa ble in the shuttlo car 
shunt by an oil flame safe ty l amp, in addi tion to which -

~ . h.ll right, what is your comrnent on that? You aro saying it 
could not be found befor e the fire , are you m t? A. I an saying 
that I c ouldn'to I didn 't detect it do-vm t hero and n~mo o f tho 
pe oplo Wo t e st e d -

· ~ · You have go t no r ep_orts on the shunt - that is what yen aro 
sqying is it not? A."te s, t hat is right. 

,, • .And you yourse lf made a t e st ? A. Yes -not in the shunt. 

~ . You have n e ve r t e st ed in the shunt? A. No t in this shunt,no . 

·. ~. . You have n c1 ve r t e st ed in this shunt s o you do not know 
f rom your own t e sts wha ther there was oo thane in the shQllt or 
no t , is that right? That is from your own t e sts prior to the 
f ir e ? A. Yos, that is right . 

Q.. t> o all you are r eally doing is accepting what othe r poopl o said? 
1~ . Ye s. 

~ . Let us get ba ck t o the p osition in Gr eonpand.. You wor e awar e 
that me thana had been f ound ther e aft e r this type of s e t up 
of blocking off the goaf with brattico had beo n done? A.No -
you s a i d was it s omo thin1 l ike this . This is nt GXactly the s ame 
se t up , ther e is a d iffur onco. 

t1. No t exac tly the s ame but it \va s a b locking off, trying t o s eal 
off the goaf gases \vith bratticeJ_ wasn 't it? Ao Well, once 
again I would n o t like t o say. Wo ha dn 1 t s eal ed off t re goaf 
gasos . We had sealed off A heading, but wo hadn't s eal ed off 
thG goaf gase s. B and C headings we ra still open. 

Q. No , C heading vras not open? Look at the plan. Do you agr e e 
with me that C heading wa s closed? A. There \va s a looso brattice 
screen eroctod in C heading. 

c,. The r e 'Jla s a stopping erect ed in c heading, wasn 't thor o? h . 

There was a loose brattico scroen . Thc r o is a diffor enco. 

Q. What is the obj ect of that ? Ao Perhap s if I can ex plain on 
the plan it might be bott er. (Hr .Sullivan e.nd. vJitne s s approach 
Exhibit A) 

.-~ . First of all is thor o or i s there not a bratti ce s e al shown on 
the pl an in C he ad irg? A. Yes . 

·-~oWas ther e in fact a br a ttico s ecil. in C head ing? A. To the l:Bst of 
my · knowledge , yos. 

1· Then is a brattico s enl what you describe a s a l oose brattice? a. 
Yo u askod mo was thor e a brattice seal writt on on the plan. 

Q.Yost and the next ques tion I a slwd was: Wa s thor e in fact 
a bra tice ~ e al in C h eading, and I thinkyou said Yos. Woll , 
vras ther 8? .A .The r e was a loose brattice sc r een, a s I said be f or e . 
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HIS HONOR~ ~. That is marked as a brattice seal, is it? h . 
Yos , it is marked on the plan. 

NR .SULLIVAN~ ~.Was it or was it not be for e the fir e a brattico seal? 
li . No, not to the best of my lmmvlB dge, 

Q.D id you play any part in preparing this plru1? A.No. 

Q. Did you see it bofor o the Inq 8 iry? A. No . 

Q. Did you see it during thu Inquiry? A.No, not until this week . 

~ . No t until this wo e k? You have attended this Inquiry, have you 
not ? ~.I s pent half a day her e last yuar . 

~ . Befor e giving your evid(::nce did yol!l. discuss with p e ople re­
presenting the c ompany, tho evidence? A. Yes 

· ~ . And wa s this plan used? A. No . 

Q• Then you say that this plan is de finitely vlr ong when the words 
11 brattice seal11 appe ar? A· Yes , whon it says •sed. " 

Q.vlhat do y ou say a soal is? A· .. 4.n offoct ivG stopping something 
t hat really s oals off e..nd stop s the perrniation of anything through 
it. 

HIS IIONOR: ~ si supp ose e v e rrrbody in the mining industry usos 
the s ame t e r minology, n s oal r, as some thing that seals off , stops 
off ? A. Ye s. Whon they talk o.bout a s ealing off of an are a that 
is what t he y moa n . 

•.,~.so the person who gavo d irections as to the preparation 
of t his plan, a ssuming they \ver o mining pe ople , would have had that 
in mind - that that brattico me ant a brattice which s Galed off 
some t hing; t hat is s o isn 't it? A. I could not t el l you wro rut the 
print ing on the plan. 

Q. No , I am not intora sted in that ye t, but asswne tre p erson 
who d iroctod the p r eparation of the plan v1as a mining parson , 
he must have und e rst ood what tho s eal was? It is a common 
t erm in mining? A. It might have boen a lad in the surveying offic o . 
A pe r son who v-ras a survoy ing man \vould not uso it in t e rms like 
t his her e . 

HR .SULLIVAN g n. 11 Brattico screen '' is used over here , behirq 
you see? A. Ye s. 

C~ . And obviously tha t wa s in f a ct a brattice scre on , a. loose 
br a ttico s cre en behind the fan, \va sn 1 t it? A. Yes . 

c~ .so ho has used the right t e r m thoro but the v-rrong torm hor e , 
you say? .: ... Yes . 

r~. Your viow then of thG s et up be f ore tt1 e firo ytas that the 
air vras c oming up C heading , is that rig ht? /\.. Yes. 

\hSome of it c ontinued up C heading thr o urg1 the brattico scr e en? 
A. Ye s . 

r~ . I t woul d. go round the back o f ths goaf , round thG back of 
these pilla rs A.l ong the goaf od.go ? A~ Round tho b a ck of the first 
Pillar be tvreen B and C along the goaf odge . 

l'·Air would also c ome up No . 2 cut thr ough? A. Yes. 
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Q. Some of it would go up past the cross-sticks?A. No. 

Q. None at all?A. No, I wouldn 1 t anticipate any going in there . 

Q. And of course none would go up A heading?A. No. 

Q. So you had a goaf ed~e from ~he end of C heading th~ough ~o 
the end of A heading belng ventllated by a s tream of alr comlng 
up C heading _, is tha t right?A. From C heading to B h eading. 

Q. From C heading to B he ading, and where do you say it went t hen? 
A. The air cut round, followed C heading down- this is a small 
part tha t percolated through and came back through here. 

Q. It came back around through here?A. Yes. 

Q. On t he other hand , of course if you hadnTt got a brattice 
seal t he re the air would have come up B heading, is tha t right, 
and gone round the end of the Pillar be tween A and B headings? 
A. No , I would not an ticipate that. If this was sealed of f 
here and this was seal ed off here, then it would mean there 
would be no air either way out, so you couldn't take it in. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would not air go down , if both these were sealed 
off , B heading down past t he cross-sticks into the goaf?A. It 
migh t fluctuat e but it wouldn't flow. There wo uld not be 
air for it to flow to. There would have t o be an outle t for ito 

Q. Wha t you ar e saying is t ha t there would be thre e dead-ends 
if tha t were t he case - the sealed off area in C heading, the 
sealed off area in the shunt which is A heading, and the unseal ed 
ar ea in B heading wher e marked with the cross-sticks. They 
would be all dead-ends?A. Yes. 

Q. If tha t were the case , the air current would merely flow right 
up No . 2 cut-through?A. Ye s, No. 2 cut-through only - B and C 
headings, to No . 2 cut-through, then through 2 cut-through to 
A and B headings. It would join a t this point. Air would 
come along her e , split up at A and B and join again at this point 
and go to A heading. 

Q. Do you think tha t overnight you could ascertain for us WD 
drew this plan and who used the wo~s, or on Whose instructions 
the words 11 brattic e seal'' wer e used?A. I will certainly endeavour 
to do so, Your Honor. 

Q. I think it \vo uld be of some advantage to us t o have that before 
~ny~hing further is done because it seems to me tha t if this plan 
ls lncorrect we have been grossly misinformed and we do not know 
where we are heading, if I may borrow tha t t erm again. On the 
other hand, I think that if we have been informed correctly, then 
you might like to r econsider some of your an swers. 

(Further hearing adjourned to Tuesday, 8th February, 
1966, at 10 a .m.) 
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IN THE COURT OF 
COAL MTI'JES REGULATION 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) 
) 

No . l of 1965 . 

BEFORE HIS HONOR JUDGE GORAN . 

A3SESSORS: MESSRS . HAHON and BUCK. 

TUESDfiY, 8th FEBRUARY, l966 . 

IN THE HATTER OF AN INQUIRY IN PURSUANCE OF THE COAL MINES 
REGULATION .aCT I NT 0 A~-J ACCIDENT WrliCH OCCURRED AT THE 
BULLI COLLIERY ON 9TH NOVEMBER 1965 .AND ITS c~~USES AND 
C I RCill•IST ANCES . 

-- -- - -- (PART HEARD) 

t·IR . McNALLY ~ I have Hr ., cambourn here on that other matter , Your 
Honorc 

HIS HON OR: I think we will hear fr om him xoon , but we will deal 
with this preliminary matter f r om ye sterday. 

JOHN PUDDlE 
On forme r oath 

cross·.eGJ.mina ti on continued~ 

1'-1R . R.~YNOLDS~ I think wha t was overlooked in Court at the last 
mome nts of the sitt i ngs ye st erday was that this plan which was 
tende r ed by Counsel for the Mi n ister is a plan which pur ports to 
be a plan of the pane l as at 13th November , l965 , and Hr . Le e 
when he opened this matter and t ender e d the p l a n said nas Your 
Honor wi l l s ee, t h is plan supp lied by the manager of the Coll.i e ry 
shows as the it em at tho top indicate s, the wor k ing s in No . 8 
"'ight pane l as at 13 t h November 1 96 5. It shmvs various items and 
thore ar e some ve ry slight d ive r genc e s be twe en that plan W1d the 
pos ition as it a c tua l l y exist e d at 9 ol5 on the morning of the 
9t h , cut tho s e d iffe r enc (3 S are very slight, as I say, and I will 
not troub l e about them at this stage. " 

Now, my instructions are that there was a trattice device , 
if I may use that n eutral t e rm , erected in the place shovrn on the 
plan as at 13/ ll/65 on the nigh t of the fire and that -vras at any 
rate slightly d iffe r ent fr om what exist e d previously . It may be 
that what was put up o.n the n.ight of the fire qualifies f or 
de scrip tion "brattic e sealn or nbrattice st-op1; ing " -vrhere that 
befor e did not~ Overnight I think t h is witness ha s made 
inquirie s, which of cour s e are h er e say t o ·a large e xt ent, but 
~onfirm what I a m s ctying . If n ec essary Hr . Storn , vrho is engaged 
1n an insp e ct ion a t the mine this morning , can toll Eis Hono r 
that he did t a ke part in the erection of a brattice device there on 
the night of the fir e . 

HIS HONOR ~ Unlass it is challenged 1 I shall have J'.1r . Puddle tell me 
as a matter of informat ion his understand ing of it. If it is 
challenged , then of course we can he ar Mr . Stone who knows \vhat was 
there . I ,,rill deal with t hat lat e r . Have you anything to say, Hr . 
Le e? 

HR .LEE: Only this , tha t it is quite a pp ar ent f r om tho transcript 
~hat ther e -vras brattice in C head ing . That ap pe ars in Hr • 
. d.S~ford ' s evidence at p e68 altho ugh he did not .describe 1 . ..rhat it was. 
Th1s observation may be of some assistanc e to Your Honor ~ When we 
wont. d own the mine , I think it was the Wedne sday b efor o the 
Inqul ry opened , we went i n to C he a ding from tho goaf and vre wont 
through brattice in C heading . I have chec ke d with Hr . Henzie s 

835. Jo PU.ddle , JQI4 



who was with me at the time for his description of the brattice 
that ~e ~ent through. He said tha t you would describe it as 
a fairly tight brattice, that it ~ould not at that time qualify 
for the words "brattic e seal 11

o Tha t rather suggests to me 
tha t ~hatever ~as there on the 13th and after the fire should not 
have ever been described as a brattice seal, after the fire, so 
that it ~ould seem tha t there may be a misunderstanding, perhaps 
due to the nomenclature that has be en used at that point. 

HIS HONOR: I think there is quite an amount of misunderstanding 
about this. This morning I have been conferring with Mr. Buc~ 
and Mr. Mahon ~ho have given me some advice about the nature of 
a brattice screen and ~hat is called bra ttice seal . I might 
be able to get this from Mr. Puddle; I think he may agree ~ith 
thiSo 

Q. Firstly would you t ell me what is your information about this 
piece of bra ttice?A. There was a brattice screen erected in 
c Heading inby of 2 and before No. 3 cut-through prior to the 
time of the fire. At the time of the fire we worked our way 
in as has been described, into the fire area, from the sweeps, 

pae~dNo. l cut-through, passed up to No& 2 cut-through and by 
cutting off the gmoke and bringing fresh air in behind us all 
the time ~e worked down here and then another brattice screen 
\.J as erected in the place of the original one by the people engaged 
in getting in to the fire arEa 

Q. In the same place?A. Approximately in the same position as 
the first .. 

Q. The area no~ marked 11 brattice seal11 ?A. Ye s. 

Q. That is the on e you are talking about?A. Yes, that is 
approximately in the same position as the previous one was before 
the fire too. 

Q. When you ereRt bratti8e as a stopping is this the position: 
You may have either a tight brattice which is called a brattice 
seal or stopping or you may have a loose type of brattice which 
is called a brattice screen?A. Genera l ly this ~ould be the case 
but in cases one may be described a8 the other. 

Q. Sometimes you call it a brattioe screen, sometimes you call it 
a brattice seal. Is tha t what you mean?A~ No, actually we 
dontt use the word "seal" at all, it would be a brattice screen 
or a bra ttice stopping and actually the difference between the 
two, what I t erm the difference in my opinion, is if it is a 
loese brattice screon that is one that is not tightened up 
completely over the atea of the airway it is stopping off and 
tightened in to the ribs and tacked both top and bottom, then 
that would be a loose brattice screen but a brattice screen 
itself would be one that wo uld be c on structed so as to be tight 
all the way acro~s and held in pla~~e by brattice tacks. 

MR. REYNOLDS; Q. That is brattice stopping?A. Yes. 

HIS HONOR: Q. In fa~t the only effective sea l in a mine across 
a cut-through or anywhere at all is a brick sea l and even then 
tha~ has to be rendered to be a perfect seal; is that che 
posl~io~?A. Ye s. It is very difficult to achieve a perfect seal 
an~ 1t ~s possible to erect even a brick or concrete stopping 
Whlch w1ll allow the pressure to rise and fall so you can ge t 
fluctuations in air flow through the bri0k itself. 

Q. The air or gas will come through the brick itself and that is 
the purpose of r endering, is it not?A. Ye s. 
Q. The purpose of erecting brattice in this position, that is 
across the heading or ~ut-through, is to stop most of the air 
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or gas from fl~wing through fr om o~e side to ~he other? A. No, in 
t his ins t ance lt was e rected t o dlrect the alr flew along B 
heading. The screen is erected in C hea ding so that where 
the a ir is c oming dovn B cm C headin gs to No . 2 cut through 
the majority was then d iverted to travel along B heading . 

Q.That may be the u. ltimate purpose but the immediate purpose is 
t o prevent most o f the air fr om going down C heading? .n, That is so. 

Q.And that is generally the purpose of stopping that is erected 
acro s s a he ading or cut-thr ough? .n. To c ontrol the flew of the 
ventilation . 

Qo Bu t would it control by stopping air from going down ther e ? a , Yes . 

Q.It is n o t a perfect seal but does stop quite a bulk of the air 
from going down there? AsYes . 

Q.At the same time it will stop the bulk of the air er ga s from 
coming in the reve rse direction? A.In this case you still have an 
air current ; some of the air current still travelling down 
t he s creen and travelling down C heading . 

Q.For example, on one side we have the goaf? n. Yes. 

Q.It would stop goaf g a ses or the bulk of goaf gases , or tend to 
st op them fr om coming through? Ao rt might do , but in this position , 
no. rt de pends on the loca tion and the inclinica tions of the 
workin gs themselveso The ventila ting pressure itself would bring 
t he air up to those places and air will take the easiest route 
around so even though you have a wide open doorway going do"W!l 
2 cut-through you will find some of the air intake vrould also 
t r ave l along C h eading, come d01t!D a l org the goaf and back along 
B headin g. 

Qe The d ifference bet\..reen what you call a brattice screen and a 
brattice stopping, a part fr om the screen which is erected to 
divert air a round the corner, the differ ence between them is this, 
is it not: A st opp ing is fixed whereas a screen allows traffic 
t hr ough it when it is necessary? AQ That c ouJd be right in some 
cases but this is not in this case . 

Qo No t in this particular case? A.No. 

Q.But often that is the position. For example, your screen 
behind your fans in A heading? AoYes. 

(4.wa s one of that type which tended to stop a flovr of air through 
it but still allowed necessary traffic to come through? A. Yes, that 
is m.m tr<J.ff ic . 

Q.Tha t is lvha t I mean? .-~.oYes. 

HR . c>ULLIVAN~ Q.You did use the expression 11 brattice stopping" 
yoQrself when yoQ wer e being cross-examined by Hr . Parkinsor, ... , didn 't 
YOQ? ~e I could have . 

Q.That correction of r,ours gives us a mw view, I think. (Approaches 
Plan) Whe r e we have 1bratt ice seal" here I suppose we could 
substitute ubrattice screentt? Ao "Brattice scre en" or "brattice 
st opp i!h.g" o 

~·You say quite fairly such a stopping would not be completely 
lmpervious to &ir 1 that some air would pass it? ·h. We are talking 
about the one e r e cted prior t o the fir e ? 

Q.Yes. A.. That is right, it lfOUld a l low air to go through. 
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Q. It would allow some air through?A. Ye s. 

Q was thaVPut up after thinking about the problem or wa s it 
j~st put up as a loose bra ttice screen without thinking about 
wha t it would do?A. The screen itself was erec t ed to direct the 
main flow of air along B Heading while the pillars wer e being 
extract ed between 3 and 4 cut-throughs. 

t Up' I Suppose?A. I did Q. You wer e responsible for it being pu 
not actually direct it nor did I know it had been erected there 
but it was quite normal to do this. 

Q. When you saw it ther e - you knew it wa s er ected ther e - did 
you know exactly what it wo uld be doing? Did you think about it? 
A. I knew it had been put up there . 

Q. Did you know, or did you thiru{ abou t wha t it might be doing? 
A. Yes, I knew wha t it was erected for and what it was doing. 

Q. Did you r ealise at the time that some air would be going 
through it?A. Yes. 

Q. You knew tha t?A. Ye s. 

Q. You thought about it?A. I know that the type of screen that 
was up was to allow the air to go through it. 

Q. At this stage you had a body of air coming up C?A. Yes. 

Q. A body of air coming up B from 0 cut-through?A. Yes. 

Q. Some air coming through C?A. Yes . 

Q. You were aware of all these things ?A. Yes. 

Q. There was no stopping in B?A. No . 

Q. You would agree '" ith me as a stream of air was coming up 
B Heading with no stopping in B, some \vould go up B in by of 
No . 2 cut-through?A. This was befor e? 

Q. Before the fire . A. We are going back to before the fire 
a t the time the scre en wa s erected - work was taking place in 
the pillars inby of No. 3 cut-through. 

Q. But immedia tely before the fire - the day - the we ek before -
you have got this brattice screen in C Heading?A. Ye s. 

Q. Inby of 3 cut-through?A. Yes. 

Q. You have got no bra ttice screen in B Heading inby of No . 3 
cut-through, have you?A. No . 

Q. Your intakes are C Heading and B Headli~g?A. Ye s. 

Q ~ You say with C Heading the intake in C Heading would put some 
alr through the bra ttic e screen th3t you pu t in C He~ding?A. Ye s . 

Q. But do you say t he intake in B Heading would not put air up 
B?A. No . 

Q. Why?A. Because the flow of the air would naturally go from C 
back to B Heading. 

Q. What you put is enough air was coming thro~gh the brattice 
screen here to overcome B intake insofar as it went past No . 2 
c~t-t~ou~h?A . Not overcome the total air coming in, it is the 
d1str1but1on of the pressures themselves that were available on 
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the air and due to restrictions and the other t hings tha t v1e:e 
available at this time it is shown , and it has been shown slnce , 
tha t the a ir flo\Ar in fact -v;as going down along C he ad ing and 
coming ba ck up s l i ghtly along B heading . 

Q. And overcoming the air c oming up through B - be ca use B was an 
in take too~ A. There was an intake c oming in both sides to a 
common point . I think you have to realis e v.rhen the air came to­
gethe r a t the intersec tion of B heading at'1d No . 2 cut - thro ugh 
that formed more re sistance a. t this point than if you had two 
airw;vs in the same section going directly on. 

HIS HON OR : Q. . Where doe s this air come from at this intersection? 
Wher e ar e there two flows of air? A. There are two flo -vrs of air 
coming down along B heading , there is a flow along B r"Eading c-md 
a fl ow along C head ing o Thus , those two flo1vs meet at the . 
i nt ersection of B he<iding and 2 cut -- thro ugh and be cause of the 
dis tribution of the pressure that c aL~ s e d the ventilat i on of the 
mine from the main ~ine fan itself it was found air , in effect , 
was coming dovrn along C heading, going back alo~ the goaf ani 
rising back out of B heading and joining the air flow again a t 
A - at B heading . 

MR .SULLIViili: Q. You say then that there was a defini t e flow of a ir 
f rom the goaf edge d o'.~m B heading to No . 2 cut-through? A. There was 
a slight drift of air , not a definite flow . 

Q. 1t!etS there a di ffe rence in pre ssure - a lmver pressure at the 
intersection of No . 2 and B he ad ing - and the goaf edge at the top 
of B he ading ? A. I could not tell you that exa c t ly , whether there 
ltJ'OUld be a lower pressure at this point , but one vrould imagine 
so because air was flowing i n this direction. 

Q. Are you putting it that air was c oming in the reve r se dire c tion , 
that is outby, d-:::>wn B heading fr om the goaf? A. Yes . 

Q. To the intersection? A. Yes . 

Q.Wa s this s or!lething you. thought ou. t as being a systs:n of 
venti l a tion or did it j ust happen accidentally? A. No , actually 
we have had our experienc e , that we can get s ome flmr of air 
round a pillar in the s ame way as this one, on previous oc casions . 

Q. You c ould see the r esult of such a system of vent i lation, 
could you not? Supposing there were goaf gase s along the edge of 
the goaf between C and B headin g in by of No . 2 cu t-tb..r oq.gh? n . Yes . 

Q. If there vias a pressure d if fe r ential bet1ve en th3 No .3 cut - through 
where the goaf was and No . 2 cut - through~ that gas vrould be p icked 
up and taken dovm B heading t o the int erse c tion, i...OLLldn' t it? h. . Yes . 

Q. You 1..,rould thus take goaf gas whic h may be p icked up by the 
stre am coming up C heading and t ake it back into No . 2 cut - through? 
A. Ye s . 

Q. And tha t wa s the main intake for your work place ? A. Yes . 

Q. It would then come a l ong and be p icked up by the dr aw of the fan s 
and taken down to the ,.,rork place ? A. Part of it , yes . 

Q. Was tha t your intention? A. Yes . 

Q. . ~o take goaf ga s e s down t o the I·!Or k place ? A. As long a s they were 
qu1 te safe and the re v1a s no problem with them1 ;>e s, as long P S i t 
wa s not de t ectable and causing no d i scomfort or any dange r at ~ll , 
this could quite readily be d one . 
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HIS HONOR : Q. Why adopt a system of ventila tion wher e you t ak e 
goaf ga se s down to t he work pl ac e?Ae To drive the tleade r heading 
you must go down t o t he goaf , to dr i ve t he bleeder h ea ding it self, 
and it ha s n ever been t he pr actic e to sea l the ga s off and this 
would be the only way to see there would be no goaf ga s e s coming 
fr om t he go af a t a ll. 

Q. Why can't you tak e it pa st inst ead of t aking it into the 
work i ng pl ac e ?A. You could , - it would be diff icult. 

Q. I t would be most d e sirable , wouldn 1 t it, however difficult? 
A. No, you c an ac tually wor k it and control by looking aft er the 
ar ea i tself and mainta ining t he ventila tion i n good and pr op er 
sta t e and t h er e is no r ea son why you should have any undue f ears 
tha t noxious gase s whic h we though t we r e exi s ting i n t he goaf 
ar ea --

Q. You ar e j us t r uling out inflammable ga s a t t hi s sta ge , are 
you? You just say 11 it is all r i ght t o t ake noxious gase s down 
t her e 11 ?A. In t he quant i tie s t ha t have been de t ect ed ther e wa s 
no - had it come up and caused c onc ern a t a ll we could have 
handled t he posit i on from t hen. 

Qo I t all depends, do e s it not, on whe ther you a r e able to 
fo r e t el l how much ga s is going t o c ome down, and if you ge t 
an incree se of gas suddenly and it is unde t ected because the 
t est i n g sy st em is ineff icien t, you ar e crea ting a position of 
danger fo r your men, a r e you not?A. In ef f ect, this could happen 
in cert a i n cir cumstanc e s. 

Q. V./ell , why do i t a t a ll?A. Well, bec au se this is t he way tha t 
the panel wa s l aid out in t his particu l ar section and I cannot 
see where i t ha s been overc ome by any pr evious system t ha t ha s 
been devised , wher e a t one time the goaf ga se s wer e not open to 
come back , t he goaf wa s not open to a llow some of the air to 
bleed back i nto the a r ea tha t is be ing ventila t ed. 

Vm . SULLI VAN : Q. May I put ano t her qu e stion to you to comple t e 
thi s s~t em of ven tila tion. You have got goaf ga se s c oming 
down , ge tt ing i n t o No . 2 cut-through vJher e the fan is l i ke ly 
t o pick t hem up and t ake t hem down t o the working plac e . You 
agree with me on tha t, don 't you?A. Ye s. 

Q. Bu t t hen you have done some thing else , have you not; you say 
you put in t he bleed tube? You know wha t I mean by the bleed tube. 
I do not mean t he bl eeder heading, I mean t he bleed tube . You 
put t he bleed t ube i n t he shunt, you say, t o ventila t e the shunt? 
A. We put t he spira l t ube in t he shunt to ven ti+at e t he shunt, ye s. 

Q. In ven t i l a ting t he shunt you did not intend to draw goaf 
ga se s t hr ough t he bra ttic e , did you?A. No. 

Q. Wha t you i n t ended t o do wa s t o dr aw i ntake a i r from No. 2 cut­
through in to ther e?A. Ye s. 

Q. But you have a lroo dy a llowed so tha t t ha t int a~e air contains 
go af ga se s, have you not?A. It co uld cont ain. 

Q. We ll, it must, mustn't it, if it is pick ing it up all down 
her e?A. Ye s, it could have been. 

Q. So not only are you ge tting goaf ga se s through the bra ttic e 
sc r een but you also have a syst em with the vent tube which t ak e s 
goaf ga ses into the shunt on this very ventila tion system?A. That 
i~ true , the goaf is open and ga s rise s up ther e and will mix 
Wl t h the air curr ent itself. It will become dilut ed to such an 
ext ent tha t it could not possibly c ause any ha zard, and then go 
down t o the place . 
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QoiDid you really think a bout t h is ventilation system at all? 
A· ye s. 

Q. You are a pretty busy man, are you not? Ao Reasonably busy. 

Q • ..:tnd. how many sections have you go t to look a t in the mine? At 
that time how many s ections d i d you h ave to l ook at ? a.There are 
six 1-vor king sections. 

Q.Six 1A]Orking se c t tons, and you were counter signing the gas re­
GUrns fr om all the s ix v.rorking section s? .n.o Yes. 

Q.You vJ ere trying t o ge t in to every working section to see hov1 it 
wa s working? Ao 1~S often a s pr a cticable , yes . 

Q. You were getting production r eports from thcs B six sections 
every day? AoYes. 

QoYou vl8re examining them? AoYeso 

Q0 Rep orting on them? Ao Ye s. 

Q.Going to the sections when the p ro duc tion fell? A. Not necessarilyo 

Q. Making inquiries ? ~.Making i nquiries, yes. 

Q .. Did you really pay much at tent ion to this ventilation system i :-: 
this panel at a ll? Ao As I have al re ady st2ted, yes. 

QoYou did, did you? Did you pay a lot of attention t o it? A. I 
paid the attention I have already s a id. I thought -

Q.And you devi sed this system? t• • As I said before, this devising 
of the system here has been i n operation at the Colliery ev~ ~nee 
Green panel started in l 960e 

Q0 What I arn going to p ut t o you -

HIS HONOR~ Q.Mas I interrupto Is not this the position~ You 
se..id that the work ln Green panel 1-ras satisfa ctory, therefore it 
would \vork in 8 Right? Is that the \vay you said it? J"l .Jt had 
worked s a tisfactorily in other parts of the colliery , yes. 

QoGreen panel particularly? A. Yes . 

Q.So that it woul d work all right here? lu Yes. 

Q. Is that the wa y y ou looked. at it? ~ .I knew it had worked. b afore, 
and by the ventilating with the s p iral tube I thought it vrould. do 
the j ob that was necessary. 

flLSULLDJ&.li.J~ Q.But Mr.,Pud.d.le. this v1ould have onl y been tre same as 
Gre en panel if you put 13 thr ough a s a bleeder before you took out 
~1 , wouldn 't it ? There was a l way s a bl eede r heading in Gr e en panel? 
tl . No t when you were driving the bl eeder , there was no bleeder 
heading in Gr een panel . 

Q. If you had carried out what was going on in Green panel by 
agr eemen t be t\men Hr.Huir and Mr.Ryan, you v1ould. have drivEn 13 
befor e you took o ut 11? would you not? A.Yes. 

Qo.b.nd tha t would have meant then t hat there 1vould always be 
two pillars ahead. of you? AoYes . 

Q. And. the y are much easier to ventilate , aren 't 'they? A. If you 
have goaf areas to ventilate -

Qoit is much onsier to ventilate the goaf? A. To ventilate the goaf ? 
84lo J "Pud dle 1 xx,. 



QoWhile you are driving the bl eeder heading? A.It is not easier to 
ventilate the goafo 

Q.The goaf edge - it is much easier t o ventilate the goa f edge? 
Ao No. 

~"I will just show y ou Hr.Ryan 1 s sketch again; I sh~v!ed i~ to you 
ye st e rday" It is the thing that is numbered 9068 Wlth thls sketch 
by Mr. Ryan on it o (Approaching witne ss) Your in take goes l.p 
what I supp ose is A h eading or Nool? AcYes. 

Q
0

The miner is at the face her e , you see? AoYes . 

Q.It goes round there and I~~ ind icat~g from left to right now, 
and it goes out the ble eder these two plllars bac k from the 
-v1or k ing place. T.ha t wa s the set up i n Gr e en panel? A. You a sked me 
abou t t he driving of this one he r e ? 

Q
0 
Ye so That v1as driven before the third pillar up ther e was 

ext r acted, v!her e the miner is? A" Yes, that is true enough, but I 
1-rish to p oint out the r e is no ble eder existing while you are driving 
t hi s bleede r round he r e c 

Qo But the point is, is it not, that you are two pillars at least, 
pr obably three~ back fr om th e goa f edge? .All Is your question still 
t he same , wo tild it be any easier to vent i late the goaf edge after -

Q
0
No, not after this is out; vlhil e you a r e driving the bl eeder vli th 

those thr ee p illars ther e? A ~ It is no e asier to ventilate the goa f, 
no , be ca use this is your ar e a up her e ~ 

Q. But you still have goaf gases passing the working place, tiave you 
not? A.Ye se 

Qo But you hav e got nothing draviing them in? Ao But this :is b o ing 
driven a t the same time 9 v!hile this is up her e the goaf gases still 
have t o come down the c ommon r e turn, This is the place being 
driven alon g he r e , so the gases coming out from the goaf must be 
mixing vli t h the a i r stream and --

QoAre y ou saying the bl eeder is of no use? 11.. No . 

Q& But you say that while the bl eeder is be ing driven you have got a 
situation just exactly the same as \•That you had her e? Ao No. As I 
said and as you point e d out, there is an extra pillar th ere, but the 
position of the goaf gases -

Q.An extra t-vro pillars, are there not? a"No, only one p illar. 

Q.What do you say? Ao Only one pillaro 

Q.,No, ther e ar e at l east two pillars ahe ad of the ble eder here , are 
t her e not? (No answer)o 

QoWould you have a look at it a gain? (Sh own to witness) A. Well, 
pe rhaps on the plan that is over on the Board there, I might first 
be able to point out thiso The he <1ding that was being driven to be 
holed back into the goaf had to be again split, longitudinally. That 
made the t ·,vo p illarS there and the set Up is exa ctly t be Same -

H~S HONOR: Q. You me an thore was one p illar but it -vmuld become two 
Plllar s when sp lit? Ao Exactly the same as we have here as sho-v1n in 
the numb ering for Green panelo The split has come back two pillars 
along the wheGling road and talcen out and formed- up to take the 
hole into the goaf o Aft e rwards this is split through again her e so 
t hat actually you have two p illars here as you wo uld have two pillars 
on that existing plano The third pillar that was in existence in Gree:L-. 
Panel vras taken out on Nooll on this one hereo 
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MR .SULLIVAII : Q. Well, if the creat ion of a bl eeder heading was not 
a be tt e r system than the one you ~rrere using here, why were you 
r o turning t o it ....-dter discus sing the matter with lv1r. Stone? A. 
Af t er discussing the matt e r \v ith Hr . Stone ? 

Q.Ye s? A· No 7 this was discussed at the time of the driving of 
the c ontinuation of No . 2 cut-through. 

Q.That is right , you discussed it with him? A. Yes . 

Q.Jtnd Hr.st on e suggested to you that you r e turn to this system 
1.,rhich had. been used in Green panel and which had bee n used in 8 
Right prior t o the takirg out of No . l l l:efore d.ri ving the ble eder 
tube, d i d he not ? A. No ? I c~~'t say to that . I know this was 
my intention and our intention to form the p illar as I su id. 

Q.Didn't you d iscuss it with Mr . Stone ? A. Yes , 

q.Da you r emember Hr. Stone coming up to the panel , looking at what 
11as go ing on and telling you to r e turn to t te system of bl eedEr 
head ings? A. I don't r emembe r him telling me to r Gturn t o the 
system of bleeder headings, no . 

Q. Do you remembe r di scussing it with him? A. Ye s . 

Q.Well, do you remember his suggestion to you that you r e turn to 
the system of bl eeder h eadings? A. It was our discussion together 
to have the bleeder system carried. on . 

Q.Re -introduced? A. Yes. 

Q.And you agreed. with that ? A. Yes, de finitely . 

Q.And you agreed with it becaus e it wa s a be tter way of d enling 
vri t h goaf gases than the one y ou had ther e , wasn 1 t it? A. It did. 
have some advantages . 

Q.'vJhat I am sugge sting t o you happen e d now is iJhis~ Aft er that 
discussion vlith Mr . Stone you decided to p ush on with the e xtension 
of No . 2 cu t-· t hr ough as a ble eder heading '? 1 • • Yes . 

Q.iilld hole into the goaf, is tha t right? A. Yes . 

~ . Durin8 the peri od. that tha t \-Tas boing d riven you were going to 
take a risk \vith tiT goaf go. s e s by blocking off A hea din g with 
the brattice in the s hunt end p ut ting the bl eed tube in? A. 
I did not v isualise it as 3 risk. 

Q.Well, you had reports of inflamLlable gas in this section? A. Yes . 

Q.From l1r .Walker, whic h you had counter-signed? Ao Yes . 

Q. You knew there was inflaJnmable gas? A. I lmew inflammable ga s 
had been de t Gcted. . 

Q. You knew the re '\va s inflammable gas being de t e c t ed ; you knew 
t hat the methane in your · r e t L:t:r n airway analysis or insp ection 
had shown a doubl ing o f methane? A. It had risen from .1 to . 2 per 
cen t . 

Q. . Yes , a doubling of me thane ? A. It was negl igible in the quantity 
givon off . 

~ . Well , you know it had had a doubling of me thane , is tha t right? 
A. It had double d 1 it had gone fr om . 1 to . 2 . . 

Q. You knevl it was comin g from tho goaf? i-1 . And tho -..rorking place . 
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Q I think you said to me, from the goaf?A~ Well, it would be 
f~om the goaf and the working place. 

Q• Had you found an¥ inflammable gas in the working place?A. No, 
ld t d t t 0 1 or o2 per cent with an oil flame safe ty you w ou no e ec . 

lamp. 

Q. You rm lised that in the return airway it was .. 2 per cent 
with a dilution of 26,500 feet per minute, did you not?A. Yes~ 
that is SO o 

Q. You knew at the best that less than 2,000_cubic fe e t per 
minute of fresh air, if it wa s fr e sh, was go1ng into tha t shunt? 
A. Somewhere round about this. 

Q. 5 much smaller dilution than 26 ~ 500 1 isntt it?A. Oh ~esa 

Q. You knew that?A3 Are you suggest i ng that all the gas 

Q. I am asking you que stions at the moment. 
A. No, I don 1 t know that. 

Did you know tha t? 

Q. You had the opportunity of knowing it?A. Knowing ther e wa s 
gas in the shunt? 

Q. You had the opportunity of finding out how much tha t bleed 
tube wa s drawing to the shunt?A. Yes. 

Q. Did you do anything a bout finding out what it was drawing? 
A. Only to the extent of ascertaining it was sufficient to keep 
the area cleano 

Q. Wait a minute, did you do anything a bout finding out how many 
cubic f ee t per minute it was drawing?A. No. 

Q. Did you ever take a methanometer up to the bra ttic e screen in 
A Heading in the shunt to see whether there wa s any me thane in 
that bottom ga s?A. Noo 

Q. Methanometers were available to you, weren 1 t they?A. Ye s. 

Q. You knew that in green panel o2 p er cent methane had been 
found behind a bra ttice seal tha t had been put up in No. l heading? 
A. In green panel, I think it was 2 per cento 

Q. Yes, 2 per cent; you kne\v tha t 2 per cent had been fmnd there? 
A. Yes. 

Q. Don 1 t you think it would have be en an ordinary precaution 
one day when you went up ther e to take a methanometer up?A. I 
never thought it nec e ssary or I would haveo 

HIS HONOR : Q. You did not think it n ec e ssary to a sk anybody else 
to take a methanometer, other than yourself?!. No. I would like 
to point out tha t the increase to ~2 per c ent of gas in the r e turn 
airways, if anything, is normal , and i n some sec tions is even 
less than normal in the r e turn, in solid workings, and the rise 
to .2 per cent did not indica t e to me any significant change a t ~ ll -

Q ~ Assuming there was a concentration of these gases in the shunt, 
d1d you think tha t the bleed tube would rid the whole shunt of th e se 
gases?A. Well, I thought we had the means of finding out by t es ting, 
and if the stuff came through the bra ttice screen to such an 
extent that it wa s not being diluted and it could be d e t ec t ed , then 
other step s would have t o be t akene 

Q. Did you conceive of the possibility of a pocket of gas in the 
sh
1
unt which may be missed by the deputy t e sting unless he t e sted 

a l along the shunt, right round it and right round the bra ttic e 
screen? Did you conceive of tha t possibility or did you think 
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that the bleed tube would adequately rid the whole shunt of gases 
that might collect there? What was your view on it? A. ~y v~w 
on the th i ng was this , that if we could have a flo1>1 of alr through 
t he bleed tube out of the shunt ~ then while it was obvious it 
wo uld not go right i n to the far corners or disturb the far corne rs 
with the bleed tube being there with no movemen t -

Q.Tha t was obvious toy ou , was it? A. When it was still, but 
the deputie s themselves,and I had never tested there, - 1vhen the 
deputy tests for gas he does not take one spot reading, he 
usually takes a test on each rib. 

Q. You gave no special instructions to the deputy about therG 
being a possibili ty of a pocket of gas in the shunt and therefore 
t he testing had t o be most searching? "".\·Jell, as I said before, 
I spoke to Charle Stewart about this at the time of the erection 
of the screen inby No . 3 cut-through and we knew there were 
noxious gases inby of there · and to keep an eye on this are~ so 
that it 1v-ould not contaminate the shunt itself. The thing I 
t hink t hat might be taken into account too, is that when you are 
talking about places where the f lmv of air 1>1as not sufficient to 
go i n to t he corners of t he shunt it self ~ '\vi th the movement of ~ ~ 4d 
shuttle car itself in and out this would have the effect of 
stirring up of the air in itself. 

Q.But stirring up is a vague term, is it not? Is not this 
the p osition~ All it does is to push back the air, and as it 
goes back it lets it expand and you merely get flovr in am. out of 
the same pocket? You would not suggest that a shuttle car is 
some means of ventilating a shunt? A. Oh no, but I w saying it 
i s an aid .to making sure that your air in the shunt is turbuJ~~ ; . 
is mixed up 1 Your air does not become compressed by having a 
shuttle car in it - after it goes out it is still the same o The 
volume of the shuttle car as it is going in vJould displace that 
arnount of air • Coming out that same volume of air , and it must 
r eplace it fr om the intake airway again. 

Q. You mean the shut t le car forc e s the a ir Ott of the s hunt into 
the air1tlay·,. and then what happens when it goes out again is that 
the air flo-vrs bnck? J.{. . Yes . 

Q. Not the same air, but other air r eplaces it; is tha t your 
suggestion? k , It is r eplaced - it would not be the same airo 

Q.I am not suggesting it is the same . You suggest t hat what 
happens is that when the shuttle car goes in it forc e s air out 
of t he shunt 7 and ~-rhen it c omes out again nmv- air goes ii~1 ? t L ,.,. 

new air goes into the place that is vacated by the shuttle car. 

Q. Have y-ou ever he ard of the principle I leo..rnt in my school days, 
t hat there is an elasticity of gB-ses? .tl..Yes, I have heard of that 
befor e . 

9oGas is ~nflatable, something which compresses and expands, 
1s that rlght? A.Yes. 

Q,And then when you push an object against this body of ga.s, 
al t hough there may be some displacel'lEnt, it also r.as the tenden"~ ... 
to compress this gas into a small area and when you remove i·~, 
the gas merely expands? Do you know Qbout that? A. If you had 
a closed cyl i nder with a piston in it and you acted on the full 
volume of the thing, you lose no gas . 

Q.Tell me if I am wrong or you think I am wrong. Even in the 
case vrhere you have not go t the closed cylind~r you will not mereJ. v 
d~ive out the whole body of gas and then replace it by some fr e · · 
a1r or gas1 whatever it may be, "11-Jhen the the compressj_on is re~ 
~oved? A· ~here would be a slight elastici ty of the air but I think 
lt would be only slight.The majurity of the air that would be 
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displaced by the shuttle car entering the ~lace would be 
displaced out into the airwayo It was qulte r eadily along­
side it, and then you would get the airflow agalno 

Q One thing is in my mind and I draw your attention to .lt ~ 
After the se conditions were simulated 1 substantial concen tra tio::l :-' 
of methane were found continually in this very airway in Hhict. 
the shuttle car had been working?Ao Yeso 

Q. Assuming now that there was z:.o ~udden ch~nge 7 and there 5. ' : 
nothing here so far to suggest lt ln the evldence, but assum . .-~.J. g 
there was no sudden change after the fire, that leads me tD 
an inescapable inference that these conditions obtained befor e 
the fire. In other words, in the shunt there vJ'ere, for a 
period before the fire and during the carrying out of these 
operations, substantial collections of inflammable gas in thG 
shunt. That must mean, must it not~ that the ventilation system 
~as ineffective, if they are allowed to continue?Aa If this is 
true, yeso 

Q. The ineffec ti vene ss of the ventilation system remained un~­
detected by those responsible for it; that also must be true ~ 
must it not?A. I would not like to say that, Your Honoro Pe:>:'hap r 
you could, but I do know tests were made there and gases were 
found. 

Q. You did not test there?A. Noo 

Q. You relied on others to test there?A. Yeso 

Q. The reports revealed some methane there in t-r ~ ~ ~ 
working area, in the panel?Ae No, nox.:l o\.1S : . .JJ .L tnlll.k o 

Q. No, methane, it was put to you yesterday?A. Yes, trac e s ~ 

Q. But the men who were supposed to test in the shunt area and 
who reported that they had tested in the shunt area found nor!B ? 
A. Yeso 

Q. I am loath to ask you this question because strictly speaking 
it is objectionable, but to assist me could you give me any 
explanation as to how that came about?A. Well, firstly I canno ·i; 
see how the gases that had been in this shunt area since the 
simulation was set up as it was on 9th November could have 
escaped detection. It Has quite easily detected on bot:h -r:5bs 
and up to a height of 4 ft. 6 ins. above the floo:t' r- -- ~il rd .. 

flame safety lamp. I would like to point out t- ' .. ctG the dep ..... ., 
or one of the deputies who had been r c:port:i.f"l ,: ., ... 'aces of gases 
previous to this was one of the deputies who also made 
inspections in this area himself so that he knew what he was 
looking for and he obviously knew how to testa 

Q. That was Mr. -- A. Walker .. Noxious gas had been repo:·tod b-­
deputies on various occasions and also I myself had found nr- J; , ~. '"' ~ .. 
ga s prior to this when we were nriv·ing No ., 4 cut-through. I 
can only say - I can 1 t really say what has happened down in m r eo 
There could be several ~heories for it, but I feel that the gas 
th~ t.was ther e at the time of the ignltion? and surely in my 
op1n1on there must have been gas to burn at this time -

Q. I think we can acc ept there was gas. Ao Yes? I think soo 
These gases came very rapidly, in my opiniono 

Q. And have been coming very rapidly since?Ao And have been 
COming _ back lll this period Since this time, yes.,· . •.: 
0=~~ > - :. - ·.;here it came from - either from the floor or the :r.:: -

or some other r eason,I could not tell you where, but the quantity 
~f gas that was detected in the shunt afterwards sure ly could no~ 
ave gone undetected had it been present prioro 
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Q. Had the men who were t e sting done their job, that is the 
other position?A. Actually you ar e asking me -

Q I am not a sking you to pa ss judgment on the se men. Tha t is 
my function. But I mean 1 that must be the position, must it not? 
A. In my opinion of the flndings of the people concerned, they 
have been conscientious and capable of t e sting for this g a s, 
and the three people who made the t e sts found none. 

Q. Wha t your theory is implying is this, is it not, tha t a t some 
t i me , in f act deputy Stewart tested tha t morning, the morning of 
t he fir e?A. Yes. 

Q. And de t ected none?A. He de t ected noxious ga s, I think, in small 
quantitie s. 

Q; Noxious ga s, but he wa s the man who should hav e been able to 
4~tect inflammable ga s too?A. Ye s. 

Q. Depu ty Stewart t ells us he t e sted on t he morning of the fire 
and found nothing, and one migh t say tha t in t he space of a f ew 
minute s aft er - half an hour, 30 minute s - on your theory a 
s~dden flow of ga s occurred which ha s been coming ever since, 
just a t t he time when the ignition point wa s ava ilable?A. Yes, 
well , wven the f act tha t Charlie Stewart ha s r eported noxious 
ga s and the finding of noxious ga s in this ar ea shortly before, 
i t shows t ha t he must have t ested for noxious ga s and had the 
infl ammable ga s been ther e in the quantitie s tha t have been shown 
since , then in my opinion he would have had no difficulty at all 
in de t ecting infla~~able ga s in this a r ea a t th a t time. 

Q. If he wer e conscious tha t he wa s looking for it. You yourself 
have told me , have you not - perhaps I had be tter r ead wha t you 
said from your evidenc e so a s to be quite accura t e about this. 
I a sked some que stions a s to noxious ga s being in the mine a t the 
t ime, I a sked you a bout it twic e and I will r ef er firstly to 
P• 738 : 

uQ.· ·You wer e mindful all this time of the possibility of 
noxious ga ses, is tha t right?A. Ye s. 

Q. I s ther e any particular danger in a shuttle car working 
in a shunt in noxious ga se s? A, Other than the effect it 

might have i£ it wa s pr e sent in sufficient quantitie s to 
c ause physical discomfort to the people who would be 

exposed to it. 

Q. The only man would be the shuttle car driver, would it 
not?A. Ye s, he would be in the shunt. 

Q. He would be in the shunt only such time a s he took to 
back in and come out aga in?A. Ye s. 

Q. lilld the ~ction of coming in would t end to swirl the 
ga s around away from the shuttle c ar driver himself, 
would it not?A, It would cause turbulence in this area , ye s. 

Q. It would t end to push it away from him?A. Yes. 

Qe So it would not have very much eff ect unle ss it wa s in 
very substantia l quantities, on the shu t tle ca r driver?A. No. 

Q. And then of course if it did affect him in any way, he 
would immedia t ely report it?A. Ye s. 

Q. You correct me if I am wrong but is not this the position: 
f rom the point of view of those in control, and I am talking 
about deputie s and yourself or any assistants who may be ther e , 
looking a t the situa tion and exp ecting only noxious ga s, it 
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was a risk worth t aking t o keep production going to rw1 a 
shuttle c a r in and out of the shunt, since it wa s only ~ sh~t 
and not a working place and. since if it be came substantlal ln 
volume you woul d expe ct the s huttle car driver to report it. 
r s t ha t the posi ti on? A. No . It wr1s ac tually a part . of ~ts 
working area and a s such had t o be kep t clear and. t hls JS fully 
under st ood by all the people in the place but -

Q.I know vihat the Ac t s ays and I l{n ow it is und erstood. I 0.m 
nm;,r talki ng about the practical s ituation a s it exists when the 
work is being carried out, that the working place you are . 
talking abou t here is a mnt vJhe r e only a shuttle car goes ln 
and out and there is only noxious gas in ther e . You see, you 
started off with the 8$Umfrtion , did you not, that the gas in 
there is noxious? A4 Yes. r 

Then later on Mr.Lee a sked you "Q.Did you yourself at any time give 
any consideration in Section 8 Right t o the presence of bot tom 
gas? i1.. No ." 

r aJTI reminde d by Hr. Hahon that at p . 824 this was put to you: 

"Q.Speaking for yourself, you di d not expect to find inf lammable 
gQS in 8 Right? A. I had not found it be f ore but that did not 

say I would not expect to find it . I really did not think it 
\lras there bu t I tested just the same and th is is the reason fo r 
~sting these things, t o s ee if there was any detectable quanticy 
of gas present. 

Q.As far a s you knovr t hat was the a ttitude of yours ubordinates, 
Hr . vlright d idn 1 t really expect to find CH4 in the -vrorking s 
eithe r, d id he? A. I coul d not tell you what his thoughts were.n 

Have you had a situat ion where the Deputies are thinking in terms 
of noxious ga s and not thinking in terms of inflammable gas? You 
lv0Uld agree , would you not , their minds woul d be directed \,vi th 
spec ial a tt ention to inflammable ga s? A.This is a pos sibility. 

Q.And using an oil flame safety lamp , they go ther e and they find 
noxious gas , they say "it is n oxious gas , 11 t hey re port that and 
Day not go MY further; HOuld yo u agree that that is a possibility? 
A. ~hat is a po ssibility ,y es . 

Q. And again it is of cour se a possibility that t he depu tie s, although 
they look for noxious gas, and find s ome , at other times may m t 
carry out a full test, a proper t e st in the area of the shunt, 
because they say "there is n oxious gas there , it is not worth 
\vorrying e.b outt ~t. is only a shuttle car. dr iver going_ in and out . 11 

Is that a posslblllt y? A. I would not t hlnk that would be right.rt 
is a possibility but -

HIS HON OR: I cannot r eally a sk you that; I vJould not ask any man 
to pas s un op inion on whether anothe r man thought it. 

1-'IR .SULLIVAN~ Q..Returning t o the testing about which H:bs Honcr 
RUt s ome questions to you , I want to remind you of the position 
1n western r e turns. In D he ading on the ribs at the roof l evel, 
2? Yards back fr om the standing place you found Lp to 2% of nB thane 
Wlth the f l ame safety lamp? A.Yes. 

Q.Yo u fotL'1d that with the oil flarae s a f e ty lanp , d id you? A. Yes. 

Q.And I am instructed Hr .Parkinson did . There was a dep uty, 
Doug Harvey, there, wasn 1 t there? A.Yes. 

Q.And \vhen you came into the place yo u a sked him hovJ th ing s 1v e re e.nd 
he sai d eve ryth i ng -v,ras okay? A. Thi s is inr e l a tian to the working 
Place itself. 848. J.Pudd l e , xx. 



Q. Ye s. Did Mr. Doug Harvey have an oil flame saf e ty lamp?A. Ye s. 

Q. And he had. not found it ?A. I do.nt t think he had been in 
the section before I spoke to him. 

Q. Wha t I sa id to you was he had not found it, had he?A. He hadn't 
found it up till this --

Q. He said everything was O.K., didn 1 t he? (obj ect ed to by 
Mr. Reynolds and Mr. McNally). 

ijR. McNALLY: The r eport t ender ed a s an Exhibit shows he t e sted 
at 8.15 and report ed inflammable ga s. 

MR. SULLIV AN : May I have t he report, Your Honcr? 

WITNESS: It would be the big one, the composite general r eport. 

MR. SULLIVi~: Q. C heading. We were talking about D heading, 
weren't we?A. I am not quite sure . I thought you sa id C heading. 

Q. Is tha t wha t you SI-lore, tha t you thought I sa id C heading? 
A. When you were spe aking just then I thought you said C heading. 

Q. When I wa s putting to you those questions about Mr. Harvey's 
test?A. Yes , I thought you said C heading. 

Q. Then may I r ead you what you sa id in your statement, 11 We 
came back to C heading which was a standing place being bolted 
with the roof bolter. There wa s no ga s de t ected wifu the safety 
lamp at the roof l evel. However, l pe r c ent to 2t per cent of 
me thane was picked up in the caviti e s with the methanomet er 20 
yards inby the roof bolter 11 ?A. Ye s, tha t is right. 

Q. Then you gave certain instructions, 11 We then moved to 
D heading . We inspected D heading. In the general body of the 
air there wa s no ga s de t ected with an oil safety lamp. We 
t ested the ribs at the roof level. However, 20 yards back 
from t he standing place found up to 2 per cent me thane a t the 
roof level and over the roof bolter which wa s not working 7

11 

and you did tha t with a flame ·saf e ty lamp?A. Ye s, in D heading. 
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MR .SULLIVAN: Q.How do you explain , if Mr .Harvey tested, vrhy te 
did not report inflammable gas in D he~ding, - - -

MR.HcNALLY: My friend has not seen the report. 

WITNESS: I imagine he wo uld report the thing. I ~a reporting what 
I f ound there . 

HR .SULLIVAN : Q.Do you think Hr . Harvey f ound it? 1~ . Yes . 

q,Do you suggest he reported it? A. I suggest he -vro uld report it, 
yes . 

HIS HONOR: If I remember v1ork stoppe d that ve ry morning. 

Ml1 . REYNOLDS~ Almost at this instant. 

HR .SULL I\TAN~ There is one of Mr . Harvey' s on tre third. It did 
not s top in that split till late r. 

HIS HON OR : It would not be very muc h later . There would not be 
mu ch work d ... me . 

HR .LEE: '\AJould not you have to k.n.ow whether Deputy Harvey rep orted 
,,1hat he found or the result of this findin g for this evidence to 
be of any value ? 

HIS HONOR: I a1n reminded by Mr . Mahon there is a smaller re port 
which deals s pecifically with the ventilation. 

MR .SULLIVA.l'f ~ Q.Incidentally, Hr . Harvey had put no hurdles or 
brattice up in that section to disperse the gas , had he? ~This is 
i mmediately after the start of the shift. There wa s no much 
t ime t o do anything . 

Q,What time did you get in , about 8 o 1 clock? 1\. We got in "rith the 
men going in on the transpor t. 

Q.About eight you got into this place? A. It would be about ~ 
8 o 'clock, possibly five past or ten past . 

Q.There was a man in the place F.!Xld Hr. Harvey said t o you 11 Ever ything 
is okay" and no hurdles or brattice had been put up. Is that 
right? A. That "everything is ckay" I an afraid. refe rs t o the 
working place itself. 

Q. He said " Everything11 according to you, did he? A.Yes. 

MR . SULLrJM~: We do not seam to have a rep ort of the ninth. W6 
have the eighth and the tEnth. 

HIS HCNOR: I would have thought tha r e would be perhaps a briof 
r ep ort . 

MR .McNALLY; I have a recollection of seeing it. I thought I 
tendered it. 

HR .REll'JOLDS: It may be a separate exhibit. 

:Vffi .SULLIVAN ~ It could be a separate exhibit , your Honar . 

HI3 HONOR: Hr .Beva.rl tells me there was only one r ep er t of the 
ninth am. that was the deputy 1 s report, Mr .Dunlop . 

MR .HcNA.LLY~ Here it is, Your Honor. It is only asmall one, 

MR .SULLIVA : "&hows inflammable gas in C and D headings. The in­
spaction vias completGd at 9.10 - started .J.t SolO". 
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Q. Returning to what I wa s putting to you before : Tha t bra ttice 
screen in t he shunt was put up to keep ga ses back in tho goaf? 
A. To contain the gases in the goaf, ye s. 

Q. The bleeder tube or the ven t tube wa s pu t in to ventila t e 
anY ga ses tha t may co me through the bra ttlce?A. It was put in 
primarily to induce the flow of air from the intake airway in 
to the shunt itself. 

Q· To dilut e any gas tha t might come through the go af?A. Ye s, 
and help dilut e any gas tha t might infil6rate through the 
brattice itself. 

Q• Tha t wa s only a t empor ary expedien t until you put through a 
bleeder heading?A. Yes. 

Q. You thought all your problems would be solved 1lhen the 
bleeder went through?A. I did not t hink I had any r eal problems. 

Q. No , but whatever problems you had. A. I thought the way 
we wer e doing it would meet the situa tion sa tisfactorily. 

Q. You intended t he driving of the Bleeder he~ding to go on 
and ho l e into the goaf?A. Ye s. 

Q. Af t er you l ef t the section and whilst it wa s not dir ectly 
und er your supervision someone without your authority - am I 
right - failed to hole through into the goaf and brought the 
machine back to get coal out on another lift. Is tha t a f air 
st ~tement?A. No , it is not a f air sta t ement. It is gener a lly 
true . 

Q. It did happen 

MR . REYNOLDS : You introduc ed the words 11 without authority" .• 

MR . SULLIVJ~: Q. Did it happen?A. Ye s, the machine wa s brought 
back . 

Q. Without holing into the goaf?A. Yes. 

Q. Yet you wanted to put the bleeder he ading through?A. Yes. 

Q. Was t ha t done with your au thority or not?A. No. 

Q. It wa s done wi thout your authority. So, wha t I put to you 
'was a fair sta t ement; of the position, wa s it not?A. The machine 
was brought back not to start a new lift, but it came back 
because of the fact --

Q. The machine wa s brought back to start a new lift?A. But you 
are a sking me to answer the question you asked befor e , aren't 
you? 

Q. Yes. A. Did not tha t que stion include the f act - (interrupt ed) 

HIS HON OR: I will have it from the witness plea se? 

WITNESS: I understood Mr. Sullivan to say isn't it right the 
machine was brought back to start a new lift? 

HIS HONOR: Q. Ye s. A. Wha t I would like t o qualify is it wa s 
brought back to start the new place off which wa s adj acent to the 
other one which in t erms could be c alled a new lift but the f act 
was the r oa son it was brought back to there ~-

~· SULLIV.tJJ : I never a sked the witne ss this. 
Wl thout the authority of this witne ss. 

It wa s done 
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HIS HON OR: The witness is questioning the ac curacy of .your , 
description that it was brought bac~ to star t a ne~ l~ft . r~e 
witnes s, as I unde rstand it, is saylng that truly.lt lS star.tmg a 
new lift but n.ot merely for the purp ose of start1ng a. .new Jjft, 
but that t o start the new lift was incidental to carrylng out the 
or i ginal intention. 

WI'l'NESS: Yes. 

HR .SULL IVAN: Q. Why would not your original intention have been 
c:1rried out in the first place? A. Because of a mistake. 

Q.You d i d not make this mistake ? A. No . 

Q. You ·.,;ere only told it was a mistake? A. Yes. 

Q.By whom? A. Mr. ~lright. 

Q.Mr.Wright . Is tha t right? A· Yes . 

MH . HcNALLY: I aSSW11e my fri end is going on with this? I t ho ught 
your Honor as ked certain questions ye st e rday and indicated that 
there the matter must en d till we heard Nr . Cambourn? 

HI S HONOR: Mr .Sullivan is attempting to ge t something else f r om the 
witnes s. I take it you are not trying to solve the problem? 
As a matt e r of fact , Mr .Sullivan de liberately tried to avoid saying 
the re wa s a mistake . 

MR .Mc NALLY: We are s till r elying on the same he r e sqy. 

MR .SULL IV.AN~ I a :n pr ep ared t o leave this aspect till Hr . Camb ourn 
come s. I only wanted to get out the fact.that a nevr lift was 
star ted vrithout his authority . 

(Short a d journment) 

HR . SULLIV.AN: Q.There was a quest-ion asked by my l earne d frie nd Hr. 
Nurray in which the s uggest'ion seemed t o be t hat the miner drive r 
has a lamp- he has o11 oil safety lamp , hasn 't he? A. It is usually 
the mine r driver,ye s. 

(~. Bu t of c ourse he is under no obligation t o test other places 
than where the c ontinuous miner is and s ee if there is an irrflamm­
ab l $ pe rcentage of methane? A. we do not depend on any inspections 
made by mine r dr ive rs . The c ompany officials thems e lve s nake all 
the inspe ct ion s. 

Q.It is pure ly there a s a safe ty device for the miner driver to keep 
an eye on it? ,A.. No , to use for t e sting ga s if h e so requires . 

Q.Around the machine ? A.Yes, or any\vhere else m may think , as long 
as it is in the working area itself. 

Q. You are no t sugge sting he would be e ithe r required ~ expected 
or 1.voul d desire to t e st for gas in the shunt, are you? A. No , I an 
not saying that, I mean in the working p lace itscl f. 

Q.Appar ently when up in 3 cut-through after you br oueh t the brick­
laye r in~Mr .Lake - you brought him in to C3ment r e nde r the brat ticG 
you W&rned Mr.Dep uty st ewart t o be on the lookout for noxi ous ga s? 
A. Ye s. 

Q.You i nt ended that instruction to cove r the whole of tho -vrorkings 
t hereafter? ..t.Yes, to keep his eye on the c on trol. 

Q. You yourself, you have told His Honor ,wero well aware of tm mix­
turG of methane ,carbon dioxide and nitrogen vvhich c onstitutes vrhat 
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is known as IllavJarra bottom ga s, ar~ you not?A· I have known 
of its presence in Bulli Colliery prlor to thls. 

Q. You know if there is suf fici ent c arbon dioxide and nitrogen 
in such a mixture it will stay a t floor level, you knew tha t? 
A. Yes, depending on the mixtures themselves and the rela tive 
density. 

Q. You knew tha t?A. Ye s. 

Q. You knew also I take it from your r eading and experience t ha t 
such a gas, whilst it remains on the floor, could contain an 
inflamma~le percentage of rrethane?A. It could contain some methane. 

Q. I t wa s inflammable ga s. A. Inflammable ga s, yes. 

Q. And tha t the mixture could be inflammable. You knew tha t, 
didn 't you?A. No, I did not know tha t. I knew when it bec ame 
diluted, depending on the dilution, you might get suffic ient --

Q. Given sufficient dilution of oxygen it could be inflammable? 
A. Ye s, assuming there wa s sufficient CH4 in the first place. 

Q. You could ge t it in such a percentage, ye s. I will ask you 
this gener al question: Is there any provision made at your 
colliery for submitting specimens of goaf ga s to a chemist for 
analysis?A. There are avenues ava ilable but it is not done under 
any system or --

Q. There are avenues a vailable?A. Ye s. 

Q. Supposing you had said to Mr. Stone, your manager, you wanted 
a specimen of the goaf ga s analysed, it could have been done? 
A . Yes . 

Q. Quite quickly?A. Rea sonably quickly, I would imagine. 

Q. Whilst you knew ther e had been inflammable ga s found in these 
workings and you knew there was some form of bottom ga s there 
you did not t hink it a wise prec aution to take?A. It did not occur 
to me a s being necessary. 

Q. In t he same Wa'J as it did not occur to you as being necessary 
to take a methanometer up there one day and t e st the ga s in fue 
shunt?A. Yes. 

Q. I wan t to a sk you a bout the regulators there. How a re they 
constructed? How is the r egulation through which the a ir goes 
~nto 8 Right? What sort of a r egulator is it?A. The regulator 
1s constructed by the erection of props and flat sheet metal 
nailed to the props leaving an opening for the r egulator itself. 
The r egula tor is in the opening. 

Q. The frame of the regulator is flat steel?A. The f ace of the 
regulator is flat sheet. 

Q. Nailed on to the props?A. Yes, and/or 3 x 1 ba ttens. 

Q. With an apperture?A. With an opening. 

Q. Is that op ening adjustable?A. Inasmuch as you can vary the 
opening you have got there by taking off a sheet of tin and 
replacing it, which is quite readily done. 

Q: Quite a simple opration. Regulators are very important in a 
m1ne , aren't they?A. Yes. 

Q. Have you in your mining experience s een the other type of 
r egulator which has a sliding door on the apperture?A. Ye s. 
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Q•Are there any of t hose in Bulli Colliery? A. No . 

Q. They are capable of being locked - either pad locked or - ? 
A.The one I saw at the State 1"1ine "ras capablG of being locked but 

Q.Let me put this to you as a pre cQ.ution in th8 u~e of 
re o-ulators~ Do you not think it a proper precnJJtlon that t!:luey 
sh~uld be lockable and the key kept in the manager ' s. or undEr -. 
manager's possession? A· I have never seen the necesslty for thls . 

Q
0

The regulations provide 1 and I am referring to schedule 6 • 
This refers to your duty . Regulation 30 is the one I am going ·eo 
read . There are really two . Ther e is regulation 27 at p . l75 , 
usubject t o the instructions of the ma.tm.ager hen - ~hat is.you ­
"shall have c ontrol of the regulators and prevent lf posslble 
any improper inferference with t hem and in all cr..ses see that they 
are kept se curely fastened ." 30 provides " He shall not, withOJ. t 
the knowledge and consent of the Manager , himself undertake ~ 
com.mit any subordinate officer or person j_n the mirn to undertake 
any work or make any a lteration which would materially affect 
the system of ventilation" . At the Bulli Colliery there has 
nothing been done at all to S9e the regulators are kept se c urely 
fastene d? A. In my opinion, yes, they are securely fastened. . The 
t hings are p r operly c onst ructed. The sheet iron is tacked on . 
It 1.vould have to be a delibe rate act to go and breck it . 

Q.We a re contemplating a oelibero.te act? A. There would be no 
more diff iculty in altering the size of that than there -vmuld be 
in al tering the size of a chained door or pad lock. 

Q.They have got ·brick stoppings with the sliding door at the 
State Mine a t Lithgow?A. Yes, I saw this there . 

Q.Brick stopp ings wit h a sliding doer that could be locked? A. 
There was provision for loclcing . I don ' t say it was lee ked . 

Q. There was provision for it . And , the key could permanently hG.vc 
boen kept in the possession of the Hanager or Under - mMager ? A.. Oh 
qu itG pos sible,ya s . I do not knovT if it is required in the 
Act that it should be locked . 

Q,It is not carried out at t his Colliery? A. In m:y opinion it is 
being carrie d out . The regulator i s constructed (interrupted ) 

Q.Locking is not carr:ie d out? A. Where does it say " locking" ? 

Q. "Securely fastened"? A. As I said before the c onstruction of trn 
thing was s ecurely fa stened . Even with the regulator Hr . Sullivan 
is re f erring to 7 Your Honor, it must have a surround of some k i nd. 
You have a frame with a sliding door so by opening or closing i t 
y ou c ou ld vary the size of tho aperture . Usually it is c onstn~. cted, 
the frame itself , from something else , eitmr brickv1ork or tin or 
sof:lething of this nature , so actually you still have the: surround 
wh1ch could be just as ea sily inte rf e red with in this case c.. s you 
would with what I have here . 

HIS HONOR g ~Q . You say it i s fastened by either having batons or 
props nailed to the shee t iron; is that right ? A. Yes . 

~}S HONOR~ I sup pc:s e it c ould be sa i d you c:J.n fast on A door ei thor 
by n lock or you can nail it up ? 

HR. SULLIVAN~ q. There is another form of I'egulat or which could be 
locked and the key kept with the Manager. I just wanted to bring 
that out . You were uresen t during the fir e f:Lghting operation s ? A. 
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Q. The earlier part?Ae Yes o 

Q. The fall occurred about lle20 a.m., d~d it not? Do you 
r emember?A. There wa s a fall in the mornlng. I think there 
wa s a fall somewher e a bout lle20. I heard some noises that 
sounded like a f all prior to this, before 11 o 1 clock. 

Q. Do you khow where tha t wa s?Ao It wa s inby of the ar ea where 
we were. We were a t 0 cut-thf-ough at A Heading and it wa s 
down inby of there. It is hard to say where. It would be 
i mpossible t o sayo 

Q. When you got an opportunity to look a t the fire area the 
f all wa s actually in the heB dli~g, or in the cut-through, perhaps 
1 should say, between A and B heading, wa s it not?A. Ye s, and 
in the int ersection of No. 2 cut-through and A Heading. 

Q. It wa s a f all tha t did not compl etely block the he ading, 
wasn't it?A. It did not completely block the heading 

Q. No. As a ma tt er of f act when the fire fighting op erations 
con tinued t he fir e fight ers wer e able to stand on top of this 
f all and hose in towards the fire?A. Ye s. 

Q. Of course when such a fall occurs t he place from which the 
fall comes is vacated by its contents. In other words, if some 
of t he roof f alls down it l eave s -- ? A. Ye s. 

Q. So it could not be suggest ed in any way that that fall 
blocked the heading or the cut-through in Noo 2 cut-through? 
A. It did not block it but it partially blocked it. 

Q. Not very much though?A • . I think- (interrupted) 

Q. Men were able to stand on it?A. I am not quite sure of this 
but I believe broken stone would occupy a volume of at lea st 
l t time s its s0lid volume. 

Q. About l/3rd. 
ago. 

Do you agree with tha t?Ao It is a fair while 

Q. So i t would be fa ir to say tha t t he restriction would not 
amount to more than l/3rd and because the pl ace from which it 
had come in the roof had been complet ely vaca t ed it would be a 
good deal less t han l/3rd?Ao No, what would happ en would be 
wher e the f all terminated in the intersection it would come straight 
down and instead of f a lling into the space immedia tely below where 
the stone f ell it drew back under the lip tha t wa s still supported -
(int errupted) 

MR . REYNOLDS: Le t him say what he wants to sa yo 

MR . SULLIVAN: Q. There wer e no other blockages of the intake 
airwa ys other than tha t fall - intake or r e turn airways?A. There 
was partial obstruction along C heading itself. During this 
period the activities that were t aking place round there were 
consider able. There was some movement of traffic inasmuch as 
brick s were brought in to form preparatory seals across B and C 
headingso The se were being unloaded at some period. Sand 
had been brought in, the ba ttery locos had brought bra ttice in to 
~he area so tha t the actual track road itself in C heading I 
lmagine most of this time would have had some obstruction along it. 

Q. Ther e wa s a lot of movement there?A. A lot of cars and other 
things like this e 

9· But only the type of movement tha t t akes place to a less ext ent 
~ ordinary mining op er a tions?A. It might have been grea ter at this 
tl~e because they would be sta tioned for some time at the particular 
po1nt wherea s in norma l conditions they would be movingo 
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Q Where were they kept stationary?A. We unloaded bricks betweEn 
o·cut-through and 1 cut-through on A heading. We unloaded.bricks 
a t t he intersection of 0 cut-through a nd C heading - C headlng, 
I am sorry. 

' 

HIS HONOR: Mr. McNally, do you want t o interpose Mr. Cambourn 
a t this stage? 

MR . McNALLY: I f it is convenien t, Yonr Honor. 

HIS HONOR: It depends how long you mi ght t ake with Mr. Puddle. 

MR . McNALLY: I shall not be long with Mr. PRddle. 

HIS HONOR: Perhap s you may a sk que stions of Mr. Puddle and 
then call Mr. Cambourn and perhaps we may saveMr. Reynolds 1 

re-examination till l a t era 

MR . REYNOLDS: Per haps we may finish with t he witness? 

HIS HONOR : I would be ver y happy to do tha t. 

MR . REYNOLDS: The se things are a gr ea t stra in to a person~ 

MR . McNALLY : Q. I think you sa id you did certa in tests in the 
shunt t ha t wa s then at 3 cut-through on 5th October 1965?A. Yes. 

Q. I s t here any particular r ea son why you did those tests ~r 
was it just part of the normal inspection?A. As I stated before 
the day I was in there noxious ga s was rising up along A he ading 
and being diluted by the main air current a t the intersection of 
A heading and No. 3 cut-through so I knew noxious gas wzs rising 
up a long there and t e sted there and found so me there and after 
the scr een was put up we put a diverting screen back into it 
again for a period anJ I was there aft er the diverting screen 
was put up - the \>Jorking area wa s quit e safe, A heading was not 
being used a s a shunt, the fac e area where the machine wa s working 
was qui te clear , the ar ea wher e the men were working around the 
machin e was quit e clea r. 

Q. This was the day when Mr. Stewart with the assistance of 
Mr . Wright and Mr. Lake and I think one other gentleman erected 
a brattice screen?A. Mr. Stewart and myself worked on the erecting 
of a bra ttice screen, 

Q. I think you and Mr. Stewart had actually started it - ? A. I 
helped in the er ecting of the brattice screen. 

Q. You start ed to put the bra ttic e screen up before - ? A. Nq, 
Mr . Wright wa s in the panel but in another part of the panel.When 
I went down to the work face itself and into this part the screen 
wa s in the course of erection at this time and I gave assistance 
in er ec ting it. 

Q. As, or after you left, mtt. Lake c ame and took over?A. After 
I left Mr. Lake came , 

Q. You went out of the mine and t e l ephoned Mr. Stewart to tell 
him you were sending down an elephant's trunk?A. I did not go 
out of t he mine , I went to an inby section and rang from there. 
I located a T-piece to fit into the ven t tube line tha t would 
allow t he a ttaching of the spira l tube to the same . I r ang from 
this other panel and told Mr. St ewart I had found this stuff and 
I t hough t we ought to try it out and put it into this area to 
see if we could keep the area clean so tha t it could be used as a 
shunt. 

Q. You actually arranged for the bleed tube itself to be brought 
f~om another colliery, Appin or Nebo?A. One pi ec e of spiral tubing 
d1d come from Appin. 
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Q.You arranged that yourself? A. I spoke to the Manager who 
arranged that. 

Q.Very briefly, on this day when y ou tested, on 5th October, 
you used. an oil safety l amp , I think, only? A.Yes. 

q Just what size light did you use in the lamp ? A. Te sting down 
t;ward. s the bottom I used a fairly full flame and this wa s 
to try and locate the extent of noxi ous gases or vlhere t he m xious 
r.:as e s were c oming to, or f ind. out 1 .. 1he re they weree 'rhe tests 
for inflammable gas I made below with the oil flame s a fety lamp 
at the level above the known presence of the noxious gas . 

Q.A.nd that is the non-luminuous flame? A. Yese 

Q.That is the om y ou t e sted for me thl.Ul e a t the ~of with? A~It 
will test for methane anywhere, wit h t his. 

Q.Did you test for bottom gas down nearer the floor with the non­
lwninuous flame · A...Yes. 

HR. REYNOLDS: Do you mean Illawarra bottom gas? 

vliTNESS ~ Did. I test for Illawarra bottom gas down near the bottom? 
I tested for the presence of noxicus gas and after finding there 
'"as noxious gas down close t o the floor coming out I thEn tested 
immediately ~_hove this area to see if there was any CH4 ovar the 
top of it . 

HIS HON OR: I do not unde rstand this. 

Q.Is t h i s your understanding of Illawarra bottom gas: That you 
have a layer of noxious gas and then a l a yer of CH4?A. No , it is 
intimately mixed but as the mixture would c ome Ql t of an area of 
Illawarra bo tt om gas and was meeting with the air I feel the 
methane wou l d rise more quickly into the air itself. 

Q.In other 1tJOrds you are saying they are in a process of separation 
as they exi sted on the floor? A. Yes. 

Cl.And the methane was rising above and coming rut? A. Once it meets 
·with the other air , with the incoming fresh air. 

MR . McNALLY ~ I t hink this is in accordance with Mr.Nenzie s' statenB nt 
when he s a i d you t e st for the top of the layer. 

HIS HONOR~ I recall that also . UnfortunatGly, since that time 
one has heard so many other theories that it becomes difficult. 
One c ame from 1'1r .Buck, that they on ly separate out in what he· 
calls geological time. 

HR. SULLIVANg That is Mr .Donegan 1 s evidence . 

HR .LEE g Yes . If l"Lf . HGnzies did say you t Gs ted the top that · would 
be wr ong . 

HIS HONOR : Mr.Buck tells me you have in fact at all timGs an 
i~timate mixture of both gases and the po s i t ion is it is more 
dllu t ed on the uppe r level near what is called the fringe a roa 
by the air with which it is coming in c ont ac ta If you test d ovm 
~elov; that y our lamp will t end to go out so what you do is test 
1n a more diluted p lacee Tha t strike s me a s a VGry s pe culative 
mGthod of testing for gas . 

HR.McNALLY: That is what Mr . MenziGs s a id. 

HIS HONOR : I re a lise that . It may well explain why from ti~ to time 
You may get deputies who do no t know how t o test f or me thane in 
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bottom gas, because they go down and put the i~ lamp down f ar 
enough and s ee it has gone out, or is t ending to go out and they 
say it is noxious ga s and when t hey try to t e st above it in this 
fring e ar ea ther e must come many occ a sions when they have mis sed 
the me t hane. They might even be missing the bottom ga s. You 
might ge t a stage wher e you gradually lower down into it and see 
wha t happens to your flame and unless you have v ery good eye sight 
you might well mi ss the cap. However, tha t seems to be the 
situa tion. 

Q. Do you agree with wha t Mr. Buck ha s j ust put to me , a s I told 
the Court?A. Yes, I t hink t ha t is just nbout it. 
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~m . McNALLY: Q.On that occasion you did not detect Illawarra 
bottom gas? A. No . 

Q.Do you concede the pos~ibil~ty that it may wel~ ha:re been.Illawarra 
bottom gas you were deallng wlth at that stage ln Vle\v of -che sub­
sequ.en t happenings? .. ~ . It eo uld have been. 

Q,Have you in fact in the Bulli colliery , you yourself , ever found 
Illawarra bottom gas near the fl oor? A. Yes , I can remember 
it is only o'nce, I was down in Purple tunnel quite a few years a.go. 
When purple wa s developing ,.,e cnme into close proximity to a 
dyke pas sing through the seam and on a very small occasion rrund 
thero we had a mixture of gas coming ou t from the ooal which could 
be dete ct ed down near the bottom of the seo..m and detected in 
an oil fl ame safety lamp held hard up agains t the coal v.rhere it 
was emitting from and also you could by smell alone and the feeling 
itself, there was a slight trace of C02 al so p resent in th is . So 
you had the C02 and till methane in this mix!U'e down in there. 
That is the only place I have actually detected it myself. 

Q.Where you really found Illawarra bottom gas? A· Yes . 

q.Do you knovr the old 8 Right section? A. Yes . 

Q.That was the goaf looking outby in 8 Right , slightly to till 
right of the present 8 Right? A. Yes . 

,-!, .Did you know that there was Illawarra Bottom gas in ih3. t area? A. 
Not to my ~1owledge ,no. 

Q.You did not know? A.No. 

Q. . I think certain tests were carried cut on or about 8th Decan ber 
when the brat tice screen was re-erected in the shunt? A. Ye ~ 

Q,That situation, those so called simulated conditions, were set 
~ I think for a period of 24 hours only? A.Yes, I think it was 
somewhere round abo ut the period it was set up for • It was not 
set up for very long. 

Q,It was c ompleted late one afternoon and taken down the next 
afternoon? A. I think it c flme in about 10 o 1 clock on the pre'lim s 
- on one af t e rnoon, and I think it '"as removed sane-where on the 
following night . 

Q.During that time did you yourself actually carry out any tests with 
a flame safety lanp? A.Yes. 

Q,•4nd did you have any d iff i cul ty at all in de t ee t ing tb e pre sen e 
of bot tom gas - Illawarra bottom gas?A. We found that from the 
results of the tests then, it was quite easy t o pick up somewhere 
between lt and 2~, and I think it was 3% at one stage of methane . 

Q.These are your tests I am talking about? J1. Yes , this :is my 
o1m tests , plus the face and the stopping that vas in the shurt , and 
also C02 was proved to be present . There wa s an instrurnert trn t 
they used to de t e ct C02 - that c onclusive ly p roved tha t C02 was 
also present at this time . 

Q.Jus t whore Has it in relation to the brattice that :vou frond the 
me thane? A. I found it on both tre l ef t and rigrt ham·r ibs . 

Q. How high up? A. lrJGll , I found it up t o about f our and n, half 
fGet from the floor . 

Q. itnd that was actually a:~parently coming thrmgh the sides of 
the bratt ice? A . Yes . It vras c oming through tho sLd es of the b rattice, 
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Q. Was there some gap - I do not suggest a large gap, but some 
gap on either side of the brattice screen?A. It was not 
complete~y sealed to the coal, no. 

Q. Did you find it an~vhere else in the shunt besides the left 
and right p.and side of the brattice?.i. )8s, I can remember it 
was easily detectable even in the middle of the brattice scre en 
itself a t approximately the same height. 

Q. Wha t about further back into the shunt itself?A. Behind the 
shunt? 

Q. No , further outby the bra ttic e screen, away from the bratti~e -
did you detect any methane there?A. Back along the right hand 
rib of the shunt itself, t ha t is looking into the shunt, I 
picked up some gas. On this point I think it would be about 
t 1~.o or three yards back from the bra ttice. 

Q. Wha t height was tha t?A. This ca.me down to somewhe r e about 
3t feet, I think, or 2t fe et. 

Q. Did you use the methanometer or the flame safety lamp?A. I am 
referring now to the oi·l safe ty lamp also. 

Q. All the time?A. Not all the time. I was correlating the 
r eading s I was getting with my oil lamp with the M.S.A. at 
this time . 

Q. You were finding the methane first with the M.S.A. and then 
t esting wi th t he safety lamp?A. Or vice ver~a. I cantt say how 
this was - it depended on what I had in my hand at the time. I 
may use the oil lamp first. 

Q. In the general body of air you t es ted, was there a reading of 
methane on the oil flame safe ty lamp?A. No, I would say a yard 
from ei ther the rib or the brattice was as far as I could detect 
this stuff. It \vas being dilut ed · af t er this with the oil safe ty 
lamp • . 

Q. So with the exception possibly of a yard from the rib or 
brattice, in the general body of air methane could not be 
detec t ed on the oil safe ty lamp when you t e sted?A. I could not 
ffi4ear to this, but about a yard. 

Q. Do you know what the quantity of a ir was going up to the turn 
on this day?A. There were r eadings tak en. I think it was somewhere 
in t he order of round about 31,000. 

Q. This is 8th December we are speaking of?A. Yes, well, I cantt 
say certainly, but it would be somewhere be tween 26,000 and 31,000. 

Q. Put it this way: It was approximately the same a s on the day 
of the fire?A. Yes. 

~ .And I think the r eading of methane in the return on t ha t day 
was .3 per cent?A. On the day of the fire? 

Q. No , on t he 8 th December?A. No, .2 per cent. 

Q. Well, wha t was the r eading in your r e turn airway in December 
1965? I put it to you it was .3 per cent?A. I am not quite sure 
wt thout having a look at the r ecords, but the r ecords are avai l able 
there. I don't t hink it was. 

MR . REYNOLDS: As far a s I am instruct ed, it was .3 in flec ember. 
I think it is a monthly average. 

HR . McNALLY: Q. Do you acc ep t that?A. Ye s ~ 

860. Jo Puddle, xx . 



Q I think you did have a recollection it was about . 3 per cent, 
~ that so? A. Ye s, it was either . 2 or . 3 and I a c cept it was . 3 • 

Q~He are now taking b~fore the fire , on the Sl:illd.:W , which would 
be 7th November . I thlnkyou do not Know who ln fact S:;ar t ed t 1:B 
auxiliary fans in 8 Right section?A. ~o . 

Q.It frequently is~ D~pu ty who -vrorks o-yer~ime on . a Sunday \bo s t arts 
the va rious fans, ls lt not? A. Yes , t hl s lS posslble . 

Q.But you do not know 'T,vho it 1.,;as? A. No . 

a.I think Mr . Fred Wright is the Assistant Und~ -manager in 
~harge of the morning shift? A. Yes . 

Q.A.nd I think he is the person you discussed the proposal to 
spli t the pillar outby the No . 2 cut - through? A. It was al9) 
discuss ed viith the Han ager,yes . 

Q. Just when was it you discussed this proposal with Nr . Fr ed Wright? 
A.VJell, I knovl it ,,ras prior to the driving of the f ac'e down the 
extension of No . 2 cut-through. 

Q. I think he was also the gen tleman to Hhom you gave instructions 
that the shunt should be watched? A. Yes, I mentioned it b Mr . 
Wright about this area . 

Q. I think he wa s actually in the No . 2 cut - through area on t1:B day 
of the fire before tre fire ? A. Yes . 

Q, .. re you able to say whether or not he actually tested in the 
area for gas? A· My i mp ression is that he did not . 

Q.Do you know? A. I have s poken to him and he said he did not 
tes t in the shunt area . 

q,He did not test in the shunt area? A. Yes, he didn ' t . 

HIS HON OR: Q. Thi :.:; is before the fire occurred, on the day of the 
fire; do you Y...11m,; \<That he \vas doing? A. He made a routine inspec t ion, 
which he doe s every day or practically every rJ ay , tohave a look 
at the place , the general safety a..11.d to check up t o see if any-
thing is needed . · 

HR.HcNALLY: Q. It is possible he may have at some time tested the 
shunt - not tested , but inspect e d the shLU1t , had c look aro t~nd at 
the shunt and the fans? A. I ca.n recall s pe ak ing t o r·Lr . vlright since 
t he time and what ha t old me \-TaS that he had not tested for gas in 
the shunt . 

Q: . But you do not really know whether he went into the s hurt or not? 
A. No , I could not tell you this . 

Q . Mr . ~gar is the Under -manager or was then the As sistant in charge 
of the af ternoon shift? A. Yes . 

Q. I thinl.( he in fact at the t ime of the fir e held <=1_ first class 
ce rtific~te? A. Yes . 

~~ . He is noi.v the Assistant manaoer of Ne bo Coll i ery? A. Yes . 

Q.That Certific ~te is a higher c ertificate thab the cert ificRte 
You hold? A. Yes . 

~ 
l- • I:r: practice in the Bulli Colliory I think the miner drivers 1.,;ith 
uhGlr safe ty lar:p S test every half an hoLJ.r; is that t he llOS ition? 
~ · I ~trou.ld not like to comment on that . I have n ever yo t s~_j ent the 
lUll day in any one panel , but the miner drivers do t e st fo~ ~as . 
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HIS HONOR: Q. At the f ace?A. At the face area , y e s. 

Q. They do not take over the deput~es 1 job?A. No. The deputies 
make the inspections tha t are r equlred under the Act. 

MR . McNALLY~ Q. Just how often is a deputy r equired to t e st in 
the se circumstances in a shunt, in this s~unt?A. In tha~ s~unt 
there, specifically it would be o~ce · a shift because t~ls ls 
a working area, but there is no tlmber - the roof or Slde~ ar e 
not interfered with. The fac e ar ea itself when the contlnuous 
miner is in oper a tion, then tha t must b e t e sted every two hours 
on a production shift. 

Q. So, strictly speaking, this shunt in this 8 Right section 
as it existed on 9th November need have only been tested once 
during the morning shift on tha t day?A. Under the Act a s it stands 
it would have been, y es. 

Q. And if the pre-shift inspection had been made by the night 
deputy, Mr. Walker as it wa s in this case , the deputy n eed not 
go into the shunt as r equired either by the company or the 
r egulations for a t l east four hours after he goes into the area? 
A. That is so. 

HIS HONOR : Q. But you lad given instructions to deputies to look 
out for gas, had you not?A. Yes. 

MR . McNALLY: Q. Dealing with the instructions you gave, you 
did not r equire the deputy or anyone to inspect the shunt ar ea 
on occasions other than they were r equired t o do so by the 
provisions of t he Act, did you? You simply said, uKeep an eye 
on · it 11 ? A. Ye s. 

HIS HONOR : Q. Do you mean by tha t tha t you would expect the 
deputy merely to make a routine inspection under the Act when 
the under-manager said, 11Keep an eye on tha ttt? That all he need 
do was to go in four hours aft er the commencement of the shift, 
inspect a nd go out again? Would you expect tha t of a deputy? 
s . No, I would not expec t tha t a t a ll. What I intended wa s tha t 
i t had to be inspected f airly fr equently. 

MR . McNALLY: Q. Just what did you t ell Mr. Stewart?A. To keep 
an eye on the shunt itself, to make sure there were no noxious 
gases coming through the screens et ce t era to cause any concern 
at all. 

Q. Is tha t all you said to him?A. To t e st it regularly, ye s. 

Q. Think about it for a little whil e and t ell His Honor wha t you 
actually told Mr. Stewart?A. Well, I can't t ell you the exact vJOrds. 
All I can t ell you is my intention. 

Q. We ar e not inter e sted in your intention 

H~S HONOR : Q. If you do not r ecall the exact words, just do the 
best you can. A. I knew tha t noxious ga s had been de t ected in 
tha t heading befor e , and this is inby No . 9 driving, and this 
is the one to which I am now r ef erring. This is on 5th October, 
somewhere back beyond this, and a t this time we sa id ther e - I 
told deputy Stewart then tha t the noxious ga s had been de t ected 
in this area, we had worked out the arrangement be tween us of the 
screen to divert some of the air into the pl ac e . I l a t er spoke 
to him about the er ec tion of the spiral tube itself , to dispose 
of the direction screen , and also to make sure. tha t the spira l 
tube tha t went into the pl aee did its job adequately. 

MR. McNALLY: Q. Tha t is t he best you can r ecall of what you told 
Mr. Stewart?A. Ye s. 
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HIS HONOR~ QoSo what you say is NroStewart would have been 
fullY alive to the fact that there would have been danger ther e , 
at least a s far as noxious gas is conce rned? AoHe was fully aware 
that noxious gas would be present behind the screen. 

Q.And I suppose you are fully aware of the ~et, the statutory 
ob ligation on the Dep uty 7 that the Deputy ls the om man whom 
the company relies upon, apart from those above him, who stands 
between the compa...'1y and~ the men t o see that tre men ar e working 
in safety? AoYeso 

q.Hc in fact is the last stop, is he not~ in the change - the 
Deputy - and the mos t imp or tan t man becaL~se he is on the job all 
the time?AoThat is correcto 

q.And wo'uld you agree the De puty is supp osed to know that on him 
rests a grave responsibility? Ao Yeso 

o.would you agree that no self-r8specting deputy, conscious of 
tha t, would merely conduct a rou ·~ine che ck in the shunt area 
under these c onditions? Ao No, Ycur Honoro 

NReMcNALLY: We are not suggesting that that is th e case at a l le 
I am sure Y:ur Honor will agree that the statutory obligation 
is a matter Y~-lJ. ich must be borne in mind, together vli th all of the 
other factors o 

HIS HONOR ~ I am looking at the practicalities of the situation in 
addition to what the Statute states& 

HR . I-1cN.rt,_ LY~ 'Qoin fact, did you y our self test in tre area after the 
5th October. either the shunt in Noo 3 cutowthrough or the shunt in 
No . 2 cut ~~ hrough? A?I definitely did not test in No. 2 cut­
through .. I don 1 t think that I tested in Noo3 cu t-thrcu gh. 

MR . McNALLY: The point I s eek to make is that in fact l1r o Stewart 
vJa s testing beyond the regulation::<o He had already been in 
the shunt t-v1ice on this day and n 3ed not haw gone in therec 

HIS HONOR~ As to his need t o go in there 1 Id o not think. the re is 
much force in the argument as to the Deputies' .rmd to go in there 
because of the statutory r equireraent o If he has in fact made an 
error on some unusual danger there what you are saying is that he 
fulfilled the duty that was really on him because he 1.-Jent in there 
beyond the statutory requirement? 

HR . McNALLJ'a Noe there is evidence that tvrice l.vithin an hour or 
hour and a half.he inspected the shunt and the inference to be 
dravm there is that he was do j_ng his duty o vlo are facing the fact 
that it is an inference Your Honor can draw that this De puty did 
not in fact t esto He has given evidence he did and ther e is 
evidence of a. shuttle car driver who sa~.<r him go into the shunt.vJo 
seek to demonstrate to Your Boner t hat he was in fact looking 
af ter that shunt and "~;Jas not simply r e lying upon his Rule 4 renorts 
but was golng further than thatc -

HIS HONOR: You say he in fact carried out his duty as he was 
required to do a..'1d did not find the gas; that is your submission? 

MR . HcNALLY ~ Yes = he sat the lamp on the gr oundo 

HR .SULLDJ.AH ~ Qo (By leave) could you tell mc4 when it ~.<ras yoo. 
discussed with your 11anager~ Mr ~ Stone, the splitting of, I will 
call it the pillar, l engthways? AoWhat day · ~ I could. not tell .you 
what dayc 

Q.Was it before or after the fjre? Ao Before the fir e . 
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RE-EXAMINATION: 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. I want to a sk you some questions about the 
incidence of Illawarra bottom ga s a s known t o you, and I think 
we underst and from the evidence you gave tha t you worked in a 
different coal fi eld until 1957?A. Ye s. 

Q. All your experience wa s in the Lithgow area until you came 
here, was it?A. Ye s. 

Q. Up there is this gas which is found near the floor \-Iith an 
inflammable component, known at a ll?A. No . 

Q. I suppose when you came her e you heard about it, did you?A. I 
had heard mention of Illawarra bottom gas, yes. 

Q. You told my l earned fri end Mr. McNally tha t you had the 
personal exp erienc e of finding or de t ecting wha t you took to be 
this class of ga s once?A. Yes. 

Q. Now, wha t knowledg e do you hav e a s to authentic findings of 
this type of gas in the Bulli mine since you have been there? 
A. The incidents I spoke of befor e , and I know of holing the 
fault in 4 panel. An analysis there showed a mixture of C02 
and CH4. 

Q. This was an analysis done in the Central Office laboratory 
or t he A.I. & S. laboratory, wa s it?A. I understand this is 
whe r e it was done, ye s. 

Q. And apart from those t1.-10 instanc e s is tha t all you know of? 
A. Yes. 

Q. I do not know whether His Honor would want this question 
ans~red, but I put it for wha t it is worth: Is its occurrenc e 
in this South Coast r egarded a s a r are phenomenon?A. To my 
knowledge it is not common by any means. 

Q. But you would not go a s f ar ns the words I used; is that 
wha t you mean?A. It is r ar e in our position up there. 

HIS HONOR : Q. Along the South Coast mines - in this ar ea of the 
South Coast, is it r ar e?A. I c ouldn't r eally answer tha t one with 
sur e ty, on the Coast. My own knowledge of Bulli -

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. You have told us what you know in nearly nine 
year s?A. Ye s. 

Q. Would you try t o c onvey to His Honor, if you can, what is tbe 
general understanding of the mining community down her e about 
this ga s? If you eannot help us, you can say so?A. It is known 
along the Co a st mines itself, so I would a ssume tha t it has been 
found in some other mines. The r egularity of its occurr enc e I 
could not say .. 

HIS HONOR: Q. I suppose ther e is a distinction be tween the 
regularity of its occurrence and t he r egularity of its discovery? 
A. Yes. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Tha t is so, Your Honor, and I think this is probnbly 
at the heart of the problem. 

Q. Passing to another matter, you sa id in your evidence you had no 
knowledge of the finding of inflammable ga s in 8 Right and you 
donceded t o my fri end Mr. Sullivan tha t this wa s no·t accura te 
because there wer e some Rule 4 r eports which indica t ed its presence? 
.a. Yes. 

Q. And I think he dr ew your a tt ention to four instanc e s where it 
was r eport ed on the goaf edge be twe en 5th October and 14th October 
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in 8 Right ? (No answer) 

MR.SULLIVAN: It was later than that- the 27th , I think . 

MR.REYNOLDS: The 27th was in the miner place , if you care to check . 

Q..You gave evid ence and you were shown these report s whi ch bet1-reen 
5th ~tober 1965 a..r1d 14th October indic ated reportings of in­
flammable gas on the goaf edge. I think one of them was in t erms 
that it was a trace of inflammable eas on the goaf edge . What is 
your understanding of tha t expression , and thatwas on 12th 
october,l965? A. A trace of inflammable gas , the expression used 
and reported in Bulli General Rule 4 reports indicates that you 
maY possibly get a small c avity in the coal or in the roof where 
you can detect CH4 on Wl oil safety lamp but imme diately on 
r emoving the lamp away from it , even from 4 inches to a foot 
ou t in to the air curr ent, this is not detectable at all so it 
is most readily diluted, cannot be detected except in a secluded 
ar e a . 

Q..What was your under st anding of the other three rep orts wh.1c h said 
inf lammable gas on the edge of goaf being diluted, inflammable 
gas on goaf edge being d iluted, inflammable ga s on goaf e dge 
in centre he ading? What was y our interpretation of those three 
r ep orts? A. Hy interpre tation of those is that the CH4 ha d been 
de te cted but was being· most readily diluted that it oover at any 
time caused any concern or it was never found in the main air 
stre ar•1 or back in the v1orki.r:g places \bhemselves . 

Q. 'r he latest in point of date of those rep orts to 1-rhich I have 
r eferred vlas 14th Oc tober . As at 14th October where was the goaf 
ed ge ? A. The goaf edge vras actually in along 3. 

Q.Along 3 cut- thrcu gh? A. Yes . 

Q.Did you ever have any report of inflmwaable ga s along a goaf 
edge vrhich was in the position of No . 2 cut-thrrugh? A. No . No.2 
cut-through? 

Q. Yes . A. That is the drive on to No . 2 cut-through, no . 

Q.In the goaf o.r along the goaf edge? A. No, none in the area. 

(¥itness r e tired) 

(Luncheon adjournment) 

865 . J . Puddle , re - x . 



(On resumption) 

WILLIAM GEORGE C.aNBOURN 
Re-sworn ~ 

HIS HONOR~ Q.Would you tell me your full names a gain? A.William 
George Camb ourn. 

HIS HONOR: Do you want to do t h is, Mr . McNaJ_ly? 

11R .HcNALLY: Perhaps if Your Honor did it- subject; t o Y<mr Honor 's 
wishes? 

HIS HONOR: Q.You have already given evidence in this matter but 
have been asked to c ome back so that you could explain something 
about which we did not know when you 1,1ere giving your evidence. 
The re h a s been evidence p ut before this Inquiry a s to the attempt 
to hole the goaf in the extension of No .2 cut-through, I show 
you a copy of Exhibit J J . Are you famili a r with t hi s p lan? A. I 
am. 

Q. you will see the pencilled- in sect ion - No .13 • Have you that? 
A. Yes . 

Q.This extension t o No .2 cut-through has ati the end of it, as it 
Here , two drives to the right? A. Yes . 

Q, That is in the direction of the goaf? A.Yes. 

Q,We have been t old he re that this represented two attemp ts to 
hole into .the goa~ , the first of th~m ,the furthest of trnse drives , 
r esul ted 1.n the wlt hdrawal of the mlner to a new place to make a 
drive in anothe r direction , or , as it were, in another place . 
vle have been t old tha t you made the de cision to withdraw till miner. 
What do you s ay abou t that ? Did y ou make that decision yourself? 
A.On the Friday night after we had finished cutting coal which was 
app roximately ten pas t ten I went to the t elephone and t e l ephoned 
the Assistant Under-manager Mr.Don Egar and I explained t o him 
that the place was in approximately 33 yards and I expected to hole 
pos sibly at 27 yards and there was only about 3 rolls o f shuttle 
car cable l e ft on the drum and I said to him I expected t o ho le 
at 27 yards and we have gone 6 yards over this, possibly 1-re c o uld 
have missed the holing. Wha t I meartt was it was possible tre 
No.l was not down far enough or vJe were sliding t o the left of the 
pl a.ce and I s a id t o him llfv)fhat ,,rill I tell dog -1-ratch in regard to 
trn machine"? He said "Tell t hem to put it ba ck on another lift." 

Q. To tell dog-~Aratch t o put the machine back on another lift? A. 
Dog-watch doesn't c ome in to Sunday night, they finish Friday 
morning and anything t o ba ' told t o them I generally \.vrite on the 
side of the sheet and le ave it on his she e t and uhen he comes in 
Sunday night he p ick_s.:; the she e t up and goes on from ther e . 

Q,Who is the 11 he 11 on the dog-watch you are spanking of? A.Mr. 
Charlie 1~alker, the dog-watch deputy. 

Q.Did you in fact leave those instructions for him? A.Ye~ 

~.What sheet is t his? What is the nature of it? Is it a 
documen t kept at the mine ? A,No, it is just a ctually a pie ce of 
paper on the side of the production sheet of the w~ k for the next 
shift . 

~.You in fact left him this? A.Yes. 

~.Is that the last you had to d o \·Jith it? A0 Yes,until the 
Honday af t ernoon when I came in to work. I was talking to Hr .Wright 
the Assistant Under-manag~ on day s h ift an d I said t o him, 
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nr can ' t understand what happened, like , on Friday night, 
we should have holed o. t 27 yard s 11

• He said • Oh no , that is a 
50 yard p illar". 

Q. Does that mea11 1-rhen you v.rere v.rorking on the Friday night ·· 
was it? A. Ye s . 

Q. You did n ot know this was a 5o yard p i l lar? A. I did not know. 

Q. How dOe s that come about? A. Most of these lifts were 66 yard 
pillars split - split down the middle , each lif t app roximately 
27 yards of coal t o oach lift , and I assumed. this vTQS 27 yards . 

Q. In other words that meru1s you must have as3IDod the pillar 
into whlc h you v..rere working had been s plit , or that it itself 
wa s a s plit? A. Yes , I did. 

Q. Could you not tell by going along the c ut-thr o ugh and seei ng 
how far that p illar extended how deep it extended? A. No , I could 
not . The stopp ing in A heading behind the shuttle car shunt -
you could not get behind that . 

Q. The stopp ing in A hea.ding? A. Yes, behind the EhuttJ.e car shunt . 

HR . REYNOLDS~ The shunt 

HIS HONOR: I am trying to understand it .Q. Had you been working 
in t his development for some time? A. Yes I had . 

Q. Were you working on it when what is now described at No .9, 
that is the deeply pencilled cut - through on J J - ? A. No. 9? 

I 

Q. You can hardly read n9rr, it is the one above 13 ? A. Yes. 

Q. Were you working on that development \·The n that vTas driven? A. 
I vlas . 

Q. You 'wer e working there I suppose when No . l 3 1-ras dr i ven ? A. Yes. 

Q. Wer e yon g iven no pla11 of development as to what v1as to happen? 
AeWas I given a plan. of v.rhat was going on? 

Q. Yes . A. No . 

Q. Did you know what the general nature of developme n t ;,.ras ? 
A. I was t old they \vere going down the extension of 2 100 
yard s &Bd then they we re going to turn right and hole in t o the 
goaf . 

Q. I sup pose you were there when the c oal in No .ll was lif t ed ? A. 
Ye s , I was . 

Q. You 
that 

see the di s.tanco .- th3 width of the las t par t, No . 3 to Noc.9 J 
is the last pillar , that is No . ll? A. Yes . 

Q. Tlle width of that pillar vras how much? A. Approximately 27 
yards of coal, 33 yard centres - that is th e centre of e 2ch road­
v·ray . 

Q. Thi.s one was how much, do you say? That i s the p illar throu~ 
vrhich you were driving to hole the goaf? A. It was supposed to be 
a 50 yard pillar which would be approximate l y 46 yards of coal. 

Q. . c ould not you tell the difference betv.reen them in E>ny v.ray &. t 
all? A. I did not kno1,; at t h e time . 
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Q.Nobod y told you? A, Nobody told me . 

Q.You 1.,rere in charge of the shif t that was t o make fu at drive d.ovm 
into the goaf? A. Yes. 

Q,Nobody was a ble t o t e ll you before you started h ow f a r you had 
to go; is that r ight? A. I neve r ever a s ked. , but I was not 'tld, 

Q• You never r.t slce d and were not told. 111]ho was the man immediatelY 
above you on this operation? A. On my shi ft? 

Q,On your shift? A.. Hr .D on Egar, Assistant Un der-manager . 

q.Did he give you any i ns t ructions before you started. to hole the 
goaf? A. No . 

Q. He did not say " Look, you will h a v e to go furthe r i n this one , 
it i s a 50 yard p i llarftt? A. No , 

Q.Mr , Egar told you to withdraw the mine r. Did he t e ll you vlhere 
t o re - locate the miner ? A. He s a id. just put it n ext to the lift we 
1.Jer e a c tually on, just t ake it back ora 

Q. ,That brings itt a s it were , vJhen you look at the plan, to the 
r i ght of your orlginal drive? A.Yes, two lifts wide, 

Q.Two lift s wide? AoYos. 

Q..It wa s not a quest ion of driving off too far a s it were to the 
l oft r1.nd so mis sing the original goaf, say, in No .9. It vJ a s not a 
que stion of this?_ ~~" This is what I as s umed. 

Q,But you see tha t doe s not touch the question , does it, of the 
width of the pillar? I sn't that the po siti on? It doesn 't r emedy 
the fac t that you have made a drive through a pillar which is t oo 
wide? Do y o u see what I mo&"1 ? You s eo , your orig inal drive 
is towards t he goaf? A. Ye s. 

Q. You reported t o Mr.Egar the fact that you \,ve r e running m t of 
cable and you still had not holed the goaf? A.Ye s. 

Q,You wor e then told the r ea son for that vJas the p illar was wide r 
t han you had. be liev ed? A. I did not know this till Monday . 

HR . REYNOLDS ~ He did not say Hr. Egar told him that. 

HIS HONOR: Qo 1t[ho told you? .~ . Mr.Wr igh t. Hr.vJright, on the 
Monday when I came t o work . 

Q, \'iha t did Hr . Egar say? Ac He didn 't say nothing, he just said. 
11 Bring the machine back on another lift "" 

Q, Bring it ba c k on anothe r lift? Ae Ye s. 

Q. vlhat Mr.Egar has done - and it is pe rhap s unfair putt ing this t o 
you ? -

HR . REYN OLDS: Yo ur Honor won 1 t do it , of co urso. 

HI S HONOR: I do it poin ting out to Mr .Cambm rn that for this 
decision I am not blaming him. 

Q. What Mr.Eg a.r has done is t o say to bring tho mac hine back on 
another lift - not just keep on going bocause the p ilJa r is 
Wider, but bring the machine bac l-r again and have an othe r go. That is 
what it r eal1y amounts t o , isn ' t; it ? A. Yo s, 
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Q.That wou~d mean Mr . Egarrs method of sol~ing this was not based 
upon the ml stako a s t o the depth of the plllar - you see if 
Hr . Egar had. known the real fault "ras the p illar was wider he should 
have said "Keep on go ing and youw ill strike it 11 ? A. Yes • 

. • That is the posi ti on ? i sn r t it? .A . Yes? that is ri@:lt . 

Q. That was not c onv e yed t o you by Hr . Egar at all? A. No . 

HR .LEE ~ Q. I n fac t you t old Hr . Ec; ar that you had gone in 33 yards 
and not holed? A. Ye s . 

Q. . He made no comment on tffi t at all? A. Not as far a s I can remember. 

Q. He did not say t o y ou t'Well , you h av e go t ano ther 2 0 odd yards 
to go n? ' • No . 

Q. But you did t ell him how far you had gone? A. Yes . 

Q.Not only did he not t oll you or make any c ommm t about the 
33 yards Cilld 50 yard s but h e simply said " Make another lift"? A· 
Ye s . 

Q. Yo u vr ill agr e0 that neither y ou nor h e at tha t point of time 
had any r ea s on to assume making c.no t hor lift v.rould necessarily 
holE into the goaf? A. No . 

Q. Because you t hought y ou mi ght be t oo high up? A. Too low down. 

Q. Yo u thought yo u may be past the end o f No . 9 ? A. Where vre should 
have holed ? y e s . 

Cl. And that vras the clear indication you conveyed to Hr . Egar , 
I suppose? ~ . Ye s . 

Q. .When he s a id t o you ft!Hake another l ift 11 t hat only meant? did it 
not , p utting the machine t o make n l ift alongside whe re you 
had been l ifting~ A. Ye s . 

Q.S o , what extra d istance did Hr . Egar allow for , in your view, 
by saying nTake another lif t ", How far back wel!'e you ging to 
come? A. Te n yards outby. 

Q.And that is the maximum?.A . Ye s . 

Q. . As far a s you knew you could have been 20 yards past tre end 
Of No . 9? .. : . That is righ t . 

Q.S o I suppose you vro r e s omewhat surprised '"'hen Mr . Egar said this 
t o you? A. No , not re a lly . It had been don e before . 

Q. But you are no t suggesting when a mist ake of this nature is made 
you just try - t he procedur e is t o just try and find vihe r e th e goaf 
is rather than n. s certa i n with s ome prec ision v1here it is? A .• I 
done the best I c ould . Hy shi ft had f i ni shed . 

Q.Your shift had finishod md your responsibility was over . Is 
that what you tell us? A. Yes . 

Q.Looking at the matter now \![hen y ou de cided you h ad mad e the 
Brror you thought y ou had made was ther e not 2. simply 1-ray fer you 
t? go about a s certaining whethe r y ou -wor e in e rror er 1u t I:Ji thout 
r1nging ltlr . Eg <u·? A . I c ould have , thoro is a pla~ in tm er ib p ano 1 . 

Q. A v ery accurate p lan? ~\But it has no measure men ts on it . 

Q, But it is to scale? A. Yes . 
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Q. How big is it? A.Oh; 4 foet by 3 f eo t• 

q;Aft er the stylo of th o map we havo hore? A ~ It would be 
bigge r than that . 

q ~ .. 1r1d the scale is what? Do you r omombor offhand. ? li~ No~ 

Q~Is it a plan just of this pa:ticular panol or only 
of portion of it? A ~ No · it is a full plan of the 
par ticular panol , pos sibly a little bit of tho re t urns or s omo thing 
t o t hat e f f e c t • 
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Q. Would it take in very muc~ more than is shown on the Exhibit 
in this Court room?A. Ye s. 

Q. It would take in more than tha t?A. Yos. 

Q. But all you had to do then vJ a s t o 1.;alk to t hn t in order to 
decide wha t your position wa s; tha t is t he position, is it 
not?A. Ye s, that is ri ght. 

Q.And it wa s a simple matt er then with a ruler or so me other 
mea suring devic e to say, nwell., I have not overshot the goafn? 
A. Sir, this plan when it wa s originally put t her e had had A, 
B and C headings. When t he plaae wa s be ing develop ed, ~ s the 
pl ac e r e tr ea ted and the se drive s drove down the hill off A heading 
they wer e either just put on in pencil, or some thing like tha t. 

Q. Ar e you sugge sting the plan wa s not accura t e ?A. The part tha t 
wa s ther e wa s ac curat e . 

Q. We ll~ did tha t show the extension of No. 2 cut-through and 
t he r el a tionship to wha t wa s then the goaf area on the righ thand 
si de ?A. No. 

Q. Did it show wher e No. 9 cut-through had gone through?A. Not to 
my knowledge . The se wer e put on in pencil aft er the pillars had 
been ex tract ed. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would not t hey have been put on in pencil aft er 
eleven had been ex tract ed? Should not Number 9 have been put in 
aft er llo. ll had been extracted?A. It may have , I don 1 t know. 

MR . LEE: Q. But isn 1 t the obj ect of t his pl an to enable you to 
t ell wher e you are in the drivage at any given point of time? 
A. It would give you a f air indic a tion, ye s. 

Q. It is not to stop people ge tting lost, walking round the 
mine , is it?A. No. 

Q. It is put ther e t o ena ble the deputie s to determine with 
pr ecision wher e t hey ar e going?A. This is provided the surveyorst 
si ghts and distanc e s ar e on it. 

Q. Le t me a sk you dir ectly: Would t he pl an in the crib room 
have told you tha t you had not passed the goaf?A. It would have . 

Q. And very simply and very easily have told you tha t?A. Ye s. 

Q. And you did not t hink to go and look at it?A. No, I didntt 
look a t it. 

Q. We may pre sume on wha t you say tha t Mr. Ea ger did not sugge st 
that you do so?A. No. He carrie s a plan with him too. 

Q. Wha t did you say?A. He also carrie s a plan. 

Q. He carrie s a pl an of wha t?A. Of the whole of the mine , 
actually . 

Q. As f ar a s your knowledge go e s, would his plan t ell him the 
r el a tionship of the ext ension to No. 2 cut-through a s f a r a s you 
had gone and the go af ar ea?A. I wouldn 1 t know. 

Q. You do not know tha t?A. No. 

Q. In any event, having made the decision to t ak e the min er balli, 
tha t is what you exp ect ed to be done?A. Tha t wa s done on dog-wa tch 
on the Sunday night. 

9· Then the miner went to -vmrk on the Monday morning, we know? 
a. Ye s. 
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Q. Were you ther e on the Monday at all ?A. On till H0 nday afternoon. 

Q. Was the miner working then?A. Ye s. 

Q• Forming this new lift tha t had been crea ted?A. Beside the 
othe r one~ ye s. 

Q. Did it ever occur to you tha t having overshot the goaf , you 
may have al t er ed the drivage and come back do\~A. Would you say 
that again? 

Q. You see , when you t hought you had made your mi stake of passing 
the goaf did it occur to you, 11 Well, if I have , I can drive 
downwards and pick it up 11 ?A. It wa s right be side. The one lift 
was t here and t he n ext one was righ t be side .it. 

Q. But of course this taking the other lift meant more time spent 
in this ar ea , didntt it?A. Ye s. 

Q. In fact, a s we know now it meant ano ther entire day and 
another entire night- in f act mo r e than tha t, didn 1 t it? It 
meant Sunday night it was working ?A. No , when it finishe s Friday 
night production it starts Monday morning. 

Q. It mean t Monday aft ernoon?A. Ye s and they start ed on the Tuesday. 

Q. The first drive-out before the mistake was found, did tha t 
drive t ake you further out towards t he goaf than the machine had 
gone when t he fir e occurred on the second lift? Do you und erstand 
my que stion?A. No ~ 

Q. (Approaching witne ss and showing plan) On your first occa sion 
you drove out and you t hough t you had made a mistake and you 
stopped?A. Ye s. 

Q. The machine was brought back?A. Ye s. 

Q. And it start ed off again to t ake another lift?A. Ye s. 

Q. Had it got out a s close to the goaf as you had previously 
driven, bef ore the fire took place?A. It was past that area, ye s. 

Q. By how much?A. ~ossibly three yards. 

Q. How much?A. Thre e or four yards. 

Q. You wer e in No. 11 ar ea , I Qelieve , were you not?A. That is 
the one befor e? 

Q. Ye s. A. Ye s. 

Q. You have told us tha t was a 27-yard pillar?A. Ye s. 

Q. Is it correct tha t t ha t wa s split sid eway s?A. Split dm.n the 
middle. 

Q. Wasn't it split crossways?A. I think it wa s, ye s. 

Q. What happened in tha t panel wa s t r~ the coal wa s tak en fro m 
the lower end first?A. Yes, a s f ar as I can r e member~ 

Q. And then from the sec tion near e st A heading?A. Do,m, ye s. 

Q, While ever the co a l was being t aken from wha.t I have called trn 
lower part, the goaf over here wa s discharging the ga ses around 
and through the No . 9, the ar ea marked No . 9?A. Ye s. 

Q, And all tha t time the bleed tube wa s in op er a tion doW1 in the 
shunt ar ea?A • In 3, y e s. 
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Q. I suppose you know or you will agr ee tha t never at any time 
in number 11 was there a bleed tunnel system operating?A. There 
14ere vent tube s. 

~ . Would you agree with this proposition, tha t in number ll 
the bleed tube or vent tube s r eplaced the bleed tunnel?.&. Well, 
ac tua lly they were in the bleed tunnel. 

Q. You know tha t in the earlier workings the syst em had been 
to drive a bleed to the goaf - or do you?A. Ye s. 

Q. And ~se tha t?A. Ye s. 

Q. Vlhat I am putting to you is tha t in number ll the bleeder 
f rom the goaf wa s r ep l aced by the bleed tube . Do you agree 
wi t h tha t a s your knowledg e of what was done there?A. Any ga se s 
or anything coming fro m the goaf ar ea would have went up the 
vent tube s. 

~ .And did you have roof difficultie s in number ll?A. I wouldn't 
r emember. 

Q. Just do your be st. A. Vlell , we had roof difficulties in 
8 Right pre tty fr equently. 

Q. You h ad had them a ll along had you?A. Oh y e s, We lost a 
machine in ther e a t one time tor possibly three or four weeks. 

Q. And you cannot think of anything special about number ll?A. Not 
offhand, no. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would you ha ve a look a t tha t extension of No. 2 
cut-through, tha t is the drive up 13 and then tum to the rW.t. 
Do e s tha t fairly accura t ely portray the d :ir ec tion in which the 
drive wa s made towards the goaf?A. I c ouldn't say. 

Q. You cannot say?A. No. 

Q. If you look a t that drawing you will see tha t after the 
f irst a tt emp t made by the minerit straightened up and went a t 
right angle s towards number 9; the miner was withdrawn and 
af t er it wa s a ssumed by you and possibly by Mr. Eager that you 
had overshot t he end of No . 9, the sec ond lift wa s t h en made in 
the same direction a s the one in vJhich you had originally been 
going . In other words, you wer e aiming into a po sition where 
you had f i nished up befor e . Would you agr ee with tha t?A. Possibly 
18 f ee t --

MR. MURRAY: Tha t pl an Your Honor ha s is not accura te, as I sa id 
some days ago, in tha t none of the plans agree - the one Your 
Honor has and the one on the wall and the one I have - all are 
differ ent. 

HIS HON OR: In tha t ca se the answers to the que stions ar e 
f ruitle ss and of no value a t all? 

MR. MURMY: Not on the b a sis of the plcn. 

MR . McNALLY: There a r e no sightings or surveyings in this 
particular heading, it is a que stion of judgment. 

MR. l~RRAY: JUld ther e is no plan of the d evelopment until it 
ha s been done, so there is no plan a t all . 

HIS HONOR: Q. Do you know of any plan of the se things, wher e till 
workings wer e going , and putting them in with any par t of the 
wo rk done?.A.. As it 1.va s done , it wa s mark ed on the plan. 
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Q. And what plan is that?A. The plan in the crib ca bin. 

Q. Wher e is tha t plan now, do you know? Wher e should it be, do 
you know? Ar e you suffici ently f amiliar?A . As f ar as I know it 
was burnt in the fir e . 

Q. Burnt in the fire , back in the crib cabin?A. Ye s • 

. Q. Did the fir e go t o the crib cabin? A. No, it didn 1 t, but the 
smoke did. 

Q. And the smoke burnt the plan. A. I r emember s ee ing tha t 
plan and I just touched it and it just crumbled to nothing. 

Q. That very plan?A. Tha t very plan. 

Q. How f a r wa s it fr om t he fir e to the crib ca bin?A. Tha t wa s 
the intersec tion of B h eading. The crib cabin was up possibly 
another 30 yards. 

Q. And t he smoke apparently de stroyed the plan?A. The hea t. 

Q. Was the crib cabin des troyed?A. I know I had a plas tic mug in 
my billy can and it was melted. 

Q. I a sked you wa s the crib cabin destroyed?A. No, it was smoked, 
not destroyed • 

• Jmd did all the papers in the crib c abin rre e t the same fate as 
this pl an?A. They were badly singed . They were not burnt, Your 
Honor, but they wer e singed . 

MR . PARKINSON : Q. This plan in the crib cabin, - who was 
r e sponsible for ke eping it up t o da t e ?A. Well, I don 1 t know who 
wa s r e sponsible , but R S the pl ac e went ~wn, when I finished the 
shift I would put down so much . When the day shift deputy 
fini shed his shift he vJ ould put doun so much. 

Q. So tha t each deputy fill ed in the plan, did he?A. I don't 
know whe ther we wer e supposed t o or not but we did. 

Q. You say the one in t he crib cabin wa s drawn t o . scale?A. A, B 
and C headings were drawn to sca l e . 

Q. A, B, and C headings. A. And the cut-throughs. 

Q. You say the cut- throughs \vere crawn to sc al e? Well, each 
night aft er t he shift complut ed, af t er your aft ernoon shift 
complet ed, did you mark on the plan in the crib cabin the 
dis t ance you had travelled?A. Not t he dist ance, no. 

Q. Well , wha t did you do?A~ I just marked down possibly so far -
if it had gone 40 or 50 yards in the t1,;o shifts and the d ay 
shift deputy had no, t marked it, I would mo ve it ha lfway do1,;n, 
some thing like this. 

Q. You would pencil it in?A. Ye s, 

Q. kld you still say tha t this crib c abin plan was sc aled , fill ed 
in t o sc a le?A. It wa sn 1 t fill ed in - I didn 1 t it wa s fill ed in 
to sca l e . You a sked me wa s the pl an to sc ale and I sa id 11Ye s, 
A, B, and C headings. 11 

Q. A, Band C headings wer e drawn to sc a le?A. Ye s. 

Q. And the ext ended cut-throughs wer e drawn to sc a l e ?A. Noo 

Q. They wer e not?A. No . 
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Q. You say you thought you had about 27 yards'?A. Of coal, yes. 

Q. And you worked tha t on the basis tha t it wa s 33-yard c entres? 
A. Ye s. 

Q. You were never ever told at any time tha t it was more than a 
33-yard centre?A. Not till the Monday after the mabhine was 
pulled back. 

Q. You say you had travelled about 33 yards?A. Ye s. 

Q. And I take it you stepped tha t oU1A. I think I did, ye s. 

Q. Were you ever told of the necessity to hole into the goaf? 
A. I was told we had to hole into the go af, that's about all. 

Q. Were you told that it was urgent tha t the goaf should be 
holed into'?A. The word "urgent" was not mentioned. We just 
had to hole. 

Q. Were you told it was most ~esirable the goaf should be holed 
into?A. I was told we had to hole into the goaf. 

Q. From your own mining experienoe did you recognise the 
desirability of holing into the goaf?A. Ye s. 

Q. Bn the Friday night did you ring Mro Eager'?A. I did. 

Q. Just exactly what did you say to ~IT. Eager'?A. I explained to 
Mr. Eager tha t we were in approximately 33 yards and I expected 
to hole around 27, it was quite likely we had missed out holing 
and there were about three rolls of cable on the shuttle car drum, 
what would I t ell dog-watch to do. 

Q. And \vha t did Mr. Eager say? A. He sa id "Tell them to put it 
back on another lift and make the place doubly certain." 

Q. There were only three rolls of shuttle car cable?A. Ye s. 

Q. What distance would that allow the shuttle mr to travel? 
A. As it wa s '? 

Q. Yes. A. Possibly another three yards. 

Q. Another three yards, so if the machine had not been moved on 
the Frjday night and it was in the same lift on the Monday morning, 
the machine - that is the mining machine - would have only been 
able to travel another three yards before the shuttle car would 
have not been able to have wheeled coal from the miner?A. Are 
you asking me or telling me? 

Q. I am asking you is tha t the situa tion?A. No, it is not. 

Q. Well, what would have bem the situa tion'?A. The shuttle mr 
anchors would have had to be moved do~ 

Q. And is tha t the general policy, t o move shuttle c ar anchcr s 
down?A. When you are running out of cable, yes. You just fill 
up the reels again. 

Q. And isn 1 t it the policy when you are running out of cable like 
that to leave wha tever coal is there and withdraw the machine 
and put it in anothe r place'?A. I wouldntt know. 

Q. You say that the machine wa s withdrawn in another lift'? 
A. Ye s , that i s r i gh t. 

Q. Adjacent to the lift tha t you had been ~orking on the Frtay 
night? A. Ye s. 
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Q How f ar in wha t dis~e, had tha t second li~t travelled. 
a t the comple tion of your snift on the Monday nlght?A. Posslbly 
33, may be 34 yards. 

Q. About 34 yards?A. Some thing like tha t. 

Q. By the way, did you know - you know now of course 
machine in the first lift, a t t he c omple tion of your 
the Friday night, wa s on-course and would eventually 
into the goaf?.A. I know nowe I didn 1 t know. 

Q. You know tha t now?A. Ye s. 

tha t trn 
shift on 
have holed 

Q. And this would have t aken place in approxima t ely another 
t en or twelve yards?A. Ye s. 

Q. $o tha t means tha t had the machine not been withdrawn on the 
Fr i day night and day shift had continued in tha t lift tha t you 
left on Friday night a t the c omple tion of your shift, the goaf 
would have been hol ed within possibly two hours work tha t 
morning?.A. Ye s. 

Q. Did the under manager a t any time discuss with you that the 
pillar wa s going to be split end-on?A. Which pilla r is that? 

Q. (Approaching and indicating on Exhibit 11 A11 ) At any time did 
Mr . Puddle discus s wi th you, a s the d eputy of the district, tha t 
thi s pillar her e tha t had been f or med by driving No. 2 cut-through 
wa s going t o be split end-on?.A. No. 

Q. He never ever discussed tha t with you a t a ll?A. No. 

Q. Did anyone discuss tha t with you?A. Noo 

Q. Did you know t ha t it wa s the all eged int ention of the under 
manager that when you holed into the go af he vla s then going to 
have t he machine r emoved t o the appropriate point in A heading, 
inby side of No. 2 cut-through, to c ommence splitting tha t 
pillar?A. I didn 1 t know tha to 

Q. You knew ther e wa s a T-piece approxima t ely halfway down 
No . 2 cut-through fr om A heading t o No. 2 intersection, did 
you not?A. Ye s. 

Q. Did you know ther e wa s a lso a surveyor's peg ther e?.A. Somewhere 
ar ound tha t ar ea. 

Q. Had you any knm.J l edge a s to why tha t T-piec e had been insert ed? 
A. Ye s, I do. 

Q. And wha t wa s the knowledge tha t you have?.A. It wa s put t he r e so 
tha t when day shift holed they c ould c ome back and c ompl e te thffir 
shift off tha t T-piec e . 

Q. And tha t wo uld be in a position approxima t ely wher e you wo uld 
anticipa t e a pillar ·would be split a cross? A. I wouldn 1 t know. 

Q. But it would be customary to split a pillar across from round 
about tha t particular point, would it not, in ordinary mining 
prac tic e ?~ . If you want t o split a pillar you split it halfway. 

Q. Well, that would be approxima t ely ha lf way?.A.Tha t is right, 
Ye s, 

MR . MURRAY: Q. Ther e we r e i n f act no guide marks left by the 
surveyors in any of the area which is the ext ension of No. 2 
cut-through?Ao I think ther e could have been surveyorst pegs 
po ssibly round 50 yards or somewher e about tha t - 50 yards fr om 
the intersection of A heading. 
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Q. And aft er thnt it just c ontinued going in tha t direction 
until you had r eached lOO yards? A. Ye s. 

Q· 4nd then pulled back?A. Ye s, turned it. 

Q. But is it a f act, a s you heard me say a moment ago , that 
th ~re wa s no pl an available t o you of wha t development wa s ye t 
t o happen il1 e Right?A. No. 

Q. And all you did wa s on your own initia tive to mark the plan 
in the crib room a t the end of each shift?A. As we went, ye s. 

Q. Who t old you tha t you had t o hole into the goaf, and when? 
A. It would either be Mr. Fred Wright or Charlie Stewart, the 
deputy on day shift. I can't r emember. 

Q.Can you r ecall when it wa s? I will put it t o you t his way: 
Wa s it bef or e you had started making the cut a t A h eading?A. I 
couldntt r emember when I wa s told but I wns t old. 

Q. I t is a simpl e ma tt er t o move the shuttle c ar anchor point? 
i s it now?A. Ye s , a f ew minute s work. 

Q. To move it, f or instanc e , from the plac e wher e it wa s in 
the shunt t o the corner of t he intersection of A h eading and 
No . 2 cut-through?A. Ye s. 

Q. And t ha t would have given you all t he c able you would have 
needed on the drum?A. Ye s. 

Q. Wer e you a t work vThen the miner wa s turned right to go towards 
t he goaf?a. It wa s t urned righton day shift. 

Q. Not on your shift?A. No. We f ollowed on tha t day, but the 
st art of t he turn wa s started by day shift. 

Q. But how wer e you t o t ell when you had gone 100 yards - by 
pac ing it?A. Measured it out. 

Q. Just by pacing it?A. No, we have t ape s. 

MR. SULLIVAN : Q. How do you keep on your mark when you go in 
the cut-through. How do you k eep the machine on your mark? 
First of all you start up; ther e is a surveyorts peg t her e , 
i s t her e ?A. No , ther e wa s no t a t this particular time . 

Q. T~ how do e s a person starting , making tha t drive into the 
goaf~/~Mer e to start fr om?A. Fr om the l OO yards he would come 
back possibly t en yards. Tha t is a bo ut t he minimum width the 
miner c an t urn inG 

Q. Well, you ar e given a t ape . Wer e you in charge of it when 
tha t part i cular- may I call it heading, wa s made , the on e at 
r ight angle s t o t he ext ension of No~ 2 cut-through?A. No, I wa s 
not. 

Q. The instructions would be , fr om your experienc e , t o go down 
l OO yards and t hen turn right, is tha t right?A. Ye s. 

Q. How is t he machine kept on the c orrect line?A. Actual ly t hsr e 
t no correct line there ~ All you c an do is t o look up ahead 
and then take a line o 

Q. And mak e sure you have got the sights squar e , is tha t the 
i dea?A. You haven't go t any sights. You c ould just e stima t e it 
is 90 degree s. 

Q. A bit of gue sswor k , is it?A. Ye s. 
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MR. REYNOLDS: No questions. 

MR. McNALLY: No que stions. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Would you t ake this l amp and show us how you t e s t 
f or inflammable ga s - how you carried out your t e sts f or 
infla mmable ga s?A. This is when I went into the pla c e? 

Q. Ye s. A. First of ail I wa lk into the pla c e . 
the shunt? 

Could I say 

Q. Ye s, if you like , in t he shunt. A. First of a ll I r educ e 
t he 

Q. You will find tha t l amp will burn. Would you l ight it and 
show us? (Witne ss c omplies.) 

Q. Just show us wha t you do and t a lk a s you do it so tha t it 
can go down on the r ecord?A. I walk into the pl ac e , hold the . 
l amp about the heigh t of my eyes, and I r educe the yellow part 
of t he flame to about tha t (demonstra ting). If inflammable 
ga s i s pr e sent it c ause s a ver y light blue cap t o sit on t op of 
the flame. If t her e is no inflammable ga s pr e sent, if t he 
pl ace is higher t han this, I ge t a drum or stool and stand up 
and put my l amp on the r oof. I turn my lamp down again and 
t est f or inflammable ga s. If ther e is no cap ther e , I ge t down 
off t he stool, increase t he f l ame slightly and slowly l ower the 
lamp down. I f t here is no ga s de t ected, I keep going down 
until I t ouch the floor. If t her e wa s black damp, the l amp 's 
f l ame will slowly be r educ edo If t ha t happens, bring your l amp 
upl l e t it go pr operly again in tho f r e sh air, then r educe t his 
ye low flame , slowly go down t o about t he heigh t wh er e I f ound 
the black damp t o see whe ther ther e is any fire damp sitting on 
the black damp. 

Q. Wha t do you do t hen? Le t us see you do just tha t action 
again, if you woulde Would you do wha t you do when you ar e 
going down looking f or black damp and wha t you do af t er tha t? 
A. . I go d mn l ooking f or black damp, slowly go down. I f t be r e 
i s no bl ack damp pre sent I go r i ght down till I hit the ground. 
If t h er e i s black damp pre sent the f lame starts t o be r educed 
so I would stand up i n t he fr esh a ir again and ge t t he light 
work ing pr operly, t hen r educ e t he yellow f l ame . Then I slowly 
go down t o about where I de t ected t he black damp and just see 
whe t her ther e is a cap sitting on t op . 

Q. How long do you wai t down t her e f or your c ap ?A. Possibl y five 
or six seconds .. 

Q. Do you know how l ong it t ake s bef or e ga s will r eflect on 
your cap?A. No, I would not. 

Q. Do you think it might be iwportan t t o kn ow tha t bef or e you 
decide t ha t t he t ests showed no ga s and t her ef or e bef ore you 
r emoved t he l amp ?A. You don 1 t just go down and up again, you 
gi ve it a faJ.r -

Q. You say you stay in tha t particular pl ace you a r e t e sting and 
hold the l amp t her e for five or s ix seconds. I t hen a sked you 
do you know how long it t ake s for ~ s t o show a cap on your f Bffie? 
A. I know if it is ther e it would show up pretty well stra i ght 
away. 

MR. McNALLY: Q. (By l eave ) Had ~ you ever f aun~ Illawarra 
bo ttom ga s on your safe ty l amp ?A. Noo 

Q. Sinc e the f ire have you f ound Illawar ra bot tom ga s on yol.n.' 
safe ty l amp?A. Ye s. 

Q. On the occa sions you di d tha t, have you used t he l amp i n t he 
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manner you just demonstrated then to His Honor, whmyou found 
Illawarra bottom ga s?A. I have always used the lamp that way. 

Q. And following the fire you found tha t gas in the shunt?A. Ye s. 

MR. SULLIVAN: Illawarra bottom gas. 

MR. MeNALLY: No further questions. 

HIS HONOR: Q. This is a self-lighting lamp?A. That only has one 
burner. We have two, - you see a bigger cap . 

Q. Are these lamps extinguishable this way (demonstrating)?A. Very 
easily. 

Q. They all go out a s easily a s that?A. Yese 

Q. Do you ever find any trouble because of tha t?A. You only 
have to trip or step heavily and they will go out. 

(Witn e ss retired and excused) 

HIS HONOR: For Mr. Cambonrn 1 s witness 1 s expenses I have to 
make an order about that. He is t o ge t everything that he 
ought t o get. 

MR. REYNOLDS: At this stage I propose to offer sare evidence 
from a witness, Mr. Sellers, who is put forward as an expert, 
and I want to make the se observations a t the outset. This 
evidence 1s in no sense put forward in support of the ca se. 
Much tha t might be sa id by this witness 11ill not support any 
ca se, if I may use tha t t er m, by the company which I r epresent, 
but of course my clien t is in this industry and intends to stay 
in t hi s industry, and no matter what anyone may say it has 
par ticular interest to see tha t the proper causes of this 
occurr ence are isolated and that it does not happen again. 
This witness is put forward a s available to Your Honor. He 
is independent of the company, he is not an official of the 
Mine s Department, and he may be able to assist the Court by 
some views on some a sp ects of this case. I say that because 
in ordinary litiga tion between party and party, one may ask why 
a certain person is called because he does not support this case 
or the other. I ask Your Honor to accept this evidence in that 
spirit. 

Once again we will have it roneoed and will take the r~ 
of any alterations that may be found, but in an attempt to 
expedite the proceedings and to some extent f ac ilita te them, 
his statement has been reduced to writing and there will be a 
copy with its annexures made available to all those conc erned in 
this Inquiry as well as to the Bencho I will call Mr. Sellers. 

HIS HONOR: I am obliged to you, Mre Reynolds. Before you do 
call Mro Sellers, are there points of agreement upon the grounds 
on which Mrs Sellers comes or is he to give evidence mainly 
on ma tters in qualification or disagreement? 

MR. REYNOLDS: He does not necessarily disagree . He deals with 
~h things as the barometer affecting the goaf gases; he deals 
Wlth mining practice, and he offers a possible theory as to 
wha t caused the sudden occurrence of these ga ses. That is the 
sort of thing with whioh he wtll deal. 
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GORDON SELLERS 
Sworn, 8Xamined as under: 

HR. REYNOLDS: Q.Is your full n ame Gordon Sellers? A.Yes. 

Q.Wher e do you live? A. 632 Prin:! es High way, WIDnona. 

Q.What is your present occupation ? A. Consulting engineer. 

Q.Have you been associated with t.te coal mining industry since 
t he year 1928? A. Yes. 

Q.Did you begin duties as a survey and mining Clldet? A.Yes. 

Q•V.Lh er e was that? A. South Bulli Collie ry. 

Q.What was the earliest s pecialised work you undertook at 
col l i eries? A.In the ye ar 1929/30. 

Q.H·hat did you do then? A. I \va s detailed t o look a fter certain 
conditions pertaining t o the emission of gas in a mine. 

C4•Was ther e a particular problem in that mine? A.Yes, q._1. ite a 
good on e . 

Q.Were you r e sponsible for carrying out gas and air surveys for 
very many years in that mine? A.Ye s, about 10 years and after that. 

Q.Did you have to use all forms of gas d.et ector s? !1.. Yes, <Pi te a 
few forms. 

MR .LEE: Gas detectors in Sout h Bulli. 

11P .REYNOLDS: Yes. 

Q.Who was that owne d by? A. Bollambi coal company. 

Q. Have you had any employment or a ssociation apart from this 
ins t ance with the B. H.P./A.I.S group of collieries? A. No, m t at 
any time. 

Q. Did y ou have anythin g t o do with t he origination of tm system 
of testing for gas in the r e turn airway? l h Yes. 

Q.What wa s that? A. I started the system of going round on mm th 
by month, we ek by we ek t ests in some ca ses to the r e turn airways 
o.nd certain other place s in the mi re d istric ts and systematically 
rec ordi ng t re percentage of CH4 in the var ious place s. 

Q.P.Ddwr t o that tL me was th:is not undertaken? A. Th:l y had not been 
oodertaken anywher e e lse t o my knowl ed ge . 

Q. Thon did you subsequently have t o d o specia l -yrork in c onne ction 
wi th pr e ssure surveys at the c ol l i e ry? A. Ye s. 

Q. How long did that g o on? Ao Quite a number of ye a rs. 

~.What was the n a ture of it? Af) In particular it r elated to the 
ventilating system of south Bull i c ollie ry end in view of t m v ery 
lar ge nature o f the mine and the oxt ensive a irv:ays which we r e 
wrapped up with it t.te job was to de t ermine the r e sistenco of the 
various airways in a very syst ematic way so as to determirn exactly 
how the v entilatio.n of that mine c oul d be carried out with trn 
most efficiency. 

~.For this purpose v!er e special instruments devised an d developed? 
A. Ye s, I devis ed an · incl i ne wat e r guage and used a long l ength of 
t~bing and vrith that p a.r ticulq.r i n strument surveyed the whole o f the 
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Q,\Jhat was the difference about t hi s incline water guage from 
anY instrument then in use? .A.As far as I knew ther e were m others 
in .h.ustralia that I know of and I had t o mak e it myself_, c a librate 
it and it would read down t o ,001 inch of water guage VJ..thou t a11y 
difficulty. 

Q.Vlas this similar to the instrument we have heard of in this 
rnquiry whichvJas used in the Bulli Collie ry by Hr.Griffiths and 
others? A.In principle it \vas similar but I suggest, much more 
super ior. 

Q.Have you f ound gas in practically every mine in tffi south 
coa st in the c ourse of your career? A. I have . seen gas in mos t of 
the mines . 

Q.After you bad finished with that mine on t he Sm th Coast wher c 
did you go? 4. I became thJ District !-lining Enginecr for the 
J oint coal Board , 

Q .1~ha t district was embraced in that? ~l.. Firstly Lithgow and 
then , after that, Wollongong, that is? this rar ticular district . 

q.Has that 1947 t o 1954? A ~ Yes . 

Q,At some stage did you work f or and be c ome super in t en dent 
f or So m1d H. Fox? A. Yes. 

Q,When was tha t? A.l954. 

Q.When you l eft that job? A.Yeso 

Q,You vH3r o superinten dent of c ollieries for s. & N. Fox? A.Yes. 

Q.Hhere are their c ollieries? AoThey have one in this distri e t, 
South Clifton and another one essentially in tre same district 
two in the Burragorang Valley. 

Q,Wher e wer e y ou stationed? A· Mainly at Scuth Clifton. 

Qe\rfere y ou also a~)p oi..YJ.ted Consultant to tffi State Mine Control 
Board at Lithgow? A,On one job, ye s~ 

~.For 7 years wer e y ou a lecturer on a part-time basfu at trn 
Wollongong Technical College , dealing with mine gas? A. Yes. 

Q,Hore r e cently have you been a ppointed Chairman of Dire ctors of 
the Hw1tley Colliery? A.Yes. 

Q.Is that a Colliery -vrhich is own ed and operated by the State 
Electridity Commission? A. Ye s. 

Q,Did you undertake vmrk stal"ting anothe r mine for them, Newcombe 
H1ne , is it? lio Ye s, in 1948 or 1949. 

Q~Is it true to say you have s pe nt a life time in the Coal mining 
ind ustry? A.Yes . 

Q.And have had v e ry special lLI10vlledge of ventilation and gases? 
A. Yes . 

t1E.REYNOLDS: I now propose to go t o the document and I will r ead 
Part of it be f or e I ask Hr .. Hre stcott t o take over. 

11Knowledge and Involvemsnt~ 
(l) On the 9th Novembor a t about 9.15 a. m. M ignition of 
gas took place at Bulli ColliJr y in No.8 Right District. 

(2) At about 10.50 ao m. on that day I arrivod at the Colliery 
and stood by for a.bou t thr Go hours aft e r -vrh ich I r e t urro d t o 
my home on the und e rst anding tha t I w Oti.ld be called if roquiro d ." 
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Q.Who called you in on that day? A. Nobody, I just went. 

tt(3)Dur i n g my time at the mine I w a s mo stly in the Mc-.. nager 's 
Office and l earned of s ome of t he a ct i on going m und er ground. 
B.Kent had c ome out of till mine bof ore I l e ft an d I he a r d s omo 
of his version a s t o what had h appen e d. 

(4) On Wedne sday Novembe r 24th,l965 I s aw Mr. H.Wil kinson 
at the Central Collier i e s Office , ~-J; oll ong ong by appointment. 
t1r. Wilkins on a ske d if I would ac cep t his Company's n ominat i on 
fo r the position of ASsessor a t the c oming Inqu i ry if it 
wo r a decid ed t o make such a n ominat i:m . This I a. gree d to. 

(5) On Thursday Doc embor 2nd , 1965 I at t end ed t h e f jr st 
sitting of the Cour t whi c h w~ s he ld i n Sydn ey. Iw a s n ominated 
f or the position as Assess or by t he c ompany but was n o t appointed. 

(9) On Wednesday ~ tb.December,l965 a t the r e que st of Mr.c. 
Martin I visit ed Bulli colli ery and ag ain savr Mr.Wilkins on. 

({)He reque ste d that I ca rry ou t i nv estigations a s an 
independen t consultant on a.'1Y a spe c t of the i ncident or the 
subjct matt e r which mi ght be r a is e d and i f I tho ught that Fn Y 
matt e r s ho uld be br ought be f or e the Inq uiry to d. o s o . It ·was 
stre ssed t hat this 1tl<lS t o be d on e i n a c omplet e l y i n dependent way. 
Aft e r s ome c onside r a ti on I agre e d t o d o this. 

(8) Subsequently on that day I a tt ende d t h e c ourt h earing and 
a lso on all other days when t h e c ourt sat t o the t ime of r e c oss. 

(9 ) On Thursday 9th De c ember,l965 I vis ite d Bul l i Colliery and 
i nspected No . 8 Right District. Paragraphs 15 - 18 make up my 
r eport on that v i sit. 

(10) On Thursday January 13th 1966 I again visit e d No.8 
Right District with the obj e ct of confirming my p r nvious ob­
s erva tions. Par ag r ap hs 19 t o 22 c over the r ep ort of my visit. 

(11) On Tue s d ay January, 18th, 1 966 I again visite d No.8 Right 
Distric t. On this occ asion I t ook Slllples of gas fr om the 
miner pl a c e an d passed t hem ove r f or analysis. I a :i. s o t ook the 
opportuni ty of again e xamining the r e l evant parts of the \vorking 
ar ea. Pa r agraphs 23 t o 26 cover my r eport on the vis it. 

(12) On Tt).u.rsday Janua ry 27th,l966 I visit ed Red Pan el in 
Bulli Colliery. The obj ective of t hi s visit wa s t o make some 
practic al observa tion s a s t o what h ap pens when shuttle cars 
t r ave l along r oadwa y s which ar e carry i ng air curr ents. Paragr aphs 
27 t o 2 9 co v e r this vis it. 

(13) On this occa sion I a lso visited No.2 North Panel wher e ga s 
was issuing in smal l quantities fr om the floor. 

(14) I have he ard or re ad a.ll t he evid ence as given in ccurt. Up 
t o this time I have n o t seen <.i.-n.y o f the r ep orts of Depa r trrent ,'J.l 
Officers. 

(14a) I d id no t s e e ru1y of the ovidence pertaining t o the 
s ource of i gnition ex cept the ex h i b its ton der e d t o the ccurt ani 
ther e f ore havo l ittle knovll ed~ o of such. 
v:I· ~it t o Bul l i s oll;i.e .:t;'y 9/12/o5 - No . 8 Right Soction 
( ')) Slmulated ondltlons. The shunt was examined a nd t e sted f or 
the pr e sence of gas. On the floor~ o utbyo of tm line of the 
suction tube, gas was f ound from 2% tapering outbye to nil ab out 
12 feet fr om the tube . On the safe ty lamp tho ga s a~ >pe ar e d a s o.. 
c ap of l e sse r proportions but it \vas de t e cta ble t o ths no rmal 
1.% limit.tt 881. G.Sellors, x. 



MR. REYNOLDS : I invito Your Nonor, if there ~ any detail that Your 
Honor would like, to stop and have tho witness explain as we go 
thr OUgh. 

HIS HONOR ~ Thank you. So far it is clear • 

MR.LEE: That is me thane, is it? 

MR.REYNOLDS: Q. In paragraph 15 is that me thane you are referring 
t o? A.Yes, that is quite correct. 

H(l5a) On the floor and inbye of the vont tube in trn midd.Je 
of tho brattice up to 3% was f ound. On the southern side more 
than 4.% was found over an area of t.ho c orner of some 6 sq. fe at 
tap ering to 3 1 from the roof and against a rib. On the northern 
side and against the brattice and ribj als o inbye of the vent 
tube, gas at about 4% persistod for a he ight of abm t 3 ft. in 
a tapering fashi on. All the r e st of the shunt was clear of gas. 

(l5b) The gas as found here was easy to det ect on tre safety 
lamp without any danger of extinguishing the lanp • It 
was :Jbviou sly heavier than air am :it contained a very a ;.; preciable 
quantity of C02. The gas 1·ras what is kno-wn as Illawarra 
Bottom Gas. 

(15c) Great attention was paid t o the position in the shunt 
wher e the ignition is said t o have taken place. This would be 
some 12 or mor e feet fr om the entrance of tho tube.In t e sting from 
a paint 6 feet from the tube t o the entrance of tre shunt j_n no 
ca se was more than 2% s io wn by the me tha.nometer and this 
was found at less than one inch from the floor in grooves." 

HIS HONOR: would you pause while I consider that. 

Q.This position in the shunt where the ignition was said ID have 
taken place, where did you get that information from? A.I gathered 
f r om evidence the shuttle car had not taken up its no rmal position 
in the shunt and vras some distance up. 

Q. It had not reached th3 point - ? A.- vlhere it ;,.rould normally 
c ome t J yes. I also gather the shuttle car just g ot inby of 
the shunt, just got off the line of path of the incoming shuttle 
eRr and n :Jrmally would stay ther e . 

MR.REYNOID S.: Your Honor r emembers the evidence it could be ;;een 
still partly in the shunt. 

11 (15d). The goaf along the line of No.3 Heading was examined .:ll1d 
Illawarra Bottom Gas was found in quantity with tro top level 
just belovr the floor at B Heading.n : .. · · 

Cl • n just below the floor at B HeadingH. would you explain that? 
A.I walked along the centre heading, D heading and tasted for ga s 
and then wen t 0 little to the n orth or the left Cl11d found tm gas 
on the floor just a little t :J the left of where the h3ading 
j oins the goaf. 

MR.LEE: Which is N8e3? 

MR.REYNOLDS: Q.This is what wo have been referring to ~s the 
goaf edge? A. Yes. 

"The level of the gas was subsequently found to be ab<mt 107 ft. 
ASL." 

CLeASL being ? A. Above sea level. 
882. D.SellGrs, x. 



IIThi s ga s wa s ea sily detectable and in t he body mor e than 
4 per cent wa s present. 

(15e) I went along the line of C heading in to the goaf ar ea 
and tested for ga s a s f ar as could be traversed. I did not 
find ga s here. I travelled up the lift wetween B and C 
headings and examined for gas without success. n 

Q Tha t is the pl ace where this party went round to ge t into 
the shuttle car during the fire?A. Ye s, there is a lift which 
is now shown - between B and C headings. I travelled up tha t 
heading and I examined. 

Q. There is a lift be tween B and C headings?A. Ye s. 

n I went in to the goaf as f ar a s possible on B heading. I 
found a small amount of ga s against the stone on the lowest 
level (less t han 1 per c-ent) and then climbed up on to the 
fallen stone but her e ther e wa s no sign of ga s. 

(l5f) At my r eque st a bra ttice wa s hung on No. 2 cut-through 
between B and A heading and I pulled the block screen of the 
shunt open allowing the air to circulate dow~ B heading and the 
ga s to be forced out of t he goaf up A heading. I stood in 
the path of the ga s for several seconds befor e r e tiring through 
the er ected screen. I then proceeded to the goaf line at B 
heading and followed the t ail end of the ga s along the goaf edge 
nnd t hen up A heading. In less than t en minutes it wa s 
po ssible to ge t in to A heading and within 15 minutes the ar ea 
was virtually clear except for the lower side of the goaf at 
A heading where about 2 per cent CH4 wa s observed on the 
extr eme lower side. This wa s being quickly dilut ed. About 
12 ,000 c.f.m. of air was flowing down B heading. 11 

MR . REYNOLDS: . It might be desirable if the witness would go 
and r epea t that. 

Q. In r el a tion to (15f) tell us wher e the bra ttic e wa s put up 
and wha t you did?A. (Approaches plan on floor of Court) Starting 
from (15f) at my request a bra ttice wa s hung at this point 
here (indica tes). 

Q. Tha t is be tween - ? A. B and A headings on No. 2 cut-through. 
I t hen proceeded in here and I tore tha t bra ttice down, that was 
the bra ttic e making the shunt and t hen I stood in the path of this 
ga s a t this point here for quite a few seconds. 

Q. What you had done wa s to ventilate tha t top end of the goaf 
and forced air through down B a long the back and into A?A. Yes. 

Q. You stood there a s the ga s came?A. Ye s. And then I proceeded 
up .through t he bra ttic e tha t had been er ected down here and then 
followed this ga s out and eventually stood a t this point here. 

Q. You comment tha t within 15 minutes that air being forced down 
had , to put it simply, done its job and ventilated tha t goaf edge? 
A. That the ga s de t ectable a t that time coming out of here -
2 per cent - tha t wa s being diluted by the air coming around. 

Q. That is wha t you mean by "this wa s being quickly dilied. 
About 12,000 c. f. m. of air wa s flowing dm>Jn B headingn. 
A. That is right. 

~(15g) It was noted tha t due to the fire No. 2.cut-through had 
fallen between B and A headings and that A intersection had aloo 
fallen. The grea tly increa sed areas perta ining as compared with 
those prevailing before the fire were noted alsoo 
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General . . . . . 
(16) Inclined water guge readlngs be1mg taken 1n var 1ous pos-

itions were ., cb served and noted as being so sli.ght as not t o be 
pr Jperly r e cordab le. This IR r t icularly a~ lpl ied to the resistance 
: .. n the ventila ting circuit of the c ontinuous Miner Place. 

(17) The way in whi ch the goaf had fallen was noted. 

(18) The re ·w-a s not a shuttle car in the shun t.n 

HR . REYNOLDS ~ That is what you. say about your first visit down the 
mine and you p roceed nm..,r to deal with a sub se quent v.i.sit on 13th 
Janu.ary in paragraph (19). 

MR .LEE ~ Doe s my friend mind'? We have s o!ne ventil a tkm plans 
ther e whi ch we might just se e at thi s point of time t o ascertain 
which one of them beo.rs the close st res emblance t o what Nr . Sellers 
describes. We have already had results of other vent i lation plans . 
I think it is No.3 -

HR . RKiNOLDS ~ Q.Wer e you in Cou.rt at th3 time? A. I wo1..:: ld l ike t o 
examine the m. 

HR.SULLNAN; Q.WF.l. s the brattice up in C when you -r,.ralked arcund?A.Yes. 

HR .LEE ~ It may be, of course, tha t there are substantial p oints of 
diffe rence. If Mr .Selle rs could p ick out the one which is most 
akin to this we will know. 

rffi . R~INOLDS: That is Exhibit N2 . The witness Wlshe s to say ,I 
think , that Exhib it N2 is most l ike the experiment he carried cut . 

HIS HONOR ~ 'l· Having a look at N2 at the bottom of A head ing near 
the goaf t he re is drawn, or mar ked in there some thing called 
11 pr op brattice n. That was not there on yo ur experiment, I take It? 
A. No, I did not notic e it . 

HIS HONOR: Has this ever been erected? 

lffi .LEE: rJo . Ther e was no brattice there. 
HIS HONOR ~ There is no brattice. 
HR . LEE: Ther e wasn 1 t any brat tice in the area mer J:r.e d nprop 
bratti cen. That \vas me rely the site of the cr iginal bratt.1c e in 
tre shunt , but there 1.vas brattice over on the rig ht at the very ~1nd 
of the heading. 

HR. REYNOLDS ~ 11 Pr op brattice" has always been on tha t plan. 

!ffi .LEE~ That is right . They put i t up during the fire . 

riR . REYNOLDS ~ We now c ome t o the visit on 13th January, by l'{r. 
Sellers. 

11 (19) The purpose of this visit vvas t o confirm my p r e vious 
observations a..m t o take any measurement, s that v1ould allow 
the assessment of that part of the wor king s \tlhich h-1d been 
changed by the fire. 

(20) Immediately against B heading in No . 2 Cut through tvvo c c: rs 
fu'1cl a l eng th of roa.d1,·.ray -r,.rere f'o 1 ,nd which could have cor r esponded 
rt o the general conditions on No . 2 cut throu_gl before tre fire . 
r~e ar e a was found t o be about 132 sq.ft. and the distcnce 
r1b t o rib B t o A along the cut thro Llgh 1:1as found t o be 82 feet. 

(21) The whole of the r elevant a.rea of the district vra s examined. 
and found t o be in the s ame c ondit :Lon as on the previous visj_t except 
as in Paragraph 22. 884. G.Sellers, x. 



(22) A pocket of Illawarra Bottom Ga s had accu~ulated in the 
Continuous Miner place for a distance of some 25 yards from the 
face., The CH4 in the ga s wa s r adily de tectable with a safe ty 
l ampw No persons were employed in the section and the bra ttice 
wa s partly broken near wher e the fan had been installed and 
the ventilation wa s ineffective to the miner place~ 

Visit to NoG 8 Right _Section 18/1/Q£. 

(23) The purpose of this visit was to collect a sample of the 
ga s accumulation as observed on the previous visit. 

(24) At a point about half way into the mass of gas in the 
Continuous Miner pl ace two sample s of gas were taken from the 
floor one from the middle and one from the roof. The se were 
handed over for t e sting a t Port Kemblao 

(25) The r e sults of the tests carried out are attached. 11 

" Central Collieries Office. 

Copy to: 
E.~. Technical Services 
Technical Supt., 

AUSTRALIAN IRON & STEEL PTY. 
Ho skins r Kembla Works 

Port Kembla. 
JEL 20th January 1966. Chief Chemist CoOo 

Central Lab. Fileo CONFIDENTIAL 

CERTIFICATE OF ANALYSIS 

LTD. 

T~is is to certify that the undermentioned Samples have been 
analysed with the following r esults:-

SAMPLES TAKEN AT BULL I COLLIERY 8 RIGHT P .ANEL 18. 1. 

CO=~ 0~ liL. CH4 
(a) Bottom sample 26o9 llo9 48.2 13.0 
(b) Bottom Sample 30o5 l0e8 44.5 14.2 

Middle Sample 23.8 13.,0 52.4 10.8 
Top Sample 9o8 l7e6 68~2 4.4 

(Signed) D.R. Jephcott 
Chief Chemist. u 

MR. REYNOLDS: As you come up the CH4 --

HIS HONOR: No it doesn't, you ge t the bottom sample of 13, 
so it doesn 1 to 

MR. REYNOLDS: It is at random. 

66. 

HIS HONOR: Mr. Sullivan may have something to say about it. 
11 (26) Hygrometer tests were taken in the ga s at the point where 
the sampl e s wer e takeno Hygrometer r eadings were also t aken in 
the air immediat81Y outbye the ga s. In the gas the re~Hlts 
were Dr~ bulb 76 web bulb 74°o In the air Dry bulb 76 Wet 
bulb 70to 

Visit to BullJ ... _fg)J-A§.ry_~/lLQ~ 

(27) The purpose of t~is visit was to observe the results when 
shuttle cars were trammed in airways similar to ·No. 2 Cut 
through No. 8 Right and to view the small emissions of gas 
coming out of the floor in No. 2 North SectionG Red Panel was 
chosen for the observation as to effects on the ventilation due 
to the shuttle car travel., t! 
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HR .REYNOLDS ~ Q. 11 Trammed11 simply means moving in those circumstance s, 
does it? A. Yeso 

11(28) The r e s ul ts of the wor k c a rri ed out in r elation to 
ven t i l a tion p r essure a r e demonstra t ed i n Paragraphs 82 to 92o 

(29)The ga s in No.2 North wa s coming t hr o ugh tl:P floor by 
me d ium of floor he ave cracks which we re up to l" in vridth an:1 
up t o eight fe e t in l ength. Some d the cracks ext ended into the 
coal ribs and gas Has also c oming up these. In s ome of the corners 
CH4 at about 1% was dete ctable on t he s a fety larrp. In the cra cks 
t he me thanome t er indicate d mor e than 5% In :n e crack the gas wa s 
conf i ned and I placed my fac e 1..rell d own int o the cr a ck . Even 
though thre e deep bre aths wer e taken in t he confined position m 
c02 vms f e lt n e i t her viaS the r e any inc on ven i ence t o breathing. 
The gas appe ar s to be near pure CH4 and :its lo cation necr and in 
the f1 oor is on e of point of libera tion o n ly .n 

HIS HONOR: Q•Wher e is tha. t exactly? Red panel? A. No, tha t is No. 
2 North District. 

HR . REl'NOLDS: This was to see and considar an eminat ion of almost 
our e me thane from the cra cks - an example of it. I think tm t is 
the only point. 

Q.Is that right? A. That is corr ect. 

MR . REYNOLD&f You then offer your view-s based on yo ur experience 
on the question as t o the influence of the subsidiary vent tube 
on the pr e ssure within the shunt on A heading. 

VITTNESS ~ Yes. 

11 (30 ) All the f orce or powe r crea ted by t ffi t vdn ventilating 
fans loca t ed in A he ad ing is disper sed vli~h in the :fans and tubing 
excep t:-

(a) The r e sistance of t re f low cr a ir f rom A h eading intersecti on 
with No . 2 cut through and t he en d of t he tub e in tm shunt." 

Q.That is the r e sistance vlithin the tube itself, is it? A. Tm t is 
right. 

~(b) The r e s:iEtance to the flow of air d o\-rn the con tinuous mine r 
pl ace t o the entfance t o the duct in that pl a ce. 

Cc ) The ~e ssur e r e duction cr ea ted by the v e locities in 
t he openings int o the duc ts in thE:" c on tinuous miner place 
and in the shunt. 

(d ) The p r e ssure cr e at e d by the dr Jp in ve locity at tre- .discharge 
po i n ts of tm fans. u 

Q.That i s the ing oing fresh a ir? A. Yes. 

11 (31) The pr e ssure Reduction in the shun t. This is tte result of 
the energy t ck en up by the creation of velocity. 

The v e locity at th t3 entrac e of tffi duc t vias mea sured (Mines 
Department ) an d f oun d t o be a bout 1,000 f eo t per minute with 
a qLlantity o f 1,600 cubic fe e t pe r minute." 

Q.o Wa s that me a sure d in your p r o s ence or what js your data 
fo r that? A.No, that is the evidence I h eard in court. 
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\ 
" Pressure Reduction due to velocity at the entrance of duct one 
cubic foot of air taken as .07 lbs. 

V squared • 2g X ~ 

V - velocity feet per sec. 
G ~ gravity a 32.2 

P = pressure in lbs. per sqa fto 
W • weight of one cubic foot of air 

p ::: 16o66 X 16e66 X oOZ 
64-o4 

• Oo 29 lbso per sq. footo 

Take a point some three f ee t away from the centre of the 
tube in all directions and it is found that the figure presents 
almo st a half sphere and this figure with allowances would have 
an area (at 3 1 radius) of say 50 sqo feet. u 

Q. Are we t a lking about the same sort of diagram as we smv drawn 
yesterday by Mrc Wasson?A. Yes. 

Q. Where he showed - ? Ao Mr. vfasson - I did not see the 
diagram !1e drew closely but he did draw a diagram which showed 
the air c ame equally in all directions to the entrance of the 
tube. What I am saying is if you t ake a point, three f ee t 
radius away from the centra of the tube and describe tha t as 
an arc in all direc tions you ge t a half sphere with the floor 
as the bottom of the half sphere. 

HIS HONOR ~ Q. This is assuming the tube r e sts on the floor? 
A. Well, it doese 

Q. If it wer e in the air you would ge t a c omple te circle?A. Yes, 
if i t was up three or four feet you ge t a comple te circle. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. For that r ea son you did it a s a half sphere? 
A. I have calculated the area of surfac e of tha t spher e a s about 
50 sq. ft. , making a llowance s. 

tt It is to be noted tha t the bra ttice is about 4 f ee t away from 
the centre of the tube which is the c entre of the figure with 
three f eet radius now under considerationou 

MR. LEE: What does tha t mean? 

HIS HONOR : Perhaps Mr. Sellers could explain? 

WITNESS: I am not too clear wha t i s required in the way of 
explanation. Is it tha t r eference t o the bra ttic e? 

MR. LEE : Ye s .. 

WITNESS: The centre of the tube a s it r e sted on the floor I 
would assume was four feet away from the brattice. In effect 
it produced this radius of three f ee t o The brattice is outside 
of that r adiuso Tha t is the point I am trying to make. 

HR. LEE~ Does tha t mean when he smv the tube or at the time of 
the fire? 

MR. REYNOLDS: It is ba sed on the evidenc e he h eard here. 

HIS HON OR: Q. You have the mouth of the tube down on the floor? 
A. Ye s., 
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Q.And this is the brattice. \:.Uhat do you say? A. (Demonstrates 
with tumbler and paper) . Say t~e bra tt ice. w~s there, in effect 
I gather the section was there ln that posl tlon and the . 
centre o f this tube Has about four feet a1vay from the brattlce 
which me ans that radius I have de scribed would not t;cu eh the brat­
tice. 

HR.LEE~ I l\7ondered whe r e the four feet came from. 

?ffi . REYNOLDS : From the e vidence. 

JviR .IEE ~ I have "s ix inches". 

HIS HONOR: I think it varied. There vras no nbsolute figure. 

HR . ~~YNOLDS ~ Let me nsk the witness . 

Q.where d o you take the four feet from? A. . I take the four feet 
f r om the centre of the tube whi ch would mean if the tube was of 
21 inch d iameter the ed ge of the tube would be , of course, 
~uc h closer t o the brat t ice . 

Q. But -vrher e did yo u get the f our f eet from? A. It vras said the 
tube was between - not between tre Ja st tvro prop s - it was 
between the second last and the third last p rop.~;· 

HR .LEE ~ Mr . Mangles gives evid ence to that effect . 

HR •• REYNOLDS ~ Q.You ar e relating it to the differe nce bet1.,reen 
pr ·:)p S? A. Yes . 

Q.If it was closer it does not necessarily invalidate wha t you 
are say i n g ? A. No . 

Q.You are, as I understand, demonstrating the pr oposition by these 
as sump ti ons? A. Yes. 

u At a point three feet away in all direct ion from the tube 
the v elocity will be 

Quantity 
Are~ 

c 1600 = 32 feet per minute 
5o 

or say t feet per second 

the p r e ssure drop due to velocity at that point will be 

P .D. =. 

0 . ooo 27 lbs. per sq. foot.n 

Q.You say that is the figure using the correct formula . That is 
at the point three feet away? A.Fr om the centre. 

Q.From the centre of the tube? A.That is so. 

Q.\vhat is another way of putting that, 27 ten thous.? A.Yes,near 
enough. 

n (3la) It can be shown that because the brattice is still 
~urther cl.\vay from the tube the pressure Drop at the b rattice at 
1ts nearest point is very much less than this figure. 

888. G.Sellers, x. 



' (32) It can be shown by calculation till t the pressure drop 
due to the flow of air from the intersection to the intake of 
the tube (apart from the loss due to that creatid by the velocity 
at that point) is of the order of less than part of an 
inch WG. 100,000 

(33) The effects of the fan in cr eating an area of depression 
at the bra ttice can be completely ignored as they are so very 
small compared with other f actors. u 

(Further hearing adjourned until 10 a.m. on 
Wednesday, 9th February, 1966) 
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lN THE COURT OF 
COAL HIN.8S REGULATION 
HOLDEN AT BULLI 

) 
) 
) 

No. 1 of 1965. 

BEFORE HIS HON OR JUDGE GORAN . 

ASSESSORS~ MESSRS . l~ION and BUCK. 

WEDNESDit.Y , 9th FEBRUARY ,l9{j6o 

- - - - - -
IN THE MATTER OF 11.N INQUI RY IN PURSUANCE OF THE C OA~ MINES 
REGUIA TION ACT INTO Al"i ACCIDENT wdiCH OCCURRED AT THE 
BULLI COLLIERY ON 9TH NOVE1'1BER 1965 .kND I TS CAUSES .t-i.ND 
CIRCUMSTANCES. 

- - - (PART HEARD ) 

G ORD ON SELLERS 
On former oath 
Ex~~ination c ontinued~ 

HR. REYNOID& Q. We c Dme to paragraph 34 which is on page 6 
of your s t atement where you proceed. t ·=> deal with the question of 
the ~1fluence of barometric pressur e drop on t he omission of 
gase s f r om the N=> . 8 Right goaf and you say: 

tt(34) The Goaf is about 600 feEt long by ab out 500 feEt wide vr ith an 
area of ~ b out 5 a cres . The seam as extracted. would h a ve a height 
of 7~ to 8 fe e t. 

(35) The inbye end. of t ho pane l working is near a mass of vol~ 
caeic sill rock which cindered a nd or de stroyed the coal sean. 11 

Q.Does this mean that there has beEn s ome igneous material which 
has got i nto the a ctual coal seam and destroyed it and taken the 
place of it? a.Yes. 

Q.So that you c ome to this materia l whj_ch is in the line of the 
seam but which is not c oal? A. Yes . 

Q.And ycu s ome time s call that an igneous intrusion , do you? h.Ye s. 

Q."Sorre distance o.head of the panel and in t he sill roc k zone ther5 
i s a major normal fault ·which has a thr Ovl of some 300 fe e t in tffi 
direction of the panGl11 • Would you describe that expression , 
major normal fault? A.We ll, this fault j_s a normal ten sion f a ult 
with a down-throw in a south ·we st e rly direct ion. In o t h e r words 
the coal on the nor th e a st ern fault is 300 feet above the s ou th 
v1astern fault and that in effect ha s a plane which slopes cb wn 
at an a..'1gle , pos s ibly at abo ut L~5 degrees, and that has created L'*­

vian t in the coal seam of a certain distance. In othe r words , it 
is a bar ren zone• 

Q.Then you go on: 

11 (3 6 ) Near thtJ outbye e11d. of the goaf t he r 0 is a dyke system 
\vhi ch contains the de c omposed remains of thin volcanic dykes and 
1;~hich ot: viousl;y is in a zone of tensi =>ns as the r e is a normal 
faul t of abou t 3 fe e t throw in the a d j acent panel associa t ed 
1·vith one of the dykes." 
Where is that area you are r e f e rring to - is it north of tre 
working s? A. The d.yka sys tems are shm'm on the s~all plan attached. 

Q. rs it the last plan? ~. That is this p lan her e , (indicating) . 
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Q. The one showing the contours?A. That is so. 

Q. The dykes are indicated by the broken lines, one in the 
vicinity of No. 4 at-through?A. Yes .. 

Q. And one between 3 and 4?A.That is so.. If I may, these 
dykes as shown would be much more · c.r'ntinuous than indicated by 
the plan. The dykes on the plan I would say are only shown 
where they have been located and put on. 

Q. Would you tell us in lay language what is a dyke?A. A ~yke a s 
we know it in the Southern coalfields is an intrusion of 1gneous 
rock which comes in a more or less vertical fashion through the 
coa l face. In other words the coal seam is lying more or less 
horizontal and this volcanic material fills a fissure which is 
most often running in a vertical fashion. 

Q. "This is clearly a zone where a weakness occurs as information 
given by the management indicated that bad mining conditions 
pertained to the dyke affected are ao This is a very normal 
f ea ture when dykes and faults are met within the Bulli SeamG 

(37) In looking at the plan of extraction it is apparent that 
the bad conditions extended over a very large proportion of 
the extracted area as many fenders and stooks have been left. 

(38) Grades within the goaf are comparatively steep and much 
heavier than is normal in the Bulli Seam.. The maximum grade is 
1 in 6 (and this is persistent) in an almost true northerly 
direction. The contours which indic a te the levels generally 
are shown by the plan attached., 11 

Tha t is the same plan at which we have just been looking?A. Yes. 

Q. You have shown contour lines there on the north-western corner, 
a maximum of 130 feet going down to 40 f ee t in the diagonally 
opposite corner?A. 'Jhat is right. 

Q. Just by way of example, they show a contour difference between 
the intersection of A heading and Noo 2 cut-through with the 
miner place approximately 40 feet- 110 to ~O.?A. Ye s .. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Right at the miner place is 70 feet and the 
intersection we are t a lking about is the intersection of A heading 
and 2 cut-through; it is somewhere about 110 or may be 108, so 
there is a fall of nearly 40 feet?Ae That is right. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Q. In about a little over lOO yards of distance, 
approximately l in 6?A. Ye s. 

"(39) As on 18/l/66 by very careful mea surement the goaf was 
mak:1ng about 56 cubic feet of CH4 per minute. 11 

Q. Would you tell the Court how you carried out tha t careful 
measurement?A., In A heading between No .. 2 cut-through and the goaf 
a t this time ther e still r emained a part of the bra ttice screen 
tha t had been erected to form the shunt. This area of bra ttice 
s~r~en was v ery close to being rectangular in shape and that wa s 
d1v1ded off near enough into six equal areas. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Is tha t behind the bra ttice screen?A. No, at the 
brattice screen. The brattice screen wa s taken away and l e ft 
a r ec t angular openingo Tha t r ectangular opening wa s divided 
approximately into six equal areas and in the middle of eadh area 
I took a methanometer test and found what the.average CH4 content 
~ the air coming up tha t roadway was and then I found what the 
a
56
1r quantity was and I simply then arrived a t the f1gure of 

cubic fe e t of CH4. 
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"Tcicing the .ratio as per Mines Department analysis this means 
that 81 cubic feet of C02 and 3 cubic feet of N2 were also being 
given off." 

MR .REYNOLDS~ Q.You were relying on the certificate the Mines 
Department tendered in evidence in that r e spect? ... Yes. 

Q.That was a matter of applying your finding to that calculati.on? 
A. Yes. 

"(40) on 9/12/65 the gas had accumulated in the goaf to an 
9 stimated level of 107 ASL which is just downhill from the 
junction of B heading and the goaf. The level as above would 
be the general l evel throughout the goaf.n 

Q.\vhat you are saying is this, having found the level of the gas 
accumula tion you would find it, like "~•.Ja te.r, at the same level 
throughout the goaf? A. Yes. 

~.You have provided in the attached document, No.4l(a) a visual 
representation of this, or should I say a diagramatic represent­
at ion of t his situation? A. It is drawn to scale. 

Q.That is a section , is it, taken along the line of each heading? 
A.B heading. 

Q.And showing the positions of the cut-throughs, the positions 
of the dyke fault system as shown on the plan which has been 
adver ted to? A.. Yes. 

~ You show t her e the level of the gas as you would see it 
acc ording to your finding on 18th December 1965? A. Ye~ 

Q.You say that that is to scale? 4. Reasonably t o scale. 

Q.From the Colliery maps the positions of the sill rock and 
cinder and the dyke and fault system are p ut in the a )<Jropria.te 
places? A. Yes. 

11 (42) In mining owing to the n umerous fenders and stooks l e ft 
the r :wf mass woLtld tend to come down slowly end in doing so it 
would crush the small pieces of coal ru1d tend to leave then on 
the bottom with the immediate roof that had. first fallen after 
the extraction of the individual lifts . l.1s the excavati ~.m 
expanded the pressur .:- of the main ma ss of rock v1ould c ompre ss 
the part s unde rnea th so that the bulk of the void s in the goaf 
\vould be at c Jmparatively high l evels. This fentu re i .s sh own 
by the section attached.." 

q.y ou are saying having ascertained, according to your view, 
the l GVe l of this mass of gns in the goa f the void would be 
above it? A. That is so, the bulk of it. 

Q.Tha t is why you have drawn the figure in ths section in the 
shape you have in 4l(a)? A.That is so. 

(43) In addition to the pr es sure cl~ing up the lower parts of 
the goaf , water which is used in the various mining processes 
in ve ry large quantities woLtld seep d own and it can be 
anticipated tha t the re i. s quite a quantity in the voids of the 
l ower l evels of the goaf. Th is would reduce the gas 
quanti ties availa ble for expansion." 
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Q. Wha t is your knowledge about the r e tention and accumulation 
of wat er 1n goaves like this7A. When you ge t wa ter going in~ 
the goaf it usually stays there unless purposely drained and 
in mining coal it is essential to apply quite a l arge amount of 
~ater in the suppression of dust and naturally the overflow or 
the part tha t is not caught in the coa l itself will drain away 
and go to the lowe st part of the colliery. 

HIS HONOR: Q. C02 is a soluble ga s?A. Yes, somewhat. 

MR. REYNOLDS~ Soluble in wa ter. 

HIS HONOR: In water, 

Q. So tha t IiJart of the C02 would be retained in the solution? 
A. Yes, but it is not a grea t quantity. 

Q• What about CH4?A. No, CH4 is not soluble. 

Q. Is not soluble in wa ter?A. No. 

Qo Assume you have a mixture, an inter-mixture of the two, as in 
bo ttom gas. This may be entirely academic, of course. Assume 
the gas is passed through water, does the wa t er separate off the 
C02 somewha t by dissolving it?A. Ye s. 

Qo And release CH4 from the mixture?A. It would ~nd to but the 
action would be very very little. 

Q. Very little?A. Yes., 

Q. You feel I can ignore this?A. Ye s. 

11 (44) I t is certain tha t t he large part of the go af whioh is 
above the gas level as fonnd by me would contain air and not ga so 
My inspection (l5e) would bear this out al so. 11 

MR . REYNOLDS: Q. May we go back to para. (15e). That wa s 
your finding when you climbed up on the rock and founi it vias 
clear of gas?A. Yes, wen t around in C heading right into the 
goaf ar ea and found no gas in tha t position. 

11 (45) Diffusion, \vhether ga s diffuses into air or vice versa 
would r e sult in a heavier than air ga s which would find its level 
below the normal top ga s level. 11 

QQ Would you explain tha t?A. In the process of diffusion you 
have two things happening: in one case the gas is diffusing 
into t he air and in the other case the air is diffusing into 
the ga s and this all t ake s place on the top l evel where the 
gas ooe ts t he air and, of course, in some measure lower down 
whe r e the air is mixing with the g a s but essentially at that 
point, at the top leve l of the ga s and as soon as a particle of 
gas r eache s up to t ake in a particle of air to diffuse with i.t 
those two particle s toge ther become heatEr than air and they 
would drop down and t end to take a position below the top level 
of the gas. 

11 The ac tion of air f alling into the gas as the result of 
diffusion would cause a circulation however slight of air over 
the top of the goaf and in this cas e from either B or C headingsn" 

Q. Do you mean this diffusion process crea_tes its own oort of 
circulation?A. Ye s., 

Q, But it is very slight?A. Very slight. 
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11The gas woul d travel out bye 1\ heading (in part) due to this 
circ ulation. 'I' he diffusion wo uld al so account in some measure, 
for the air in the gas at the junc tion of .~t he a ding and the goaf . 

(46 ) At the junction of Jl, B and C headings with the goaf the 
foll owing situa tion applied a s on the 9/12/6 5 . At A heading the 
oases as analysed. \.IJere 20% CHLI-, 29% C02, 1% N2 together with 
~ir. at B heading the gas vJas nea rly ~J ure a ir an d the S3.Il1e applied 
at C heading. In the event of the go af gases expanding then 
it -vroul d come out eq ually in each of the thr ee· avai lable paths." 

Q,To summarise you are saying the l evels of these gases in the 
goaf wer e such that they were some measurement above the floor 
line at A heading but at B and C he a dings they -v.re r e not so, there 
vm s n o gas the re because the pond of this gas did not reach t o 
these points? A. Tha t is so , 

Q,And this exp l ains why you f ind ga s at A heading but pure air 
at B and C heading? A . Yes . 

MR . REYNOLDS: There i s a sor t of ponding e ffect having regard t o 
the contour • 

Q.Y8U go on t o deal with the fall in the barometer . 

HR .SULLIVAN: Just one thing - the "three available paths" . vlhat 
are they? 

MR . REYNOLDS: A, B a nd C. 

MR . 3UL.L.,IVAN: Q. Is t l'R t right ? A. That is right . 

Jv:R .LEE: I though t he s a id they did no t come out in B md C? 

MR . REYNOLDS: Hhatever was in the goaf at that point would come 
out . 

HIS HONOR: The vJitness s aid if the goa f gases expand they c ome 
out equn_lly . Thrre was pure air in B end C and gas at A be e au se 
of the fact that they had not e xpanded and they we r e merely there 
because of the l evel of gas as contrasted with wh~t one might cull 
the fall or th2 c ontour at 4. 

Q.Is that the position? A. Yes . 

lill .LEE : If they expanded sufficiently to move up C heading they 
might al l c ome out (.J'qu.~lly . If they did not I c n.nnot imagine how 
they can c ome up B head ing . 

HR . REYNOLDS: Q. Do you mean the content of the goaf or only that 
part of the goaf v.rh ich is g:1s? A. In this caso I would treat a ir 
as being A. gas . 

Q.If you treo_t air as part of the gas vJhatever is in th:i goaf rnd. 
expands will come out ~~ ually I t hink that is \vhat you say? A. Yes . 

11 The fa ll in the Baromet e r. 
Ut-7 ) The follO\ving figur e s taken from the Bulli Collie ry 
Barograp h which is located a t about . 21" of Hercury or 186 
fe e t above normal se u l e vel show the fall in the barometer in 
the pGr iod 11 p . m. on 8/11/ 65 to 11 p . m. on 9/11/65 . " 
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MR. REYNOLDS: I think there is a mis-typing in the nrall11
• 

The fourth figure is .oo and it should be .06. The n ext one 
should be ~oo. They have become transposed. It is a 
total f all of 0.46. 

HIS HONOR: And tha t is from 2200 hours on 8 th November. 

MR. REYNOLDS: 12 hours- 11 o'clock to 11 plm. 

HIS HONOR: 11 p.m. on 8th November to 11 p .m. on 9th November -
24 hours. 

MR. SULLIVAN: 2200 hours, it is 10 p. m., isn't it? 

HIS HONOR: Q. What do you say about tha t. 11 2200 hour s11
, it 

says. It is 10 o'clock, isn't it? A. Ye s, I beg your pardon, 
t ha t should be 10 o'clock. 

HIS HONOR: There is a f all in tha t period of 24 hours of 0.46. 

MR. REYNOLDS:Q.You comment tha t the fall in the two hours 
which is before , and aft er the fi r e, is ,08?A. Ye s. 

11 (48) The total amount of coal removed by mining from the 
goaf ha s been given a s 51,000 tons and its specific gravity a s 
1.57. This include s the stone which accounts for the high 
specific gravity. In the solid each ton of co a l stone mixture 
would occupy about 24 cu . ft. This means tha t the spac e ava ilable 
assuming no wa ter fill would become 1,220,000 cubic fee t. u 

MR. REYNOLDS: As I r ecollect it it is approxi mately the s~me 
as the ca lcula tion done by two of Mr. Lee 's witnesses. 

u (49) In the twenty four hour period a s indica ted by (47) 
the barome t er fell .46 inche s with an aver a ge barometer r eading 
of 29 .54 inche s. The expansion over the twenty four hour period 
would be 46 x 1,220,000 • a bout 19 7000 cubic fe e t. 

2954 
(50) The volume of each of A, B and C headings between Nos. 2 
and 3 cut-throughs is approximately 19 7000 cubic f ee t. It is 
in t er e sting to note tha~he volume of the Bu1li Court room is 
about 20 , 000 cubic f ee t. 11 

MR. REYNOLDS: Tha t giTe s us some idea of t he amount of a ir in 
each of those cut-throughs inby of No. 2. 

11 (51) In the two hours which include the time of ignition the 
bar ome t er f ell by .08 inche s (47) and a s a r e sult the expansion 
of the air and ga s in the goaf toge ther would be 

8 X 1,220,000 • 3,310 f ee t. 
2958 

This is equival ent to 27.6 cubic f ee t pe~ute . Of this tota l 
9. 2 cubic f ee t per minute would come out of each of A, B and 
C heading. B and C would yield a ir and A would yie ld ga s having 
the following composition 

CH4 
C02 
N2 
Air 

20% 

29% 
1% 

50% 

This means that the actua l quantity r a t e per minute of CH4 
coming out on aver a ge in the two hour period would be one fifth 
of t he mixture coming out of A heading only 1.84 cubic f ee t. 
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MB.REYNOLDS: He has worked out what would be the total amount of 
goaf content -vrhich has come out in those three headings and said 
if you take the analysis vle have of the nature of the goaf gas 
wnich was coming out in A then that inc lude.d not only CH4 but he has 
t aken it down to methane . That is the last paragraph - how much 
of the goaf' ga.s actual l y came out in the hour would be at the ra t e 
of 1 . 84 cubic feet of pure methane which is 20% of that and 
that is why he takes the fifth . 

11(52) It is to be noted that on careful measurement on the 
18/1/66 the natural malm of gas was 56 cubic feet per minute 
and it is shown by Para gr aphs 91 and 92 that the malm during 
t he time of .ignition could ha ve been higher than that figure . 
In these circ Llmstances the quantity yielded by the fall of 
barometer would be completely insignific~nt .n 

Q. 'J.'ha t is you.r c onclusion about it ? A. Ye s. 

Q.That if you yield only 1. 84 cubic feet having regnrd to the 
gene ral yield tha t addition -vrould not be significant? A. That is s o. 

Q,As affecting a de.ngerous accumulation in the. shunt . If it was 
go ing to be there it wo~ld have been thGr e independently of any 
b~r ometer fall ' A. That is so . 

MR . REY~OLDS~ That f ollows, I take it , from what you say. Further 
t o "~''hat I said yGsterday it · \vould sutit my client company to say 
this sudden f n.ll of the bar orne ter 

MR . SULLIViili: Leave that for your address . 

HIS HONOR = I will hear Mr . Reynolds . 

HR.REY1TOLDS : Th is is the vie\v of this exper t and on that basis 
it is put before Your Honor t nd those at the Bar table can seek 
to d.8 stroy it if they wish but I just point out the signif i cance 
of \vha t has been said . It would be comfortable and conveni Gnt to 
me - -

HIS HONOR : If I accept it as true I would be entitl ed , I would 
think , to disregard so much of the evidence as re l ates to the 

comp any not attaching significance to the fall in the baromet er . 

HR. HEYNOLDS : That is s o , Your H-:)n or . That is the onl ypart that 
give s me any comfort . 

Q, Now you deal with the gas CE:r4 given off in 8 Righ t District. 

11 
(53) The following tuble gives the percentages of CH4 also 

rute of make CH4 and the return ai.r quantity during tre year 1965. 

Honth Air Quantity % CHl;; cH4 cf'm. 

Jaluary 
February 19, 000 .1 19 
March 20, 000 .1 20 
April 22 , 000 .1 22 May 20, 000 .1 20 
June 25 , 000 .1 25 
JUly 45 , 000 .1 45 u 

A, Yes . 

HR . REYNOLDS : Your Honor already had t his ev idence i n a n.ot her form 
and it is pu t here mere ly for the s ake of c ompl e t en ess. 
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"Month, A_ir Qu.antj.t:z -
August 34-, 000 
Sep tember 26 ,700 
Octob or 26,4-oo 
November 28 , 600 
December 27,600 

%cH4 

.1 

.2 

.l 

.2 

.3 

CH4ctm 

34 

g~.4 
57 
83." 

"(54-) The significant dates in the above table are June -vrhen No , 
2 cut through was being driven . September, October, and Novembe r, 
which are prior t o the fire and Decembe r 'i..rhich was a fter the fire ." 

HR •• REYNOLDS: Your Honor vr ill r emember from yesterday I int ervened 
at the Bar t a ble t o a gree vrith s omebody that in December of 
l a st ye a r it was .3. 

"( 55 ) In June when all the place s were in s :Jlid.s and when No.2 
cut thr ·::> ugh v.ra s driven as a cut through between A, B and C 
headings it '"O Ll ld be my exper i ence that the bull<: of the gas 
being ~ iven off would c ome from the s olid place being worked 
with only a smal l par t coming from the idle place s. It is my 
opinion that of the 25 cubic feet of gas per minute being 
liberated scme 20 cubic feet per minute wou:tl c ooo from the 
working pl a ce. It Hould be logical t ·=> a sst1me that a t l east 
this quant ity of gas wo uld be libern.ted per minute in till miner 
pl a ce a t t h r::; time of the fire as the miner was in this same area." 

MR. REYNOLDS: If Your Honor fo llows this reasoning , t his is only 
to try to get ·Hhat content vlOLlld c:::>me fr:)rn the mine r place as 
against the goaf . 

Q,Is that wha t y o u are seeking to get s ome index as to? A. Yes , 

11 (56 ) In October t he emission rate dropped sharpl y . This cru ld 
have be en due to the following factors . 

(a) The solid place emission (if it was ·:)pe rating) d rapped 
sharply. This is very unlikely. 

(b) The emission rate from the goa f dropped sharpl y , this 
is most likely." 

~ffi . REYNOLDS: Q. Would you c~re to co~nent on why you say one 
is w1l i ke ly and the other likely? A. \·lell, in working coal 
when you break i t out f r om the s olid nas s you find tffi t the 
rate of liber.::tion of ga s is usually quite uniform or reasonably 
unifnrm. If you stop a pla ce sharply you will find that within 
a ve ry shor t time the a;nount of gas will tail off and then virtuclly 
drop down to nothing . Then , a s soon as you st a~t to op erat e the 
pla.ce again~ it -yrould come in the usual fa shion a s it was be fore . 
I v1ould say it was s ommvha t unlikely that in worl{ing coal in 
a solid p lace you vlould ge t a sudden r eduction in the nrnount of 
gas being liberated, but in the goaf in my experience you ge t 
most of your gas coming up from the floor . If your progression 
of floor henving failed to take place~ thon the go. s would begin 
to tail off in its emission. In my op1nion that would be by far 
tho mo3 t likely thing to happen . 

Q.You say what you have just s a id in your report -

"(57) The gases liberated from the goaf in the Bull i Se~ usually 
come from the f loor . ThG seam is at the top of the Pe rmian rocks 
and all th e coal seams r e st belovr 1·rhile the rocks abovo are almost 
complotely devoid of carbono.ceous materials . Each time the floor 
~aves 7 as it froquently does , gas comes up and it coul d be expect e d 
that it \vould come out according to the s e verity of the floor breaks . 
It is to be not ad that at ab out t his time owing to the 
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very bad nature of the working donditions the extraction r a te 
was not good and that the arm of working was close to the Dyke 
system and as may be seen on the colliery plans. 11 

would you be good enough to just expound that for us?A. Yes 
1 have here a plan, Exhibit 11 JJ'1 , and this plan is not perhaps 
complete in some ways inasmuch as it does not show the new lifts 
that are actually being driven or had been driven. In oth~ 
words when the surveyor goes into the mine all he can do is to 
mark out the coal tha t has been extracted and he does not in 
effect show each of the lifts, but when you go into here and 
examine here as far as we aould what has t aken place, as I did -
I went in here as far as I could, in fact I believe I got t o the 
junction of No. 4 cut-through - you find there is quite a lot of 
coal left. These dykes - you can see one here just past No. 3 
cut-through - of course indicate that that wuld mean this was 
rather badly broken up and that the r a te of extraction as a r esult 
could be very much less than you could expect to have in normal 
operation. 

Q. Then we were deali~g with the floor heaving?A. Yes, well, with 
regard to the floor heave, again if you are going to leave a 
number of stooks and fenders in the go af, then natural~these 
stooks are be tween the roof and the floor and they do provide 
quite a resistance to the ~eave of the floor. In other words, 
their very presence prevents the floor from heaving up as it 
would if they had been taken out completely. This is a very 
well known ~eature in mining. Perhaps to now just get a little 
ahead of it, at some time after these had been standing, the 
pressure from the roof above wruld become so grrn. t that the se 
stooks and f enders would start to bre~k and not only does the 
roof tend to come down but at that stage the floor would tend 
to go up. 

HIS HONOR: Q. And tha t is when there are emissions of gas, with 
the heaving of the floor?A.Yes. 

MR. BNYNOLDS: Q. You comment that you do not get carbonaceous 
materials above and this means tha t you do not get C02 coming 
from above?A. Yes. 

11 (58) In November work in the bad area below was completed and 
the ar ea immediately below No. 2 heading was in prospect for 
extraction. In early November before the fire the rate of 
emi ssion is shown to have come up to the September level and 
immediately after the fire in December it is up by a further 
5'0% to 83 cubic feet per minute. 11 

MR. REYNOLDS: Your Honor will see there is one additional matter 
in the t able at the top of p.9. The witness has converted the 
.1, .2 and .3 to a rate of CH4 cubic feet per minute. 

HIS HON OR: Yes. 

Q. I am not quite sure about one thing I ought to be perfectly 
clean about. When you speak about the rate in November as 
compared with December, those figures are taken from the 
percentages i n the r e turn airway, are they? You did not mea sure 
as in November, did you?A. No 2 I did not. All these figures are 
taken from the colliery records. 

Q. And the reccr ds are those of amounts of CH4 in the return airway? 
A. Yes, that is right. You will notice I do ~ttempt to compare 
that rate in December with what might have been - I think tha t 
comes a little later. 

Q. What might have been in November?A. Yes, it is explained a little 
further on. 
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MR.REYNOLDS:Q. Yo u have already told us a bout t~e testin~ you _ 
did on18th January , to find 56 cubic fe e t pe r m1nut o bmng g1ven 
off a t the goa f . You say that to check on t h is figure which yru 
t ook fr om th e: Collie ry r e cords you did y our OWl cho c k on 18th 
Jan11 -: ry, 1 966 ? A. Ye s . 

Q.You ce.r e f'ully me asur ed it and you found. 56 cubic f eo t pe r 
minLl t e be in6 g iven off from the goaf' in the way you hav e a lr oad Y 
de scribe d t c us? A. Yes . 

11 (59) As a che ck on this figu.r e on the 18/l/66 I c ar e fu~l y 
m8 a sured th _ ga s being given o f f fro m the goa f an c; tl1D m1ner 
heacl ing and fo und the rates to be ··· 

From the goaf 56 cubic fe et pe r minute 

From the miner face 4 . 2 c u b i c fee t p er minute • " 

c,.You also sought to find out ·what ~>JaS thon coming off from the 
miner place ? A. Yes . 

Q,And now did you do that ? A. In this case I f rund an area behind 
the brat t ic e in which the air 1N"as c oming out from the miner 
hGad ing and I divided th.J. t in to three and took three road.iJ1gs -
the top, middl e and floor - and then found the air qua.nt ity and I 
found t hat I·Jhen you mad e certain c alculations thore you found it 
was 4 . 2 cubic fe e t no r minute of m14 in the air coming out from 
the mine r p l a c e . 

Q.You said y ou f ound that to be 4 . 2 cubic f eo t por minute? A. Yes . 

11 If t hG minor pl ac e had be en working it would be expected that 
tha face wo uld y ield about 20 cubic f ee t pe r minute so if you 
ad d t h is fi :~ ur e to the ga s coming from t he goaf the total 
di s tric t yield vro uld be 76 cubic f ee t per minut e . n 

Q. You have already told us how you arrived at your computation 
of that 20 - you told us that in paragraph 55? A. That is so . 

"(60 ) From tho information above thc, r e is no doubt that ther e \va s 
a s har p incr ea se in the emission of CH4- fr om tho g oaf abcu t the 
t ime of the :;a s i gn.i tion • . H.S the mea sur ement of CH4 made by 
me wa s done mor e than tHo months a f t er the i gnition and the d is ­
t rict had been standing a l l that time I 1.rould Gxp Gct that the 
r a t e of flow just prior t o the st oppago of the district would be 
very much higher than 76 cubic feet per minute . 

(61) In vievr o f the evid ence as outlined above it .is not hard to 
bGl i e ve that the r e could. have been a very sudden he ave of tl'B 
floor just prior t o the shuttle car entering the shunt at about 
9.20 a . ra . on 9. 11. 65. 11 

Q.Would. you novr deal with paragraph 60 and tell us a gain why 
you r e asoned. that there would be a sharp increase in the emission 
of CHLI- from the goaf aboLlt the tinw of the gas ignition?A. Well 1 
I hav e alre a.dy said that during the time whon this district was 
set up to simulate thG conditions at thu time of the ignition, 
I \vent into the: shunt or into the goaf and I tested w:iih a safety 
l amp . I fou..n d tr.Ja t these gases were very v ory easy to find e..nd. 
I wouldn 1 t think anybody with any knowl edge of t e sting for gns wiih 
a safe ty lamp could have failed to have found the gas and that is 
ono of thG most particuJa r reasons why I consider that ther o must 
be a sharp increase to allow it to be dst ccted •. 

HIS HONOR~ Q. There is tho alt or native , ,.,rould you not a gr Ge 1Hr . 
Sollers - there is tho alternat i ve that no test was made or the 
other is that the testing wa s not done properly? A. . I would agrcG 
that that is a possibility but I wo uld think that is extremely unlikely .: 
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Q. I am afraid it is my job to say that. I have had the 
advantage of hearing witnesses and comparing their evidence. 
Your argument is, is it not, that you start off by saying 11 I 
accept the fact that these persons who tested not only did test 
but tested properly, and if I start off with that since no ga s 
wa s detected at the time it must have come after they tested." 
That is your argument, is it not?A. Well, tha t is one of the 
arguments. 

Q.And it must have come between the time they l a st tested, which 
wa s half an hour before the ·fire, and the time it started to 
~ter the shunt; there must have been a sudden upheaval of ga s 
into the shunt - is that what you say?A. I think we are just a 
little ahead of the story, if I may say so. Perhaps if Your 
Honor waits a little while longer you may draw your conclusions 
then, but in addition to that answer I have already given I wouJd 
point out there has been this increase registered in December 
in CH4 -

MR. REYNOLDS: I am afraid I cannot hear the witness. 

WITNESS: I will try t o speak a littlebuder. I would point out, 
sir, tha t I have already put this table infront of you which 
shows a sharp increa se as read by the colliery officials of CH4 
content in the month of December. I have also shown that my 
figures eonfirm tha t it could have been in the order of 83 cubic 
feet of CH4 per minute. Those two f actors appear at this 
moment but I think if you go on a little further you will find I 
have made another point which would make a contribution towards 
this. 

HIS HONOR: Q. Before you go on, when the fire oecurred the 
percentage of emission for November of CH4 was ,2 and y~u estimated 
that as a rate of 57 cubic fe a t per minute. That is at the time 
the fire occurred, so you cannot argue back from the increase in 
December and 'sayt 11 This sudden emission occurred in November at 
the time of the 1"ire, 11 because tha t wa s your figure then, 57? 
A. Yes. Perhaps I could point out to Your Honor that this 
reading a s I have found it was t aken on the afternoon before 
the fire, the 8 th. I would also perhaps like to point out that 
this instrument, the M.S.A. Recorder, the normal thing is to 
go to .1 and .2. You find with all the se readings no .15 
or no .15 or ,16. You will appreciate there is a weakness in 
that, and these f i gure s would embody that weakness. After all 
if it wa s .14 in October they would say it wa s .1, and if in 
November it was .16 they would say it was .1 too, whereas in 
fact it was not .01, it was .02 difference in the readings. 
There is quite a weakness in the readings and I think we should 
all acknowledge that. 

MR. REYNOLDS: Then you go on t o deal with some comments on the 
change in the charac t er of ga s: 

" Change in the Character of Ga s. 
(62) It has been shown that the 

analysed by the Department of Mines 
sta te about 58% C02, 40% CH4i 2% 
ratio of C02 to CH~ would be .45 

ga ses as collected and 
showed in their concentrated 
N2. This means that the 

to 1. 

(63) On 18/1/66 I took a sample of a large body of gas 
and the r e sultant analysis certifkates attached revenled a 
C02 to CH4 ration of· 2. 2 to 1. This sample was taken from 
the continuous miner place which can be considered as being 
outbye of the goaf area. The earlier analysis taken by the 
Department of Mines was confirmed by samples taken at or about 
the same time by A. I. S. n 
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We did our testing at the same time as the Depar tment did and 
there was no disagreement. 

11(64) During my visit to No .. 2 North on 27/1/66 I had 
occasion to examine CH4 coming from thr-: floor (29) and found it 
to be probably near purs methane .. " 

your Honor recollects the evidence yesterday of how he tested 
it and got into a crack and could not detect ;mything. 

11 (65) It could be highly significant that Deputy c. St ewar t as 
extracted from tho records,makes a specific finding of CH4 at the 
dyke. 
(66) It has been my experience in a neighbour ing Colliery to find 
gases close to a cinder and sill rock zone where tm wnount of 
cH4 if any could not be det scted with a safety larnp.In casesof lack 
of ventilation vThe r e the areas Her e sealed off I have seen road­
ways fill up with such gaso 
(67) I have noted one case vThere the Bulli SGam has been formed 
into pillars for at least ten years when a sha.ft was extended down 
some t£nty one feet to the Noo2 Seam belcw & largo volume of gas 
1.vas r e l eased from this lower seam. This is an indication as to 
the impervious nature of the coal measure strata and suggests what 
may happen vrhen the floor heaves in an area of pillar extraction 
operating in the Bulli Seamn 
(68) I have seen a pillar district operating for several 
months ~ovith no measurable gas content in till r e turn air md then 
found overnight a largo volume of gas suddenly released. 
(69) It a~pears that the presence of massive sill rocks near and 
under the Bulli Serun play ~1 important part in the reason for the 
presence of C02 mixed in with the normal CH4 gas of the seam. 

(70) In attaining a higher rank,coal is required to give up more 
hydrogen than carbon thus increasing thG fjxed carbon content. 
This hydrogen is given off in t he form of · CH4o Normally in a 
coal seam the proce ss has been going on ever since the bed of 
vegetable matter was laid downo Over millions of years the exce ss 
gas slovrly excapes to the surface$ Usually that vThic h remains in 
the natural reservoir of the seam itsolf is considerable while 
some times the adjoining rocks ,_lso hold quantities of the gas. 

(71) Massive sill rocks occur near all the collieries working 
the Bulli s eam on the coastal strip and to find out some of the 
zone s a s known for many y er~r s referonco may be made tb the Survey 
of the Southern Coalfield as carried out for the Minister for 
Mine s by the Government Geologist (LeFoHarper in 1915). 
(72) In the Bulli Colliery Holding there are many examples of mas­
sive sill penetration of the coal measursso The latest bore ca t­
aract No .l vrhich has beon drilled to a considerable depth shmvs 
numberous sillso The location~ this bore is about 1~ miles S.E.of 
No .B Righto Tho Bulli Seam itself has been burnt over several squo~G 
miles and its substance replaced to n very large degree by sill rock. 
The inbye boundary of Noo8 Right pan~l is near sill rock~ 
(73).It appears that tho C02 originates from the Carbonates in 
tho sill rock and Harper in his survey mentions tho presence of 
up to 27% of carbonates as a total in one sample taken from a 
point not far from Nou8 Right Districto Evidence of carbonates 
in sill rocks generally is widespread according to Harp~r. 

In No~l5 bore tho coal when analysed showed 3% limeo 

(74) Evidonce that tha sill rocks ar e generally confined m 
that par t of tho Bulli Soam n oar its outcrops is widespread and 
this is refle cted by the greater CH4 contont ·of tho Bulli 
Soi.illl gases as the ~ovorking of the mines progross westward." 
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HR. REYNOLDS: 'i• Pausing t here for a moment , doe s this mean tha t 
the n ear er this coal s eam is t o t he escarpmen t the more likely 
yo u ar e to find Illawarra Bottom gas? A. Yes . 

Q. And the further you work these vlorking s i n towards the wes t, 
the more unlikely it s oc cur rence? A. Ye s . 

Q. What i s your knowledge a s to first of all , t heore t i cally , 
t he occ urrenc e of this gas in the Illawar ra mine s and s econ dly 
your knowledge a s t o its de t e ction ? A. Well , t his gas occurs ove r 
a very ..,,ride area , particularly as I have said neA.r the se .J.ms ·~t 
outcrop s or n ear the east ern boudarie s of the s eam. The r e sul t 
is tha t in the years gone by it was qui t e c ommon t o find Illawa­
rr a bottom gas . 

Q .\~hat do you me an by t he y ears gon e by? A. Well ~ I am s peck ing of 
up t o the year 1930 - t he r e was quite a lot of lt a r o und then­
and say if yoU t Rke o3 miles from the ou tcrop generally yoU C w"l 

saY t hat in tha t zrre is where you would e~Je ct t o find Illawarra 
bot t om gas and the r e has been some vrorking in the last 30 ye ars 
of a c onside r able a:nount in that particular zone , but novJ the 
zone of wor king is extending we s twa rd beyond t hat poin t . In the 
times gon e by , a s I said , JO U would quite commonly find small 
quant it i e s of I l lawarra bott om gas. It did n ot normally occur in 
l arge quan t ities . For instance -

Q. Stopping t here , could you g ive His Honor an illustra tion 
of a t yp ica l circumstance in which i t was found in thos e days?A. 
Ye s , wel l , in the se da ys the p i ck a nd s hovel wer e the order of the 
day and if you do not 2lready know~ Your Honor , in the Bulli 
Seam 1.ve have numerous stone i ntrusioas in the f loor. These oc cur 
i n a patt ern runn ing in a certain d irection , almost systematic , 
but t he y are t he r e and they have been of a gr eat nuis,~c e in op ­
erat ing the c oal s e am . These mor e par t icular l y have occLrrred 
ne ar t he outcrop of the s eam and the r e sultant was that in 
the p ick and sh ove l da ys i nst ea d of t aking up t te stone a s much a s 
they might have the t endency was to go ove r the se rolls a nd t he n 
they would go down i n to the coal pa s t the r ol l and t hen i n 'ln the 
next one , an d s o on. Wher e this Illawarra bott om gas 1..vas oc curring 
and partic ul arly wher e the ventila tion was sluggish, a s s ome t ime s 
it of t en was i n t hose day s you would perhaps ge t 9 i nche s o f thi s 
gas R.ccumulating i n the sill ca used by the devia tion o f the rolls , 
and thi s was quite a ppar en t . you c ould f oel the gas a s y o u 
walke d thr ough it , the physica l wa rmth of t he saturat ed gas . 

HIS HONOR ~ Q• I suppose you would. no t be f ee l L1g the CH4 as muc h 
as the C02? A. No , y~u would f eel bo th. 

Q. Wha t is the feeling of cH4 or is ther e a peculi ar f e e ling i n 
bottom gas? A. No , i t is simply a fe eling of the satura ted gas . In 
othGr word s , y ou may n otice in h er e I did n o t o tha t I t ook a 
hygr omete r r ea.d ing of t he gas in the miner plac e , o.no f r om memory 
I found t he r e t ha t the saturation 1,ras 92%. It is n o t mentioned 
~ere - I have simp l y given the figure s , but in tho a ir just 
lmmed i a t ol y outby tho humidity wa s 76 or 72%. There \va s quite a 
r emarkable d i fference . This d.iffor e nco in my experienc e has l od t o 
the f ac t tha t '\vhen you vral k into t his gas , a s you ofton d id y ou 
had the immedi a t e feeling of warmth simp ly because t ho sweat on 
your l eg s \vas not be ing evaporat ed by it be ing ne ar . 

Q ,\~e are t a lking a bout bot t om gas, CH4 be ing omi tt ed ; whe r e do es 
the C02 coma fr om? A.Wel l , it come s fr om t he c a rbonates in tl"E s ill 
rocks . You s e e , you have a situa t i on he r e whe r e \vha t I would t e rm 
the n a tural gas of coal , CH4 , is be ing gener a t od all the time i n 
coal s e ams . It i s be ing mad e , manufa c tured , by the mol ec ules of 
hydr ogen combining \vith a c er t a in n umb e r of molecule s of car bon, 
taki ng av1ay an exce ss amount of hydrogen t o increa s e the c a rbon 
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content of the seam itself. You have that and that is the 
natural thing- it would be in most coal seams_and wou~d be in 
every coal seam unless some thing happened to llberate lt, such 
a s the proximity to the surface where it gets away freely. 
In addition to that, you know there are in this Illawarra or 
part of the Illawarra coal fields, the sill rocks which a re 
throwing off carbon dioxide and these gases are competing with 
the natural gases of the coal seam for the space. And in 
doing so they come together and become a diffused mass of 
different chemical mixture. 

Q• That is Illawarra bottom gas 1 
that there is quite an amount or 
C02, existing on its own?A. Yes, 
somewhat different way. 

but you see we have evidence 
what the miners call black damp, 
well, that is formed in a 

Q. How is that formed?A. Well, this gas usually forms in 
goaves and you could take it this way: the air goes into the 
goaf which is virtually a still place when it is sealed off 
and in that goaf almost invariably you will find timber, and 
in the olden days of course horse dung~ and this material 
combines with the oxygen in the air and throws out carbon 
dioxide, and finally it will a l most completely absorb all the 
oxygen. 

Q. strictly sp eaking it is not coming from the coal at all?A. Very 
rarely. It is not a natural gas in the coal seam. It has 
some other source. 

Q. There is evidence here that over a period rather large 
quantities of C02 - there is some evidence in a hearsay form 
tha t one of the men who died here cama- home in the week before 
the fire and not only smelt of gas, apparently C02~ but also 
wa s sickened by it and could not eat his meals, and so on. That 
is part of the evidence here, so if I accept that evidence, that 
could be pure Co2, or it could be that bottom gas~ or Illawarra 
bottom gas, in these quantities in that period had remained 
undetected as such by deputies ?A. Yes, well, perhaps if I 
t e ll you the second part of Mr. Reynolds' question, I may be 
able to throw a little more light on that for you. 

Q. Ye s. A. I have had a lot of experience in varying quantities 
of CH4, C02, and it does vary. I mean, the closer you get to 
the sill rock areas the richer these gases are in C02. Now, 
there comes a point when this mixture is not detectable on the 
safety lamp. You can still have CH4 but you still can't detect 
it. For instance, I have found with the type of light I was 
using that when the oxygen content dropped to about 18 per cent 
your light would go out very very r eadily so that you had that 
limit in which to test for gas. So you will appreciate that 
with the carbon dioxide in particular taking up the place of 
oxygen, even though there was a small percentage of CH4 there, 
it was completely impossible to detect it because your light would 
go out before you were able to see it on the flame. 

Q. What do you say as to the ratios of C02 and CH4?A. Well, I 
can quite easily detect CH4 in a ratio of 4 parts of C02 and 
one part of CH4. You could detect tha t up to a certain limit 
only. You could calculate that out and you will find it is 
round about two per cent. You will ge t two per cent cap and 
treat tha t as inflammable gas even though I would know, although 
I dontt think a deputy would know, that it was harmless. To go 
a little further, when you ge t a gas down near the 40 per cent 
CH4 and 58 per cent C02, that is very easy to detect. I mean, 
you can just lower down your light like that and lea ve it there 
for about 8 seconds and you would find your cap comei but you 
would not want to lower it down too far or lose the ight. 
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Q.Have you seen deputies testing with t his light?A. Yes . 

Q.Could you assist us i.rvthis~ Where a deputy is testing, perhaps 
for Illawarra bottom gas or CH4, in the presence of C02, v.re had 
an example yesterday of Hr . Cambourn showing us the way he did it ? 
A. Ye s . 

Q.One thing the deputy f~ars a~ any tim~ ~s tha t he will lose 
his l i fe ; do you agr ee w1th t hls p ro~ os1t1on? A. Yes. 

Q.And in fa~t as .he goes dov1n into the cH4 an~ his flame dimi nishes 
somewhere , 1n dolng that of course he would m1ss vh at has been 
de scribed as thin air where he discovered CH4, if in fact he does 
pull out fRi rly rapidly? A. Yes, well , he would not pull out 
rap idly , in that sense. He would lift i t up slowly. 

Q.If hi s flame is going out?A. He would lift it up slowly or m 
woul d lose it completely , if he attempted to . 

Q.I see what you mean , If he pulled it up too quickly to discover 
the CH4? A. I wouldn 1 t think that would be right,no . 

Q.It has been put t o me by Mr.Cambourn that what he did was to 
go out of it , 1..rhen he sees C02 putting out hi s flame and having 
come out of it he deliberately l mvers hi s f lame and lowers it 
to what he thinks is t he fringe area. UP t o that stage he has 
not detected CH4? A. I can assure you, Sir , I s aw the drn1onstration 
put on yesterday and j_f Mr.cambourn had done that in the gn§ t hat 
wa s in the shunt, a s I saw it in the simul ated conditions, he 
could not have f ailed to detect CH4. · 

HR . McNALLY~ I think the evidence is he in fact found it on 8th 
December, af t er the fire . 

HIS HONOR: Q. You say he would have found it? A. Host certainly 
would have found. it . 

Cl. At what noint \vould he have found it? A. Would you just explain 
the meaning of 11 poin t " ther e? 

Q. B.t what point in his t e st would he have found it? A. As he 
vms slowly going down he '\vould, yes , On his description h8 would 
have found it before he hit bottom. 

Q. So if he had done that , or if Deputy Ste1.var t had dono that , and 
if the gns had b6~n~ there - that is a qualification - the deputie s 
must have found gas? A.. In my op:L.Ylion they 1 . .rould. have fb und it . If 
~ may again , I had noticed some r ef er ence to trace of gas . Well, 
1t would be possible , in anyone lowering dm,;-n the ir light in 
a mass of very rich , a rich C02 mixture wi th a litt l e bit of cH4 
and even say a ratio of 85 to 15 , ge tting up well int o the range 
of extinctive gas , he would just mamentarily, probably , see a 
cap on that light. 

Q.~Isn ' t t hi s the position, that it assume s a deputy is in fact , 
Slnce he is looking for methane , ~rl4,down on a fringe ar ea , t 8sting 
for Illawarra bot t om gas <l" that hG is aware of Illawarra bottom 
gas at t he timo he is making the test . Isn 't that the fact? A. 
No Sir . Any deputy in a mine i s charged with a responsibili ty 
of t e sting any gas reg~rdle ss of what the gas might be , and even 
though he doe s not think of it LYl t erms of being I llawarra bott cm 
~as he s till would think of it in t erms tha t he hA.s to try t o find 
lnflammablo gas if ho co...YJ. . 

Q. At or just above the level of a layGr of C02 ? A. Well , in t hi s 
case I havG he ard two peopl e deli ber ately say that they did tes t 
for infl~nmable gas . 904. G. Seller s , x . 



Q. You have heard ·et_::-. flc}- u. ti.cs s~y tha t?A. I heard Mr. Cambourn 
saY that and I t h i nk I h ea rd Mr.o Pv.ddle ., He gave a description 
of how he did ito 

Q. I am not quite sure when Mro Puddle tested -

MR. LEE: In Noo 3 ~ 

HIS HONOR: Q," Mr o Puddle t ells u .. ~ thougJ;, that he has been aware 
of Illawarra bo ~~ t om ga s ~ The bulk of cne evidence here - and 
this has emanated from cG r.lpany sou.rces, this has been put to me -
is that the jnstance of Illmvarra bot t:om gas is a very rare thing 
and in fact it has been put~ I think, that one deputy had never 
heard of it befores I f he had n ever h eard of it - that is 
assuming a deputy had neve~ hea rd of it - there would be nothing 
but C02 that v1ould a t t rac t hi a at t en tion there as CH4 tests 
would be made where CHLf- exj_3t;s =: .n :l.'t3 f r ee state, and that is 
higher up; i s not t ha t the posi t ion?A. No, I would not agree 
with that because h : oUJ' m~i ning pr actice we must consida:- all 
gases inflammable unti_l p :roved otherwise o 

Q. This is very ni.c. e a s to vrha t t he code is which is laid down, 
but I am looking at 11hat actually happens down in the pit and 
what the deputie s ~ \vho are not scienti st s, not experts in the 
sense perhaps tha ·c you a re ~ and I say that with great respect -
themselves do o 1~heir t[U.a~l.ifications are far different from the 
qualificatio~s of a Mines I c spector, t o 3tart with?A. Yes. 

Q. Now we are faced \vJ th this si_ i~ua tion 5 that everybody apparently -
and Mr. Puddle ag~eeed wi th t h i s - e.ovn at the mine does not know 
very much a tcmt; :r:1.l avtar.ra bot tom ga s. They know a lot about 
C02; they appar ently k n m.J a l ot about CH·Lt, but the mixture of 
the two is something that t h ey a r e not expecting. They know 
a lot about C02 and k l!..OW .i t ex 5_ s t s ~"' m\rn nea r floor level, mainly. 
You say you must trea t all ga ses as inflammableo Well, I am 
far from c onvinced tha t despJ ~ e t h e code , in~cordance with the 
code every depu•~y l n fin'~" in.g a l arr"p s t a2:ting to go out in C02 
thinks 11 this i s i n l l ammable ga s" and treats it as such. He 
treats it as C02 . Th e n ext; s t ep f or a d eputy is that he is 
looking for inflammable gas ; i s he looking for inflammable gas 
in the region wher e h:. .s l arr:.p ha s gone out or is he looking for 
inflammable gas when he j_ s no'; bej_ng aw2.re or not being very 
worried by the pre s enc e of I llav:a::!'a bottom gas because it is so 
rare? Is he lock i ng f or CH4 do~m there or is he looking for 
CH4 where it norma lly occurs~ a lon g t he ribs and so on? That is 
my problemo You ~ the d eputies as you know them conscientiously 
go through these test~?A e \'Jell, sir 2 it I:as been my privilege to 
have been t:uto_ .. ed t y some c f t hose d eputles in th~ detection of 
gasesc In fact ~ my firs~ l es son in detecting gas, Illawarra 
bottom gas, was given t o me by a deputyo 

Q. I suppose you have r ead a lot about i t since?A. I have read 
a lot and I have taken dozen 3 of sample s ru~d analysed them. 
It is quite po2sible f o .. a man of exp erience to put his light 
into a mass and say nit is bottom g:-, s rz and f:ind the point at whid1 
~our light goes out in terms of a known amount and then calculate, 
1f you wish to, the per~entage of C02 in ito 

Q. I r ealise that is a possibl li ty ~ bu tit i s hardly likely 
ttn t all deputies have been tra·in8d tha t way and take that 
attitude. But Mr "' PuddJ.e i s 1::n.'1er manager in this mine and has 
made it quite clear to me that in fact ·~hey were concerned mainly 
with C02. Ao I am sure tha t is t rueo 

Q. You agree with that ev:Ldence?.£1 .• I am sure that is quite correct. 
They were concerned ma inly -vli t.h C02<-

Q, Do you, as a p:ract ::.cal ma:1. ·wi t h e~perience of mine, say that 
in your experienc e a depu ·~· y 14i)r;h that in mind goes round and 
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